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Corporate Profile 2 T

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ") was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability. The Company’s A Shares were listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange on 3 August 2010. The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5
December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment manufacturer in the PRC. It focuses on the manufacturing
and sales of hydraulic roof supports, and is the largest hydraulic roof support manufacturer in the PRC. The Company is also engaged in the
trading of steel and other raw materials primarily through its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company’s established operating history, high
quality products, strong research and development capabilities, advanced manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network
are the keys to its success and enable it to maintain its leading position in the PRC coal mining and excavating equipment market.
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“Chairman’s Statement EEE & E

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased, on behalf of the board of directors
(the “Board”) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, to present
the annual report of the Group for the period
from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (the
“2015 Annual Report”).

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2015, in line with the annual goal of “exploring market under innovative
mindset, reducing costs via multiple channels, preserving funds with full efforts,
and fostering transformation by grasping opportunities”, all management staff
of the Company rode on the Company’s advantage in sales and collection of
trade receivables externally, and fully fostered its market-oriented profit-based
appraisal approach and enforced cost reduction by all staff members internally,
thereby seizing the reform opportunities and actively sought for transformation
and upgrading. Amidst the deep dive of the industry, our key economic
indicators sustained industry leading position.

For the domestic market, we continued to promote our diversified sales mode,
with the sales of comprehensive coal mining machinery, professional life-
long equipment management service, full-process service and finance lease.
Through the enhanced well-in-advance planning for key markets, we built
stronger long-term cooperation with key customers. We participated in China’s
16th International Coal Mining Technology Exchange and Equipment Exhibition
Fair (BT RXEFRBEBBFEEREBERTIALZERES) and
delivered sound achievements. For the international market, we solidified our
competitive strengths in overseas market including Russia, India and Vietnam;
precisely identified the high-end markets in Australia and North America and
secured contracts on roof support machinery; and established our Australian
subsidiary.
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In 2015, collection of debts was among our key focuses. We expanded the
channels for collection, and performed well in our collection of debts by taking
multiple approaches including full clearance initiative, netting off of accounts
and legal means.

Regarding production methods, master plans continued to act as the pulling
force to drive production processes under a production planning system for the
daily matching of delivery with production output, thereby further shortening
the production cycle. Quality, operation, efficiency and production represented
the core elements upon which a mechanism of basis statistics and appraisal
for production units was established. Strictly regulating discipline in production
processes, addressing exceptional circumstances, adopting quality control
measures and standardizing after-sale service delivery, we attained effective
control over quality issues.

In 2015, we achieved breakthroughs in automated mining of thin coal seam,
centralized control over working surfaces, formation of cloud-based control
platform and smart control for ultra-mining height, with the successful research
and development of the smart-control liquid supply for working surfaces with
self-owned intellectual property rights. During the reporting period, we received
a number of accolades, including 4 technology advancement awards granted
by provincial or municipal governments, one key technology project award
granted by a municipal government, the recognition as a role-model enterprise
in technology and innovation granted by national authorities, and the recognition
as an academician work station in Henan Province.

In 2015, we continued with our intensified efforts in fostering our market-
based profit appraisal, established the fully-covered, all-rounded statistical
system, and vastly promoted the dynamic collection and real-time sharing of
data. On an IT-oriented approach, we streamlined our business processes,
and fully implemented our system of ERP contract management and
detailed management of receivables and payables, thereby strengthening
the management of and control over risks in our operations. Streamlined
management continued to fortify and be put in place from production
departments to functional departments. 5S on-site management and proposal
enhancement were enforced in various departments for lowering the costs of
production and operation.

In 2015, market-based reforms on our professional managers were enforced in
our management team, thereby enhancing our corporate governance structure.
We further adhered to and strenuously fostered the reform measures as
represented by the reform of the “trilateral system” and the reform of mixed-
ownership, with a view to continually driving our internal vitality.
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After 58 years of sound development, especially the swift development since
year 2000, ZMJ has become a leader in the coal mining machinery industry
in the PRC. At a time of industry-wide difficulty, coal-mining customers’
requirements on equipment have changed fundamentally, with more stringent
requirements on brand, technology and quality. This further underscored ZMJ’s
brand advantage which bestowed higher chances to ZMJ and put it in better
position for embarking upon business model which can hardly be replicated or
imitated by competitors.

With the structural adjustment in both the global economy as well as the
industry, coupling with the expedited pace of transformation and upgrading
of China’s economy, merger, acquisition and reorganization are expected to
flourish in various industries including the coal mining machinery industry in the
near future. Capitalizing on the domestic and overseas platform of investment
and financing, the Company may consolidate high-quality resources in the
global coal mining machinery industry, actively probe into potential opportunities
in other industries, explore a second line of principal business through merger
and acquisition, and bring forth new revenue streams and sources of profit
growth.

Looking at the trend of macroeconomic development, coal will remain a key
source of energy in the PRC in the long term. Policies related to the state’s
initiatives on supply-side reform for coal mining encourage and support the
transformation of coal mining machinery operations into becoming more
automated and machine-intensive, promote the use of key technology in
green and smart mines, and in turn enhance the production level of advanced
equipment for large-scale coal mining activities. Meanwhile, a peak period of
machine replacements is expected in the coal mining machinery industry under
the “Golden Decade for Coal”. This will present a new round of opportunities of
driving demand for high-end and smart comprehensive coal mining equipment
and the upgrading of technology for coal mining.

Based on the existing internal and external conditions, the Company has further
fixed the direction of its strategic development. Whilst maintaining its foothold
in the coal mining machinery industry, it seeks to go beyond coal mining
machinery and look for new areas of development and new sources of profit
growth, marching with its utmost courage towards becoming a large-scale
international conglomerate.
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First, strategic positioning as an international enterprise: Economic globalization
has become an irreversible trend. It is a strategic choice in line with the current
global economic development and also a necessary path to becoming an
international enterprise, for an advantageous enterprise basically equipped with
international competitiveness, to seek self-enhancement to an international
standard, adopt “outbound development” strategies, actively participate in
international competition and cooperation, and continually explore the room for
existence and development.

Second, market-oriented corporate governance: A sound mechanism is pivotal
to the virtuous cycle of development of an enterprise. In recent years, ZMJ has
been bold in exploration and implementation in terms of corporate systems and
structures, bringing remarkable improvements in its corporate governance,
albeit the inadequacy in its market-oriented development in comparison
with enterprises which are fully exposed to market competition. In pursuit of
corporate growth in terms of size and strength, an enterprise which is under
full exposure to market competition needs further intensified, market-oriented
reforms in systems and structures: Leveraging on “developing mixed-ownership
economy” to further optimize shareholding structure and uplift the level of
corporate governance; Having in place a board of directors which operates in
market-oriented approach, so that it becomes the platform for governance,
for expression of thoughts and for decision-making; Adopting tenure-based
management for senior management staff, promoting a system of professional
managers, and exploring market-oriented mechanisms for remuneration,
incentives, appraisal and restrictions applicable to the general management and
staff.

Third, diversified industry planning: First of all, with its footholds in the coal
mining machinery industry, the Company will build a world class brand of
comprehensive coal mining machinery equipment and service delivery. It will
probe into the international high-end market to seek some market share from
major international players in the coal mining machinery industry, making itself
a world class supplier of comprehensive coal mining machinery equipment and
a worldwide top-notch service provider in coal mining machinery equipment;
Further, it will identify new revenue streams and new sources of profit growth
by exploring a second line of principal business through merger, acquisition and
reorganization.

Fourth, globalization of human resources: Human resources are the ultimate
source of corporate reforms and innovations, and the most substantial
resources for corporate development. By steadfastly adhering to the strategy of
people-based corporate development under the mindset of “innovations, open-
mindedness and inclusion”, sustainably optimizing the structure of existing
human resources under a market-oriented mindset, creating a scientific system
of talents incubation and development, having in place a clear path of career
promotion adopting a reasonable system of remuneration and, from a global
perspective and under a market-oriented mechanism, recruiting and retaining
people of high caliber under a human resources mechanism via both training
and selective hiring, we will be able to lay a solid foundation upon which we will
build a century-lasting ZMJ.
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In 2016, setting the annual goal of “securing collection of receivables while
maintaining sales orders, uplifting efficiency for survival, adjusting structure for
corporate transformation, and intensifying reforms while seeking innovation”,
the Company will stand firm in the coal mining machinery industry and adopt
multiple measures for survival. Secondly, it will seek improvement internally
and fine-tune fundamental management. Further, it will expedite the pace of its
reforms and transformation.

Facing the future opportunities and challenges, the board of directors of the
Company will strictly adhere to its designated duties in order to cope with the
challenges and grasp opportunities. Based on the principle of maintaining the
Company’s leading position in coal mining machinery industry, we will facilitate
the acceleration of strategic transformation, promote development in terms of
quality and comprehensively enhance our profitability as well as development
and management ability, striving for bringing higher and better investment
return to the Shareholders.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Shareholders, the society and our friends for their trust and

support.

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

4 March 2016
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Construct a high-quality support base,
create a globally supported brand,
and create a sustainable

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group.
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Overview

The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
manufacturer in the PRC. Our established operating history, high quality
products, strong in-house research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network are the keys
to our success and allow us to maintain our leading position in the PRC coal
mining and excavating equipment market. The Group’s products and businesses
primarily include: (i) hydraulic roof supports; (i) steel and other raw materials
trading; (iii) spare parts; and (iv) other coal mining equipment.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary, for the year of 2015 indicated, of our TREBINAEERFI R E—RAFNEHEEEER

consolidated results of operations. &= o
2015 2014
—E-RHF —ET—OF
RMB millions RMB millions
AREEHET ARBEETT
Revenue WA 4,510.86 6,124.46
Cost of sales SHERAR (3,653.83) (5,070.47)
Gross profit ESV| 857.03 1,053.99
Other income E b UgA 120.72 106.67
Other gains and losses Hivlizm & E (335.88) (342.43)
Selling and distribution expenses HHE Mo HER X (214.90) (216.27)
Administrative expenses TR (304.24) (279.51)
Research and development expenses EEER (102.56) (105.69)
Share of profit of associates FE(REEE N RS T 13.36 18.13
Share of (loss) profit of joint ventures JEIEE &SRR (1.00) 0.09
Finance costs BhE A (2.16) (2.38)
Profit before tax B F BT A 30.37 232.58
Income tax expense SRtz (19.76) (39.25)
Profit for the year FRHF 10.61 193.33
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hivz2mWA(FX)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: AR A B E# 72 1Ba 2 HH -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial assets AHHEEZSREE AT EERE (4.81) (32.85)
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment of LN Er SREERERENSE
available-for-sale financial assets T 60.07 -
Share of fair value loss on available-for-sale fEME— MBS AR HEE 22w
financial assets of an associate BENTEER (5.51) (10.47)
Share of reclassification adjustment upon impairment of ~ fE(L —RIEEE AT A HE Y £ 5
available-for-sale financial assets held by an associate BERMEREFHEHE 15.98 -
65.73 (43.32)
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEEEZIERZR (1.07) (0.92)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year, FREMEEMEA(FAS) -
net of income tax MERAAEH 64.66 (44.24)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EWALRE 75.27 149.09
Profit for the year attributable to: IATATEEFERER
Owners of the Company A AR 42.20 205.19
Non-controlling interests FEERR R (31.59) (11.86)
10.61 193.33
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: ~ SA T A T E(EER 2 EIRLALLEE ¢
Owners of the Company ViN/NC )4 106.86 160.95
Non-controlling interests FEERR R R (31.59) (11.86)
75.27 149.09
EARNINGS PER SHARE G EF
— Basic and diluted (RMB) —ERREE(ARET) 0.03 0.13
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Revenue

Our revenue decreased by 26.3% from RMB6,124.46 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to RMB4,510.86 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, mainly because demand in domestic coal market continued to diminish
in 2015 and fixed asset investment in the coal mining and processing industry
continued to fall, which resulted in a decrease in domestic market demand for
the Group’s products and the corresponding decrease in the Group’s revenue
from hydraulic roof supports.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by product and
business (in RMB millions):

=
&Y

a8

YA

REEWABHEZS—NF+_A=T—HIEFEN
ARG 12446 B ELH 2639 EHE—_T—HF+=
A=+ BLEFENARKLIS086EET  TE2
2015 F BN BRI I5 5 SIFEE MR - MR FRIE %N
EFEEERELETR SHAMBHEBRERFKE
FTm A 38 B S BIR R S2 ZR A UR A TR BT SR ©

TREDIAREBIZE M M EBE D WA (B
AREBETT) :

2015 2014

—E-HEF —E—E

RMB miillions RMB millions

ARETERT AREEET

Sales of hydraulic roof supports RS R 7 SHE 2,815.84 3,701.45

Revenue from steel and other materials trading S s N B A RV 5 2 WA 920.82 1,679.71

Sales of spare parts fid 2 SHE 601.90 540.20

Sales of other coal mining equipment Hib a2 5 120.79 89.37

Other revenue Hublg A 51.51 113.73

4,510.86 6,124.46

Cost of Sales SHE A

As the Group recorded a decrease in our revenue, our cost of sales decreased HRAEERAB TR - NEEEEKABHEZ2014

by 27.9% from RMB5,070.47 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
RMB3,653.83 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Gross Profit

Driven by the above factors, our gross profit decreased by 18.7% from
RMB1,053.99 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB857.03
million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Due to the substantial drop in the purchase price of steel, our gross profit
margin increased from 17.2% for the year ended 31 December 2014 to 19.0%
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Other Income

Our other income increased by 13.2% from RMB106.67 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014 to RMB120.72 million for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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Other Gains and Losses

Our other gains and losses decreased by 1.9% from RMB342.43 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB335.88 million for the year ended
31 December 2015, primarily as a result of the decrease in our allowance for
doubtful debts.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by 0.6% from RMB216.27
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB214.90 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015, primarily as a result of a decrease in transportation
and logistics expenses as our sales volumes decreased.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 8.8% from RMB279.51 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB304.24 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, primarily as a result of the increase in salary costs.

Staff Costs and Remuneration Policy

Our staff costs decreased by 0.8% from RMB412.06 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to RMB408.60 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, primarily as a result of a decrease in our revenue and a decrease in the
numbers of staff. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of basic salary
and bonus payment, which is determined with reference to the operating results
of the Group and results of performance assessment on the employees. The
Group insisted the orientation towards efficiency and results as well as the focus
on top-tier staff. It also strived to ensure scientific and reasonable allocation of
income.

The Group attaches great importance to the growth and development of
employees and endeavours to provide training and opportunities for exchange to
help them enhance their professional skills and expand their areas of expertise.
The Group has introduced a position’s qualifications based programme, created
a platform for internal staffs to display and communicate through training,
exploited the potential of human resources of the Company and enhanced the
cultivation for reserve talents.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses decreased by 3% from RMB105.69
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB102.56 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015, primarily as a result of our effective control
of research and development expenses and adjustments to investments in
research and development according to market situation.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs decreased by 9.2% from RMB2.38 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to RMB2.16 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
primarily as a result of a decrease in interest expenses on our bank borrowings
due to a decrease in the average balance of our bank borrowings.

HAth W zh K B 18

AEBH AW R EEEHE2014F12831B IEFER
AREE34243E B TR A1.9% EE E2015F 12 A31H 1t
FEMAREIB.BEET - TEHRBRIREL /B
R

HE Ny R X

AEEHEEMDHEB Y BEEHZE2014F12A31B LFER
AREE21621E B IR 06% 2 E E2015512 4318 1t
FEMARB240EETL TEHAREEEREH
B RYIRFASIRD

TR

AREBTHMAXBEE2014F12A31BILFENARKE
27951 BB TIEMN8.8% Z=E E2015F 12 A31 A IEFER
ANERBES0424F BT » TEHARATRA LFFTE

8 T A& B T #HBIECR

AEFETRABHE-_T—NF+_A=+—HIt
FENARBM206EBTHI0IEBE_S—RHF
TZA=T—BHIEFEMNARKIB60EET TEMH
RRATR - BTABRD - AEEEITHMAEAT
BB TEMIBAMER - REITERERNEEEER
BEREZIERAETE - NEERFURGENEE BER
BER—ELETER  ZHBRRERASREZEEE -

REE+IBETE THRREERE - Er e AHRE
B ke EREHETEERENER TEE
o MBASBERIR - AREREY T HUERERS
EMHRIZR R - AFIIAEBARABAT RRER
WP S BREARRANERE  IREREBATIE
=

& m

NEFEFEERAEZ2014F12A31 B LFEEHARE
105,69 BT 3% EEH E20155F12 A31H ILFEHA
R¥10256 887 - TEHREBEB TSI AT &
RIBETT S G FEIFEEA o

BERA

AEBREKXABEE2014F12A31BIEFENARE
2.38BE L A2%EEHE2015F12A31BIEFEHA
R¥216B& 7T * THRASERITEEN LR
Lo SERMMBITEEMZHOFERRD



Management Discussion and Analysis B8

Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit before
tax decreased by 86.9% from RMB232.58 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 to RMB30.37 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense decreased by 49.7% from RMB39.25 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB19.76 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, primarily as a result of a decrease in our taxable profit for the
year. Our effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2015 increased to
65.1% from 16.9% for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Profit for the Year

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit and total
comprehensive income decreased by 94.5% from RMB193.33 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB10.61 million for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company decreased by 79.4% from RMB205.19 million for 2014 to RMB42.20
million for 2015.

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

During 2015, the Group had RMB1,726.22 million in cash and cash equivalents.
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of cash and bank
deposits.
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2015 2014

—E-HF —T—F

RMB millions RMB millions

AREBHER ARBAETT

Net cash from operating activities WERB SIS FR 318.40 232.86
Net cash used in investing activities REETEMARSFE (298.05) (166.75)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBMMARSFE (135.93) (289.11)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEYRAFEE (115.58) (223.00)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRER) 22 20.14 a.77)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year FEHNIR S LIRS ZEY 1,821.66 2,046.43
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year FROIRE LB EEEBY 1,726.22 1,821.66
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Management Discussion and Analysis EIEEz

Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities in 2015 was RMB318.40 Million. Cash inflow
primarily comprised profit before taxation of RMB30.37 million, adjusted for:
(i) loss of doubtful debts of RMB312.14 million, (ii) a decrease in inventory of
RMB264.00 million; (jii) an increase in trade and other payables of RMB148.99
million. The cash inflow was offset by: (i) an increase in long-term receivables
and finance lease receivables of RMB232.36 million; (ii) a decrease in advances
from customers of RMB251.51 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities in 2015 was RMB298.05 million, primarily
comprising: (i) payment of RMB2,623.42 million from the purchase of short-
term structured deposits with banks; (i) receipt of proceeds of RMB2,065.42
million from the disposal of short-term structured deposits with banks; (iii)
payment of RMB310.00 million due to bank deposits with a maturity of over
three months; (iv) withdrawal of bank deposits with a maturity of over three
months of RMB571.66 million; (v) payment of pledged bank deposits of
RMB519.06 million, for the issuance of bank notes that we used to purchase
raw materials; and (vi) withdrawal of pledged bank deposits of RMB487.29
million.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities in 2015 was RMB135.93 million, primarily
consisting of (i) payment of dividends of RMB61.60 million; (i) repayment of
bank borrowings of RMB97.17 million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB96.17 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, for purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and lease prepayments.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2015, our commitments consisted of capital commitments
that have been authorized and contracted for in the amount of RMB31.27
million and capital commitments that have been authorized but not contracted
for in the amount of RMB25.91 million, and operating lease commitments of
RMB67.91 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &

HREE

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain bills RAEE - AEEUEERRIBRETEREE S
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In NEHAEZHMERBR I B REMENFIR - AARE
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment ERE ARFBEBSEZRERRERREERIT ZH
of the endorsed bills receivable is low because all endorsed bills receivable are AT RIEHER - MRNEEZERRERZRRT
issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to the Ko REWMER - AEE AR NZESE RIUS
Group that may result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised bills R EWEEmAEREZ ZRRBRIAT

receivable at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

Contingent Liabilities

2015 2014

—E-ERF T

RMB millions RMB millions

AREBER AREBEHETT

Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse HBREZ HAEEREBERKER 461.21 765.36

Working Capital and Indebtedness

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and liabilities as of 31

December 2015 (in RMB millions): LaEFE (BN AREEET) ¢
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—MF
RMB millions RMB millions
AREBER AREBEHETT
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepaid lease payments TEHAERE 8.68 8.68
Inventories wE 1,175.83 1,449.17
Loan receivables from an associate FEW —REGEE N A IE 80.00 80.00
Trade and other receivables B 5 hEAEKGRIE 4,054.92 4,353.75
Finance lease receivables AR EER I 25.99 7.83
Long-term receivable within one year —EXNEHIY R A W 2k 105.06 31.92
Other financial assets Eem&EE 1,063.00 505.00
Tax recoverable a] Y [a] £ 18 1.37 9.23
Pledged bank deposits BEEPRITIER 278.08 246.32
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR LIRS 2,011.23 2,368.32
Total Current Assets MEVEERE 8,804.16 9,060.22
GURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTIE 2,193.74 2,044.65
Advances from customers XFEEe 198.89 450.40
Tax liabilities HIBAGE 19.61 2.70
Borrowings ==} - 9717
2,412.24 2,594.92
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENVEEFE 6,391.92 6,465.30
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The Company’s net current assets decreased from RMB6,465.30 million as of
31 December 2014 to RMB6,391.92 million as of 31 December 2015, primarily
due to a decrease in trade and other receivables and a decrease in advances
from customers.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no outstanding borrowings.

In 2015, our available credit line from various financial institutions amounted
to RMB1,906 million. As of 31 December 2014, approximately RMB4,860
million of our credit lines from various domestic and foreign financial institutions
remained unused.

AABRBEEFEA T NE+-_A=+—HKHA
R#646530BE TRHE —Z—AF+-_A=+—H8HK
AREE6391.928 &0 F B2 AN IR R H U
R AR BB REHRD

WZB-—AF+-A=+—H  ARAREREEER -

ZE—RF  ARABREZRESHEENTRER
HMEAREI06EETL - R_E—NF+-_A=+—
B ARBIREZRERIINSBHEENEAEEOAR
154,860 B BITINAER

Capital Adequacy Ratio BARFTE R
2015 2014
—E-FF —ET—NF
Gearing ratio BEAGLE - 1.0%

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing liabilities at the
end of the year by total equity at the end of the year and multiplying by 100%.

Our gearing ratio decreased from 1.0% as of 31 December 2014 to nil as of
31 December 2015, primarily as a result of the repayment of bank borrowings
during the year.

BEABRHENEFRTEEEABERIUNFRERA
%8 BIR100%ETE -

BN EERGBHEH_Z—NF+_A=1+—HK
1.0% TRE2-F—AF+_A=1+—HNZT  =ZHRK
REFBIRITIEFTE ©

Liquidity risk REE SRR
Weighted ~ On demand or Total
effective average less than 3monthsto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year cash flows amount
IR RERS ARAEE
FHRI= DH3EA MERE1F RERE BREE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
The Group EE
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z—HEF+-H
=+—H
Trade and other payables B 5 MM ERZIA - 1,745,855 351,750 2,097,605 2,097,605
- 1,745,855 351,750 2,097,605 2,097,605
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Credit Risk

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statements of financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to the financial guarantees
issued by the Group and bills receivable endorsed by the Group with full
recourse as disclosed in note 44.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Company has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the Company reviews
the recoverability of each trade debt at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the management of the Company considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed bills receivable is low because all endorsed bills receivable are
issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks. However, the credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the majority of the counterparties are state-owned banks with good reputation
or banks with good credit rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies
and with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 11.42% (2014:13.72%) and
28.75% (2014:29.74%) of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate pledged bank deposits, variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate
borrowings (see notes 34 and 36 for details). Currently, the Group does not
have a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but the management will
closely monitor interest rate exposures and consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

Please refer to note 6(b) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Company’s interest rate risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &

Currency Risk

The primary economic environment in which the company and its principal
subsidiaries operate is the PRC and their functional currency is RMB. However,
certain transactions of the Company and its principal subsidiaries including
sales and purchases of goods are denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group currently do not have a foreign currency hedging policy but the
management of the Group closely monitors the foreign exchange risk profile
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk between USD/RMB,
EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB. Please refer to note 6(b) of the financial statements
prepared under IFRSs for more quantitative information about the Group’s
currency risk.

Other Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments operating in coal industry sector quoted in the Stock Exchange. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Please refer to note 6(b) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Company’s other price risk.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Chengyao (£ 7 2E), aged 52, is the Chairman and executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Jiao is a professor-level senior engineer. He
graduated from China Institute of Mining and Technology (P B #& 2 £2F5)
(now known as China University of Mining and Technology (7 B 8& 3£ A £2)),
majoring in mechanical design, manufacture and automation and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985. He obtained a master’s degree
in engineering from China University of Mining and Technology in December
2003, and obtained a doctoral degree in economics from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology in December 2007. From July 1985 to May 1992,
he served as a technician, a production dispatcher and an engineer of the No.
1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From
May 1992 to May 1993, he was the manager of Zhengshen Import Vehicles
Repair Station (885372 2 [ 35 85 4 (& 1) From May 1993 to January 1998, he
was the deputy plant manager and the plant manager of the No. 1 machinery
sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From January 1998
to July 2000, he was the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the plant manager
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to December
2008, he served as the chairman and general manager of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. Since July 2015, he was appointed as chairman
and director of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since December
2008, he has been the Chairman of the Company.

Mr. Xiang Jiayu ([81ZX /), aged 50, is the Vice Chairman and executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Xiang is a senior engineer. From September
1980 to July 1984, he studied at the Department of Electrical and Mechanical
Engineering of Jiaozuo Mining Institute (£ {EHE 2 £p%), majoring in
mechanization. He studied at the China University of Mining and Technology,
Master's Department (Beijing) (FF B #& % K 21k mAf 7t 4 5) from
September 1988 to January 1991, majoring in mining mechanical engineering
and obtained a master’s degree. From July 1984 to August 1988, he lectured
at Yima Mining Technical School (£ B ¥ 7 B ). From May 1991 to
December 1992, he was a designer at the research center of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1992 to July 1995, he was
the executive officer of the No. 2 research center of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From August 1995 to November 1998, he was the deputy
plant manager at the Huanghe Electronics Institute (7 25 8) & &) of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November 1998 to July
2000, he was the executive officer of the hydraulic project center of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he served
as the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From October 2002 to October 2008, he was the deputy general manager
and standing deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Company. From October 2008 to December 2008, he was a director and
the general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From
December 2008 to February 2015, he was a director and the general manager
of the Company. Since July 2015, he has been a director of Henan Machinery
Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since February 2015, he has been the Vice
Chairman of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wang Xinying (E $7%), aged 50, is an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985,
he studied at the Department of Mining Engineering of Chongging University
(EEAE), majoring in mining machinery. From September 2004 to July
2007, he studied at the School of Mechanical Engineering of China University of
Mining and Technology and obtained postgraduate qualification and a master’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to October 1992, he was an engineer
of the equipment division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, and
worked and studied in Toyota Motor Corporation between January 1991 and
January 1992, From October 1992 to July 1994, he was a deputy manager
of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station. From July 1994 to December
1996, he was a deputy plant manager of sub-plant of machinery repair of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1996 to July 2000,
he was a deputy director of the production division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to January 2005, he was the head of
corporate planning department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From January 2005 to December 2008, he was a deputy general manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December 2008 to February
2015, he was a director and deputy general manager of the Company. Since
February 2015, he has been a director of the Company.

Mr. Guo Haofeng (38 £1#), aged 51, is an executive Director. Mr. Guo
is a senior engineer. From September 1983 to July 1987, he studied at the
Department of Mechanical Engineering of South China Institute of Technology
(#EFg T2 F%) (now known as South China University of Technology (3
FgIE T K E2)), and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering. He has a
master’s degree in engineering awarded by Huazhong University of Science
and Technology (Z= A £ AE2) in June 2007. From September 1987 to
August 1991, he was a technician, an assistant engineer and an engineer of the
subplant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August
1991 to July 1994, he served as an assistant to plant manager of the subplant
of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 1994 to
April 1997, he was the deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From April 1997 to September
1998, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From September 1998 to July 2000, he was
the head of the corporate planning department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to
September 2006, he served as the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. From October 2006 to December 2008, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Company (“ZCMM”). From December 2008 to February 2012, he was the
director and deputy general manager of the Company. From February 2012
to February 2015, he was the deputy general manager of the Company. Since
February 2015 he has been a director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Liu Qiang (£)38), aged 46, and born in Yongcheng, Henan, is a member
of the Communist Party of China. From September 1986 to July 1990, he
studied at the Nankai University, majoring in economics management and law,
and obtained bachelor’s degrees in economics and law. In October 2004, he
studied a master’s degree in economics from Wuhan University, majoring in
world economics. In July 2009, he studied at Henan University, majoring in
regional economics and was admitted as a doctoral candidate. He obtained a
doctoral degree in Economics in December 2009. Mr. Liu holds the qualification
of senior auditor, asset valuer, lawyer and senior consultant. From July 1990
to November 2002, he successively served to a director-level officer at the
agriculture audit division, general office and division of legal affairs under the
Department of Audit of Henan Province. From November 2002 to July 2012, he
was the deputy section-level supervisor of the Supervisory Committee for the
State owned Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial Government (7] &5
BEEHAPEEEE) From July 2012 to November 2012, he served as
the section-level supervisor of the Supervisory Committee for the State owned
Enterprises Administered by Henan Provincial Government. From November
2012 to September 2014, he was also a researcher of Provincially Administered
and State-owned Medium and Small Enterprise Department (& & /N> 2
&) of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
the People’s Government of Henan province. He also served as a researcher of
Economic Cooperation Department of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the People’s Government of Henan Province from
September 2014 to December 2014. Since December 2014, he has been the
secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Company. Since February 2015,
he has been a director of the Company.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Yao (21), aged 40, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Liu joined the Company on 5 June 2014. Ms. Liu has
approximately 13 years of experience in financial industry. She worked in the
investment banking department of UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited as an
associate director, a director and an executive director from December 2009 to
June 2014, and has served as a managing director of HK Griffin Reed Capital
Group (=& 2<% &) since June 2014. Since June 2014, she has been an
independent director of the Company. Ms. Liu has worked as a key member of
the sponsor or one of the joint sponsors (as the case may be) in a number of
offerings of shares on the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange, including
among others, the Company, China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 06863), International Mining Machinery Holdings Limited (stock
code: 01683; delisted), Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
00881), China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 02128) and Boer
Power Holdings Limited (stock code: 01685). In the foregoing transactions,
Ms. Liu reviewed and analyzed the audited accounts, management accounts,
corporate governance and internal control of the relevant companies,
coordinated prospectuses drafting (including the financial information sections),
compared performance of the relevant companies against comparable
companies in similar industries, and provided advice to the relevant companies
to improve their corporate governance and internal control in accordance with
the Listing Rules. She worked in Deutsche Bank at its corporate finance practice
under the investment banking department as a manager from July 2007 to
November 2009, during which period of time she participated in the offerings
of shares by a company in the bio-pharmaceutical industry and a company
in the ship building industry, subprime debt financing of Bank of China, an
overseas acquisition by Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, etc. Ms. Liu
served as an analyst, manager and department head for Capital One Bank from
March 2001 to May 2007, mainly working on analysis of market data, risk
analysis of subprime credit cards and strategic planning of bank’s investment
in housing loan business and non-subprime automobile loan business. Ms.
Liu graduated from Xiamen University in July 1996 and obtained a bachelor’'s
degree in chemistry. She graduated from the National University of Singapore
with a master’s degree in chemistry in December 1998. Ms. Liu possesses
a second master’s degree in materials engineering granted by Case Western
Reserve University in Cleveland, the United States of America in March 2001.
She also obtained an EMBA degree from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania in Philadelphia, the United States of America in May 2007.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Jiang Hua (;I%), aged 52, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Jiang joined the Company on 10 February 2015. Mr. Jiang
was among the first batch of securities lawyers in China. From September 1981
to June 1985, he studied law at Renmin University of China and obtained a
bachelor’s degree. From September 1985 to June 1987, he studied civil law
at Renmin University of China and obtained a master’s degree. He began to
practice law since 1992. From 1994 to 2001, he was a partner of the Beijing-
based Dacheng Law Offices (3t /7 A K 2 B = #5Ff). From 2001 to
2003, he was a partner of the Beijing-based Tongwei Law Firm (1t =21
[Rl 4R EM == 75 A7), Since 2003, he has been a partner of Beijing Kangda
Law Firm (Jb R T ERAZ 2RI EFEFT). In 2012, Mr. Jiang was hired by
the Law School and the Lawyer College of Renmin University of China as a
parttime instructor for graduate students under the Juris Master program. He
has provided legal services in various aspects, including transformation into
sharesbased corporations, issue and listing of shares, refinancing, and merger
and acquisition to more than a hundred enterprises including Beijing Tiangiao (1t
FK1B), Gu Yue Long Shan (& fiBE L), Yintai Resources (SR ZE&)R) and
so forth, contributing his profound theoretical knowledge and extensive practical
experience. Mr. Jiang has also served as the general manager of the Merger and
Acquisition Division of China Economy Trust and Investment Corporation (|7
RS EEA A N T EAE G £B) and the deputy general manager of Xi'an
Securities Limited (F5Z2 5% A R /A &) (currently Morgan Stanley Huaxin
Securities (EEAR+FFF] —ZEZE ). Mr. Jiang is qualified to become an
independent director of listed companies. Mr. Jiang has been an independent
director of Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Co. Ltd. ()8 B E1R
TR ATA% 15 B BR A 7)) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002415) from 2008
to December 2014; an independent director of China Zhonghua Geotechnical
Engineering Co., Ltd. (FF{bE+ TI2M B FR A A)) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 002542) since 2009; an independent director of Daheng New
Epoch Technology Inc. (K1B#42 s RHE 1D A BR 22 1) (Shanghai Stock
Exchange: 600288) from 2009 to December 2014; an independent director of
Huafa Industrial Co., Ltd. Zhuhai (Bk/8 2235 & 2£ 8% {5 B FR A &) (Shanghai
Stock Exchange: 600325) since 2013; and an independent director of China
National Complete Plant Import and Export Corporation Limited (FF Bk 2 1 O
%5 75 B2 /A &)) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 000151) since May 2014.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li Xudong (Z=/B%X), aged 45, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company on 10 February 2015. Mr. Li is a
senior accountant, Chinese certified public accountant, Chinese certified assets
valuer and Chinese certified tax agent. From 2000 to 2003, he studied at
Central University of Finance and Economics and obtained a bachelor’s degree
in accounting. He is currently a managing partner (1,774 £ A.) of Da Hua
Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) (A # & 5t £ &
T (R E @A %)), Mr. Li was a member of the 13th, 14th and15th
session of the review committee for main board issue of China Securities
Regulatory Commission. In 1996, Mr. Li commenced his CPA business and
has focused on the partial and whole-scale listing of corporate assets, asset
restructuring, and IPO audit and consulting for listed companies. Mr. Li has
been a certified public accountant in respect of auditing for or signing the audit
for listed companies and large-scale state-owned enterprises including Wanda
Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (& 32 75 2 #h 2 BZ D A& R 2 J), Inner
Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (A5 &5 & IE LR
{b T &5 B R A &), Zhejiang Hangxiao Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (#73T#
B R AR A 7)), China CAMC Engineering Co., Ltd. (ff TEIE: T
T2 R% 1D B BR /A 7)), and China National Machinery Industry Corporation (42
A T 2 5% E /A 7)) He has accumulated professional experience in areas
including accounting, auditing, asset appraisal, merger and acquisition and
corporate governance consulting.

Mr. Wu Guangming (1% 3¢ #8), aged 54, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the Company on 10 February 2015. He
is a senior economist and senior engineer. He is currently the chairman of the
board of directors of and general manager of Jiangsu Yuyue Medical Equipment
and Supply Co., Ltd. (/T %k f B2 & & s B A% 1D B PR 2 7)) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange: 002223), and vice chairman of Chinese Medical Equipment Industry
Association (F X Z&& 2547 175 &). Mr. Wu graduated from Jiangsu University
of Technology (T#%3% T AE2) in 1997, and was admitted to China Europe
International Business School in 2010. Mr. Wu was the manager of Danyang
Electronic Medical Apparatus Factory (F}[5 ik #8 28 5 =5 F % 23 /%) and
manager of Danyang Medical Equipment Factory (F}F5 22 FH 234 &k). Since
1998, he has been chairman of the board of directors of and general manager
of Jiangsu Yuyue Medical Equipment and Supply Co., Ltd.

\Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management % » EERSREEE

EEn)
B IEMITES ()

FHREFKE - 455K - WAEARRRBUIFNTES - FE
AER-ZE-AF_ATHEMARRR - FEERSHRE
FHED - PEIGEMEETED © o B & ARG N B
AMBEE c —EETFE-_TT=FEPRPLEK
BER  ERIHABELE - RERFEGEMEBR
(BHREBER)WTEBA - TLARETHEEES
T=E Ft+HE FTHEIRETERZESZ
8 - FREQ-NANAFRGEEEMEFMES - &
AREEBIBEERERLT  BESHE - LTRA
PO MR - QERECBENXMWERNERA
A ARG B ERERMETROBERAT  WIMENE
BABRAR - h TERTEBROARAR - P EER
TEEERREEMAR  ARBEAELEIRAET T
GEthD o TRR T BEMEE - Fat - BEMME - G
RARDEEFAF T ENERER -

KRHIPAKE - 6457  REARREIFMTES - RE
ERZE-RAF-ATRMARRR - REERSREE
BRD - BRI - RO IHARBEIEROBRA
BIORZZAT - 002223) EERFALIE - PRIBESM
CRER - —NWNEFEXNIHETKRE  —F—F
FEATBRERTIHSEREE - REASHEBRET
BaEmEE - ASBRASHBEEE - —ANN\FES
RETHARBERIBRNBERAPNESFERELHE -



-~

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management €% + EERSREEE

Supervisors

Mr. Li Chongging (Z=E ), aged 51, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Li a political worker and assistant engineer. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
economics and management from the Party School of the Central Committee
of the Chinese Communist Party. From July 1980 to September 1983, he
worked for 83016 Military Force Service Station in Yixing County, Jiangsu. From
September 1983 to September 1984, he worked in the General Dispatching
Office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From September 1984 to
July 1987, he studied full-time in the Vocational University of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory, majoring in machinery manufacturing. From July
1987 to June 1990, he worked as a technician in the sub-plant of stanchion
(workshop) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From June 1990
to May 1995, he was the vice secretary and secretary of the Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory Committee of the Chinese Communist Party Youth
League, during which period of time he studied economics and management
in the Party School of the Henan Province Committee of Chinese Communist
Party and obtained a bachelor’s degree. From May 1995 to February 1997,
he was the deputy plant manager and the deputy party secretary of the sub-
plant of welding of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From February
1997 to May 2000, he served as the plant manager of the sub-plant of mining
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 2000 to August 2000,
he worked as the standing deputy general manager of Diversified Business
Corporation of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory (851 TR A4 4% R
% @& & 482 7). From August 2000 to October 2002, he was the head
of General Office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October
2002 to January 2006, he was the head of General Office of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. From January 2006 to September 2006, he
worked as the director of the Human Resource Department of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company. From October 2006 to December 2008, he served
as the deputy general manager and a supervisor of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Company. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was the
deputy general manager of the Company. Since February 2012, he has served
as the chairman of Labor Union of the Company. Since February 2015, he has
been a supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Liu Fuying (2]{%), aged 50, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Liu
is a senior engineer. He graduated from the China University of Mining and
Technology, majoring in mechanical design and manufacturing and obtained
a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1987. In June 2008, he graduated
from the China University of Mining and Technology majoring in mechanical
design and theory and obtained a master’s degree in engineering. Mr. Liu
Fuying has been working for the Company since July 1987, responsible for
technical work. He is a major technical personnel of the Company and the leader
in the academia and technology field of the coal industry in the Henan Province.
From November 1998 to February 2004, he served as the deputy director of the
Research Center of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From February
2004 to February 2007, he was the deputy director of the Research Center of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From February 2007 to December
2008, he was the deputy director of the Design and Research Institute of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December 2008 to August
2010, he was the deputy director of the Design and Research Institute of
the Company. Since August 2010, he has been the director of the Design
and Research Institute of the Company. Since February 2015, he has been a
supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Rong (/& %), aged 44, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhou
is an engineer. He graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering
and technology from Zhengzhou University of Light Industry in July 1996. He
graduated from Zhengzhou University majoring in mechanical engineering and
obtained a master’s degree in engineering in June 2007. He served as the
deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of electroplating of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Company from April 2002 to August 2006. From August
2006 to December 2007, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of
electroplating of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December
2007 to August 2009, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of installation
of the Company. From August 2009 to February 2010, he was the deputy head
of the Marketing and Sales Department of the Company. From February 2010
to February 2011, he was the plant manager of the sub-plant of electroplating
of the Company. From February 2011 to April 2011, he was the deputy plant
manager of the plant of oil tanks and the plant manager of the sub-plant of
electroplating of the Company. From April 2011 to February 2016, he was
the head of the supply department of the Company. Since February 2015, he
has been a supervisor of the Company. Since February 2016, he has been an
assistant to chief financial officer of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Zhigiang (3R % 3®), aged 56, is a Supervisor of the Company.
From September 1988 to July 1991, Mr. Zhang studied economics and
management through a correspondence course at the Correspondence Institute
of the Party School of the Henan Province Committee of Chinese Communist
Party and obtained a college diploma; from August 2003 to December 2005,
he studied at the Party School of the Central Committee of Chinese Communist
Party and obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics and management. From
September 1981 to March 1985, he was an operator at workshop No. 1 of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From March 1985 to November
1989, he was the secretary of the Workshop No. 1 of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory Committee of the Chinese Communist Youth League. From
November 1989 to June 1994, he was the objectives management officer of
the Office of Total Quality Management of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory; from June 1994 to November 1996, he was a secretary of the Office
of the Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory Committee of the Chinese
Communist Party. From November 1996 to May 1998, he served as the division
head of Project Developments Department of Diversified Business Corporation of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 1998 to October 2000,
he was the deputy head of the Publicity and United Front Work Department
and the chief editor of the factory newsletter; from October 2000 to May 2002,
he was the head of the Publicity and United Front Work Department and the
Organization Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory; from
May 2002 to February 2005, he was the head of the Execution Department
of the Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company Committee of the Chinese
Communist Party, of which he was a member during the period. From February
2005 to February 2010, he was the secretary to branch Party Committee of the
sub-plant of processing of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Company. From
February 2010 to July 2011, he was the deputy head of the General Office of
the Company and the vice chairman of the Labor Union of the Company. From
July 2011 to September 2011, he was the head of the security department
of the Company. From September 2011 to February 2015, he has been the
head of the General Administration Division of the Company. From July 2012 to
February 2015, he has been the vice secretary to the Disciplinary Commission
and vice chairman of Labor Union of the Company. Since June 2014, he has
been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Ni Heping (% 1), aged 51, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Ni
joined the Group in 1987, and was appointed as the supervisor in December
2008 and was re-elected on 28 February 2012 and 10 February 2015. Mr. Ni
has held various positions with the Company and its predecessor companies,
including as the deputy director of the first research institute of, and a designer,
the head of design office and the deputy director of the research institute of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. He was also the director of the
research institute of and the dean of the design and research institute of ZCMM.
He is presently the deputy general engineer of design and the director of the
general office of the technology centre of the Company. Since February 2015,
he has been an assistant to general manager. Mr. Ni obtained a master’s
degree in engineering from China University of Mining and Technology in June
2007 and is a senior engineer.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015 BB M A& A 5 B % 1) B BR A &) 20154 3 29

EEuwm)

RAEMAE 565 MAARAIESE - RAEER
—NN\NEFENA——AN—FtA  EITEEZTERK
BRIGEEREXEE  EERAZER  ZTT=FN
A—ZZERFTZA  ERRERKEEEEXE
B EERARERE —AWN\—FhA-——NAN\RF=
B ENEREEEE I ERET  —ANRF =R~
— W NANFE+—F - BN R — B R B
BEEL: N \NF+—A—-—hLhBmEXA B
MEEERREEREEFNRATHHBEEZEERS
—AAEERA ——ANARE+T—F - BB IR
ERWE  —hAARE+—A-——hAN\ERA - N
BB ECERARBERRERE  —AANE
AA-ZZZTZF+A - BINEREERRE E5EEE
HERMBER —STTF+A-ZZT=-FHA -
BN S SRS R R AR — T
—FRA-—ZTTRF R PMNEEERRERERE
EAREZTIESHNE(HEEEEZZE) : —TTRHF
ZR-ZZ—ZF A BINERRREEERETA
AN IOMESHESL: _ T TFE_f——F——
FLA - ARRRAREEIRER AR TGRIERF
ZE——FEA-ZF——FNA  ARFLEREE
Ik —E——ENAE_Z—RE_R - ARAEE
EERERE: T —FtAZ-T—AF=-F AR
A ZRIER - TgEIEF  —T—NERAZES K
NAEIEEE o

BMFEE 515 BRAEARAESE - flAEER
—ANEEMAREER RS NFE+ - AREETA
B R T —F-AZTNAEZZT—AF_A
THEEE - REEGRAR R MATS QA H T2 ER
7 BIEREDIN AR R EE — TR FTBIAT R ~ TAZEFTR
B RRAHEIE - BIFTE o BN BT T FT AT
AR R  RIRRETAAGRRIATIR
IR DRAEER - FR_T—AF_AZESE
EARRFHBEIREYEET - RAERZTZTLF AR
FEREASESTIRESETEMN  WESH T -



\Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management % » EERSREEE

Supervisors (Continued)

Ms. Xu Mingkai (B 8]l), aged 51, is a Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Xu
joined the Group in 1984, and was appointed as the supervisor in April 2011
and was re-elected on 28 February 2012 and 10 February 2015. She has held
various positions with the Company and its predecessor companies, including as
a section member of quality office, a senior section member of publicity division
of Communist Youth League Committee, a senior section member of the office,
the deputy head of family planning office, the deputy head of corporate planning
department and the deputy director of the office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory, as well as the deputy director and the director of the office
of ZCMM. She was also the director of the general office and the director of the
human resource department of the Company. She is presently the director of
the safety and environmental protection department of the Company. Ms. Xu
graduated in economics and management through a correspondence course
at the Correspondence Institute of the Party School of the Central Committee of
C.P.C. (Fr #£ b SR B A% b 3% E2B5%) in December 2005.

Mr. Zhang Jun (3% &), aged 52, is a Supervisor of the Company. In November
1981, Mr. Zhang started to serve at Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From 1981 to 2003, he served as a worker and dispatcher at the sub-plant of
processing of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From January 2004
to February 2007, he worked at the general office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Company. From March 2007 to December 2008, he served as the
head of the reception section of the general office of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Company. From January 2009 to April 2012, he was the head of
the reception section of the general office of the Company. From May 2012 to
February 2014, he was the head of the reception section of the Company and
head of the Beijing office of the Company. From March 2014 to February 2016,
he was deputy head of general office of the Company. From March 2015 to
date, he has been the vice chairman of the labour union of the Company. From
February 2016 to date, he has been head of general office of the Company.
Mr. Zhang Jun graduated from Henan University of Finance and Economics (JA]
BT 4 22055 in December 1997 with a diploma in industrial economics and
management.
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Senior Management SREEAE

Mr. Fu Zugang ({#8 ), aged 50, is a general manager of the Company. SHERELE - 505% - RARDRELIE - HEERER
Mr. Fu is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at TR e —AN\—FNALA-——ANREFLA HREIZ
Wuhan Technology College (&2 T 22F5%) (now known as Wuhan University of FRCREVEIBTI RS )EEEFEE  BTEE B4
Technology (22 T AE2)), majoring in casting and obtained a bachelor’s —NNRAFEA-—ZZZZTF LR - EEMEEERR
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to July 2000, he served as a technician, EEOMELRTE - B TIZAD - TH260 2T e
an assistant engineer, an engineer, a senior engineer, a team leader of B - BiTAR - HBBmEDE - P MEIRE - BE =
technology team, an assistant to the plant manager, a deputy plant manager ZEZFLA - -_F+ 7 - TEMNEEE R
and a plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Bk —EE-_F+A - —_ZTTXRF+—8  TEEE
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant WIexr —EEF+—A-——ZFT)\F+=-7"-
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002 to EEHEERMES  FlEgE: —TEEN\EFE+-A—=-F

November 2006, he was the chairman of labor union of ZCMM. From November ——FZ R AARAERIBKE 2 ——F A=
2006 to December 2008, he was a director and a deputy general manager T-RAF_A EARFES  BIRLE - —T—hHF
of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was a deputy general ZRAESERRARIBLIR o

manager of the Company. From February 2012 to February 2015, he was a
director and a deputy general manager of the Company. Since February 2015,
he has been the general manager of the Company.

Mr. Gao Youjin (= A&3f), aged 52, is a deputy general manager of the SEERE 525 MAALQFRALE - sk4ERS
Company. Mr. Gao is a senior engineer. From September 1981 to July 1985, HITIRED e —WN—FNAZE—NNRFLA - HEE
he studied at Jiaozuo Mining Institute (£ {ERE2££2F%) (now known as ¥ER(ITEETIAS)BUEHREEE  — L N\HF
Henan Polytechnic University), majoring in mining machinery. From July 1985 tAZE—NNREF+=A - BN BRI L 2 5 R
to December 1985, he was a technician of the sub-plant of installation of Mma s — W\ NF—BE2—hAN=ZF+t A - BMNEEE
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From January 1986 to July 1993, he WRIHFTERst8 - A= F - BIFFE - — A=
served as a designer, an officer and the deputy director of the research institute FNAZE—NANEENA - BINEEEBRETZHER
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August 1993 to August BlER : — W hWEFAAE-—ANARFE+—A  HMNE
1994, he was the deputy director of the planned sales division of Zhengzhou BBEIEERE—RIEE  BE: —LLAE+—
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From September 1994 to November 1995, AZE-ZTZF+ A BMNEEERBERE =
he served as the deputy director and the director of No.1 sales development EEFLAEZTT-_F1AH - GMNEERBRATE
division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November 1995 to B 22 -_F+AEZ_FTZEN\E+ - (FEPE
July 2000 and from July 2000 to October 2002, he served as the deputy plant BliaRIB A TIRED : —EEN\FE+-AES  T4AR
manager and the chief engineer of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, BIRIAALIB FR 4B TR2AD ©

respectively. From October 2002 to December 2008, he was the deputy general

manager and the chief engineer of ZCMM. Since December 2008, he has been

the deputy general manager and the chief engineer of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Minglin (3R %5 4%), aged 53, is a deputy general manager of the REAMIELE - 535% - MAALDRBIBLIE - s(REAERS
Company. Mr. Zhang is a senior engineer. From September 1979 to July 1983, HMIIREN c —NENFNAEZE—NAN=ZFLA ' #E
he studied at Huainan Mining Institute (YEES & 2 £ F5%), majoring in mining. BEBRFEBREY  —AN\=ZFENAZ—NAN\LF
From August 1983 to August 1987, he was a section member of Henan Coal NA AmEERBEREEARRE : — AN \EENAE
Mine Supply Company (7] & K 4 & 2 5]). From August 1987 to May —NARFRRA  THARKIEEIRE  flEER
1996, he worked as a section member, a deputy senior section member and a 8 FAERE: —NWAAFNAZE—NAAAEZA -
senior section member of Henan Coal Industrial Department. From August 1995 (SP5 102 B 28 AR SRS E T 200 7 P [ g E 4R 4%
to February 1996, he went to Zhenggiao Village, Huzu Town, Gushi County in MENEEIE: —AWNAAFRAZ—ANAEFERA -
Xinyang District to participate in the party construction in rural areas which was A EBHRHEATZELE  —ANNFRAZE=ZE
organized by Henan Province Committee of Chinese Communist Party. From TMEMA - ONEEREMAEDRAKE BEERD
May 1996 to May 1999, he was the deputy general manager of Henan Coal —EETF+AE_TENFE+—8  JTEEERIEE
Mine Supply Company. From May 1999 to April 2004, he served as the general EREFATMARKE  —TFNME+—AFS - (8K
manager and the secretary of the Party Committee of Henan Coal Mine Supply MR BB LRI o

Company. From October 2000 to November 2004, he served as the general

manager of Henan Coal Sales Company Limited (Al @& R ISEGRE

{E£/2a]). Since November 2004, he has been the deputy general manager of

ZCMM.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Fu Qi ({33), aged 46, is a deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. Fu is a senior engineer. From September 1988 to July 1992, he studied
at China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical design
and theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section member
of the first development division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December 1996,
he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first development
division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he was a section
officer and the deputy head of the planned sales division, the deputy head of
the marketing and sales department, and the deputy head of the sub-plant
of installation. From January 2006 to March 2008, he was the head of the
production and manufactory department. From April 2010 to February 2012,
he was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee of Huainan ZMJ
Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been the deputy
general manager of the Company.

Mr. Jia Hao (&%), aged 46, is a deputy general manager of the Company.
Mr. Jia graduated from University of Shanghai for Science and Technology
in 1991, majoring in mechanical engineering. In the 1990s, he worked at
Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical Scientific Research Institute of China
National Machinery Industry Corporation and was responsible for design and
research. He also worked at Parker Hannifin Motion & Control (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., a foreign company, and was responsible for sales. In April 2001,
he obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree
from China Europe International Business School. He then worked as the
general manger of the investment department of Salim Group (China) Company
Limited, a foreign company. In March 2006, he began to serve as the president
of Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited and a director of Shanghai Huili
Company Limited, both of which are the subsidiaries of Salim Group, a listed
company. Since March 2014, he has been the deputy general manager of the
Company.

Mr. Wang Yonggiang (£ 7k &), aged 44, is a deputy general manager of
the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Zhengzhou University and obtained
a master’s degree in mechanical engineering in June 2007. He started his
career in August 1993. From February 2003 to June 2007, he was the deputy
executive officer of hydraulic project center of ZCMM. From June 2007 to
December 2007, he served as full-time deputy executive officer of research
and development centre for hydraulic control of ZCMM. From December 2007
to February 2010, he was the executive officer of hydraulic project center of
the Company. From February 2010 to February 2014, he served as a manager
and secretary of the party branch of hydraulic control company. From February
2014 to February 2015, he was the head of human resources department of
the Company. Since February 2015, he has been the deputy general manager
of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Guo Desheng (3Bf&4), aged 54, is the chief financial officer of the
Company. Mr. Guo is a senior accountant. From February 1981 to October
1994, he was a section member of the finance division of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory. From October 1994 to October 2001 and from
October 2001 to October 2002, he was the deputy division head and the
division head of the finance division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory, respectively. From January 2002 to December 2008, he served as
head of the finance department of ZCMM. Since December 2008, he has been
the chief financial officer of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Haibin (3R33), aged 34, is a deputy general manager, the
secretary to the Board and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Zhang
graduated from China University of Mining and Technology and obtained a
bachelor’s degree in law in July 2005. From July 2005 to March 2007, he was
a secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From March 2007 to December
2008, he served as the chief secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From
December 2008 to March 2010, he was the chief secretary of the general
office of the Company. From March 2010 to September 2010, he served as an
assistant to the head of the general office of the Company. From September
2010 to January 2012, he served as the deputy head of capital operation
department and representative for securities affairs of the Company. From
January 2012 to February 2015, he was the head of general office, head of
capital operation department and representative for securities affairs of the
Company. From July 2012 to February 2015, he was the head of division
of party and masses’ affairs. Since February 2015, he has been the deputy
general manager and secretary to the Board of the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. Zhang Haibin is the Company Secretary. Please see “— Senior Management”
of this section for his biography.

Ms. Chan Yin Wah (BR # %), aged 40, is the assistant to the Company
Secretary. Ms. Chan is an Associate Director of SW Corporate Services
Group Limited. She has over 17 years of professional experience in handling
the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters for listed
companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various international professional
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree
in economics and a master’s degree in professional accounting. She is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. She is also
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices. The Board believes that
effective and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential to the
development of the Group and can safeguard and enhance the interests of the
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Review Period”), the
Company has complied with the requirements in the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and there was no material
deviation from such code.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board of the Company is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Company in a responsible and effective manner; responsible for execution of the
resolutions passed at general meetings; deciding on the Company’s operating
plans, investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units; preparing the Company’s annual financial budgets, final accounts and
profit distribution plans; and appointing members of its senior management.
Meanwhile, the Board has established four special committees under the
Board, namely, the Strategy Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration and Assessment Committee, and these Board
committees are assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of
reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors of the Company have carried out their duties in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders at
all times.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, of which at least include the following:

e {0 develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management;

e {0 review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;
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Board of Directors (Continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board (continued)

e 1o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board of the Company will convene at least four regular meetings each
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve
the active participation, either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written
notice should be sent to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the
regular Board meeting. For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written
notice should be sent to all the Directors and Supervisors four days prior to the
meeting. When an extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early
as possible in case of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given
by telephone or in other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener
makes necessary explanations at the meeting. A written meeting notice shall at
least include the subject matters for discussion and the meeting information as
necessary for the Directors to make well-informed decisions.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is held. The participating Directors shall sign
the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorize them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the name; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.

During the Review Period, the Board held 8 meetings on 10 February 2015,
16 February 2015, 17 March 2015, 17 April 2015, 24 April 2015, 21 August
2015, 26 October 2015 and 24 December 2015 respectively.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

Attendances of meetings by Directors during the Review Period are set out
below:

(1)

The first meeting of the third session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 10 February 2015. There were nine Directors eligible
for attending the meeting and all of them attended the Meeting.

The second meeting of the third session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 16 February 2015. There were nine Directors eligible
for attending the meeting and all of them attended the Meeting.

The third meeting of the third session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 17 March 2015. There were nine Directors eligible
for attending the meeting and all of them attended the Meeting.

The fourth meeting of the third session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 17 April 2015. There were nine Directors eligible for
attending the meeting and all of them attended the Meeting.

The fifth meeting of the third session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 24 April 2015. There were nine Directors eligible for
attending the meeting and all of them attended the Meeting.

The sixth meeting of the third session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 21 August 2015. There were nine Directors eligible
for attending the meeting and all of them attended the Meeting.

The seventh meeting of the third session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 26 October 2015. There were nine Directors eligible
for attending the meeting and all of them attended the Meeting.

The eighth meeting of the third session of the Board was held in the
Conference Room on 24 December 2015. There were nine Directors
eligible for attending the meeting and all of them attended the Meeting.
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Board of Directors (Continued) EEgn)
Shareholder’s Meetings &N

During the Review Period, the Company held two general mestings in total, part WEHA - ARREBET2ARRAL - HBHES
of the Directors, supervisors and senior management had attended the general EENSREBABEETRERE - U TN AEEHE

meetings, in which records of the Directors are as follow: REARGER
Number of general

meetings required to be Number of general
Name attended meetings attended
"E EHERRASIE BEHEERRASXH
Mr. Jiao Chengyao AR L 2 2
Mr. Xiang Jiayu BEGE 2 2
Mr. Wang Xinying FHasst 2 1
Mr. Guo Haofeng Rk 1 1
Mr. Liu Qiang 2log 1 1
Ms. Liu Yao Rzt 2 2
Mr. Jiang Hua TTEERE 1 1
Mr. Lii Xudong TR S 4 1 1
Mr. Wu Guangming SRR%EE 1 0
Mr. Shao Chunsheng (resigned in February 2015)  BRZ 4 56 4 (FA20154E2 A B¥1T) 1 1
Mr. Fu Zugang (resigned in February 2015) {THER S A (7R 20154F 2 A BEHE) 1 1
Mr. Gao Guoan (resigned in February 2015) BB A (7201542 A BHT) 1 1
Mr. Luo Jiamang (resigned in February 2015) SRR Bl St 4 (FR20155F2 A BHE) 1 1
Mr. Li Bin (resigned in February 2015) RS0 A (201542 A BHT) 1 0

Board Composition EEEHK

During the Review Period, the Board of the Company consists of nine Directors, REEEHRE - AARIESEHMNBESMANK - HPEE
comprising five Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive hEPITES - MBELIFITES - ARRIEIFH
Directors. More than one-third of the members of the Board of the Company ~ TEFEEFEKEBBE=7102—AB - WTEFAH
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Executive Directors possess in- ~ AIEEMITREEEER - MBI IFRITESAGHEEDN
depth experience in coal mining equipment industry while the Independent K gt BEERLUBEETENG - REHR
Non-executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications in law or ~ PTETARRAL - BIYIFRITESKAE ARIEMF I TN
accounting or related financial management expertise. In accordance with the ARRERR ©

Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Independent Non-executive Directors

are explicitly identified in all corporate communications.

As at the date of this annual report, the members of the Board are: BEAFHRAEEENER

Executive Directors: Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu (Vice =~ #ITEH : %ﬁ%f‘ﬁ%(%%ﬁl‘ Fﬂ%?ﬁﬁ‘ﬁi&%@%?
Chairman), Mr. Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Mr. Guo Haofeng (Executive ) * THERE(RITESR) - LBREFEFITES)

Director) and Mr. Liu Qiang (Executive Director). MBREE(RITESE) o

Independent Non-executive Directors: Ms. Liu Yao, Mr. Jiang Hua, Mr. Li ~ BM3FHITES : Bl5eket - TERAE - FERAEM
Xudong and Mr. Wu Guangming. RFEAFLAE -

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the “Directors, Supervisors and %§§$WE§%M$¢$E[§$A %?ﬂ&%%&ﬁﬁj
Senior Management” section of this annual report. Save as disclosed in such ~ — = © B EEES - EEwHKE L HW IR
section, there is no other material relationship among the members of the Board M EARBAER(RIEHH - X5 - KEHH A E AR
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships). FARORAR) ©

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all the ~ AR FIREEAIELIFNTE FRESFRIBLIEHER
Independent Non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the Board RIEWER - EF SRR 2REEIIFNTESTR
considers that all of the four Independent Non-executive Directors meet the ~— EBERPT LR IS B MR E K -

independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
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Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. Mr. Jiao Chengyao is
the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Fu Zugang is the General Manager. The
Chairman is primarily responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and where
required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively. The General Manager
is delegated with the authority and responsibility to manage the Company’s
day-to-day business in all aspects effectively, implement major strategies and
coordinate the overall business operation.

Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for the system of internal control of the
Group (the Company and its subsidiaries) and is responsible for reviewing its
effectiveness.

During the Review Period, the Company has conducted reviews on the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group in accordance with
the Code Provisions. The reviews covered the financial, operational, compliance
control and risk management functions of the Company and included reviewing
of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions.

The Board actively engages in the establishment of effective internal control
systems, as well as the implementation and supervision of internal control.
The Board is ultimately responsible for the internal control, risk management
and compliance management of the Company. It makes decisions on internal
control, risk management and compliance policies and reviews the effectiveness
of such system, supervises the design, implementation and monitoring by the
management of risk management and internal control system, approves the
annual internal control evaluation report, risk evaluation report and compliance
report, reviews accounting and internal audit etc.

The Board continually supervises the risk management and internal control
system of the Company. In 2015, the Board reviewed the risk management and
internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries, including financial
control, operations control and compliance control etc.

In 2015, the Company continued to strengthen the establishment of the internal
control system, standardized the management of rights and duties, launched
the standardization of work flow, comprehensively streamlined the internal
control risk points and improved the internal control measures, strengthened the
dynamic monitoring of risks, and pushed forward the application of the internal
control work management system, risk indicator monitoring and alert system.
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Directors
Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as
the articles of association. In accordance with Article 144 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Directors of the Company shall be elected or
replaced at the general meetings and the terms of office of all directors (including
executive directors and independent non-executive directors) will be three years.
Upon the expiry of the terms, the Directors will be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment. Subject to the compliance with relevant laws and administrative
regulations, the general meeting may dismiss any Director during his/her service
term by way of an ordinary resolution (except that any claim for compensation
pursuant to any contract shall not be prejudiced thereby).

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or updates on the relevant laws,
rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors and senior executives to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, companies
ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
From time to time, Directors are provided with written training materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be improved and
updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the Directors by
seminars and provision of training information. All the Directors have provided a
record of training they received to the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials and attended a training regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable
to the Directors.
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Directors (Continued)
Insurance for Directors

To mitigate the exposure to liabilities of the Directors, at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2013, the Company resolved to take out an insurance
plan at a total premium of not more than US$30 million for the directors,
supervisors and senior management to cover their liabilities (the “Liability
Insurance”) and confirmed that arrangements regarding the Liability Insurance
have been completed. The Liability Insurance covered the period from 19 July
2014 to 18 July 2015 and from 19 July 2015 to 18 July 2016.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors and the supervisors. The Company was informed
by Mr. Ni Heping, a supervisor of the Company, that his spouse had disposed
88,626 A shares of the Company in the open market on 6 February 2015,
which falls into the blackout period. Disclosure of interest under the Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance was made on 23 March 2015. Such
disposal of shares of the Company by Mr. Ni’s spouse is not in compliance with
Rules A.3.(a) and B.8 of the Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. After occurrence
of the incident, the Company immediately further reminded each of its directors
and supervisors in relation to their obligations not to deal in the securities of
the Company during the blackout period. The Company has also made specific
enquiry with all the directors and supervisors of the Company, and save as
disclosed above, they have confirmed their compliance with the Model Code
during the Review Period.

Emolument Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its directors, supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of the relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration
policy for directors, supervisors and senior management is based on the
principle of combining incentives and disciplines, and market adjustment and
governmental regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances, benefits
in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme contributions made on
their behalf.

During the Review Period, there was no arrangement under which a Director
has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.
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Directors (Continued)

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All Directors of the Company had committed their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four specialised committees, namely, the Strategy
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code.
These Board committees are assigned respective responsibilities according
to their terms of reference. The composition and main functions of these
specialised committees and their work during the Review Period are set out as
follows:

Strategy Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy Committee
comprise Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Wang Xinying,
Mr. Guo Haofeng and Mr. Wu Guangming.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are to study and
comment on our long-term development plans and significant investment
strategies, including: (i) reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies; (ii) reviewing and commenting on the Company’s significant capital
investment and financing proposals that require approval of the Board; (iii)
reviewing and commenting on the significant capital expenditure and assets
management projects that require approval of the Board; and (iv) exercising
other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.

The Strategy Committee convened 1 meeting during the year, with full
attendance of all members of the Strategy Committee.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit Committee
comprise Mr. Li Xudong (Chairman), Ms. Liu Yao and Mr. Jiang Hua, all of
whom are the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the Company’s financial reporting and auditing work, including:
(i) proposing appointment and replacement of the Company’s independent
auditors; (ii) supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies and their
implementation, supervising the financial statements and annual reports and
accounts of the Company, and reviewing material opinions regarding financial
reporting as stated in financial statements and reports; (iii) coordinating the
communication between our internal audit department and the independent
auditors; (iv) reviewing the Company’s financial information and disclosure of
such information; (v) reviewing the Company’s internal control systems and
auditing on the material connected or related party transactions; (vi) reviewing
the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems and to evaluate whether there is material failure or weakness in the
risk management and internal control of the Company; (vii) discussing the risk
management and internal control system with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have effective systems; (viii) considering
major investigation findings on risk management and internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s response
to these findings; (ix) evaluating the changes in the nature and extent of
significance of the material risks the Company faces after the previous year
and its ability in response to the changes in the business and the changes in
external environment; and (x) exercising other functions and duties as authorized
by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee convened 4 meetings during year 2015, with full
attendance of all members of the committee:

(M

On 17 March 2015, the Audit Committee convened the 2015 first
meeting, and considered and approved the Proposal on 2014 Audited
Domestic and QOverseas Financial Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2014 Annual Report
on A Shares and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2014 Results Announcement of
H Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
and Authorising the Chairman of the Company to Sign and Announce 2014
Annual Report of the Company’s H Shares, the Proposal on the Report on
Internal Control Assessment for 2014, the Proposal on the Audit Report
on Internal Control for 2014, the Proposal on the Appointment of External
Audit Institution for 2015 and Payment for the Auditing Fee for 2014
and the Proposal on the 2014 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions;

On 24 April 2015, the Audit Committee convened the 2015 second
meeting, and considered and approved the Proposal on the 2015 First
Quarterly Report and Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited;

On 21 August 2015, the Audit Committee convened the 2015 third
meeting, and considered and approved the Proposal on the 2015
Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2015 Interim Report
on A Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
and the Proposal on 2015 Interim Results Announcement of H Shares and
2015 Interim Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited;

On 26 October 2015, the Audit Committee convened the 2015 fourth
meeting, and considered and approved the Proposal on the 2015 Third
Quarterly Report on A Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprise Mr. Jiang Hua (Chairman), Mr. Liu Qiang and Ms. Liu Yao. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director and
is comprised of a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) advise
on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the position of
the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding structure; (ii)
formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the Company’s
directors and management personnel; (i) search for qualified candidates of
directors and management personnel; (iv) review the qualifications and other
credentials of the candidates of directors and management personnel; (v)
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; (vi) make
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
directors; and (vii) exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the
Board.

The Nomination Committee convened one meeting on 16 February 2015 during
the year, with full attendance of all members of the committee. The meeting
considered and approved the Proposal on the Appointment of the General
Manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited,
the Proposal on the Appointment of the Deputy General Manager and Chief
Financial Officer of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited,
and the Proposal on the Appointment of the Secretary to the Board and the
Representative for Securities Affairs of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited.

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprise Mr. Wu Guangming (Chairman), Mr. Wang
Xinying and Ms. Liu Yao. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee
is chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director and is comprised of a
majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to: (i) formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes
for the Company’s directors and management personnel; (i) evaluate the
performance of the Company’s directors and management personnel and
assess the appropriate remuneration package for such directors and officers;
(iii) supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and (iv)
exercise other functions and duties as authorized by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee convened one meeting on
17 March 2015 during the year, with full attendance of all members of
the committee. The meeting considered and approved the Proposal on the
Remuneration of the Executive Directors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on the Remuneration of the Independent
Directors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and the
Proposal on the Remuneration of the Professional Managers of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

Pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31

December 2015 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB’000)

1

18 I§

=410

EEgEM
MEEREZEE W)

FMRERZEENAFE_T-RE=A+tHAM
TIREH  FIEEZZEE@ZBHE2ELF - T2
WiEE T AR EN R EER N ER R RRNITE
EHHER) (RGN EEEREER N AR AR
BB R H IR ) MR BN AR A S [ A )
PRARIBEEIE AFBIRRER) -

RIEC R EATAIEBSETANY  BE-S 15
+= A=+ B FEERERA B T IS R
SR -

Number of individuals

FHMARNABARETIT) A
500-750 7
750-1,000 6
1,000-1,250 0
Board Diversity Policy BEESZnbBER
Purpose T

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates of the Company’s directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company annually.
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Board Diversity Policy (continued)
Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the implementation of Board
Diversity Policy.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and BDO CHINA SHU
LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic
auditors of the Company, respectively. Details of fees paid or payable to the
auditors by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:

B2t E ®)
B2 K [ 3R

REZEGEFRONEFEEZLCBEAAERK @ A&
REEFLILLBENIIT -

o B4 B 57 A

ARBEDHIEBEE » R SFRITMILES S
EDETSAT (IR E B A B IE AR R BN BB AR AR
e BE_T—RAFT_A=1T—HILFE  A£EE
NN ERFBNT

Services rendered Fees
Frig it BR 3 WESEE
(RMB’000)

(AR¥EETIT)

2015 annual audit 2015 EEZ 2,980
Non-audit services FEEAZ RS 1,000
Total Bt 3,980

Company Secretary NEME

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Zhang Haibin (“Mr. Zhang”),
who also acts as the board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.

In addition, the Company appointed Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) as the
assistant to the company secretary, to work closely with Mr. Zhang and to
provide assistance to Mr. Zhang to discharge his duties and responsibilities as
company secretary such as organizing meetings of the Board and meetings
of holders of the H Shares and in gaining the relevant experience as required
under Rule 3.28 of Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan is an associate
director of a corporate service provider, SW Corporate Services Group Limited.
The primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Zhang, whom Ms,
Chan will contact on matters relating to corporate governance, the Listing Rules
of Hong Kong as well as other laws and regulations which are relevant to the
Company and other affairs of the Company.

Mr. Zhang and Ms. Chan have taken 16 hours and not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the reporting period, respectively.
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Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information. Information of the Company is communicated to shareholders
mainly through the Company’s corporate communications including interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars, etc. These publications
are sent to the shareholders in a timely manner and are also available on the
website of the Company (http://www.zzmj.com). The means of communication
between the Company and the shareholders also include general meetings,
analysts meetings or seminars, one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation,
advertisements, media interviews and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.

Shareholders’ Rights

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, shareholder(s)
individually or in aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the
Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board to propose
an extraordinary general meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance
with laws, administrative regulations, rules and the articles of association of the
Company, make a response in writing on whether or not it agrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, within ten days upon receipt of such requisition.
If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
after the Board resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the
extraordinary general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving
the request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the
Company’s issued shares have the right to propose the Board of Supervisors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board
of Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original requests
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for 90 consecutive days have the right to
convene and preside over the meeting on their own. The requisitionists shall
be compensated by the Company for any reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists by reason of failure by the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors to duly convene a meeting, and any sum so compensated shall be
set-off against sums owed by the Company to the defaulting Directors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continueq)

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or in aggregate
holding 3% or above of the Company’s issued shares shall have the right
to submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or jointly in
aggregate holding 3% or above of the Company’s issued shares can submit the
temporary proposal to the convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations consultant of the Company:

Strategic Development Division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

Address: No. 167 (Nan San Huan), 9th Street
Econ-Tech Development Zone
Zhengzhou
Henan Province
PRC

Telephone: (86371) 6789 1017

Fax: (86371) 6789 1100

Postal Code: 450016

During the Review Period, following the consideration and approval to the
amendments to the constitutional documents of the Company as set out below
at the annual general meeting held on 5 June 2015, Article 5 of the Articles of
Association has been amended as follows:

“Address of the Company: No. 167, 9th Street Econ-Tech Development Zone,

Zhengzhou

Post Code: 450016

Telephone Number;  +86-371-67891026
Fax Number: +86-371-67891000".

For details, please refer to the circular dated 20 April 2015, the announcement
dated 5 June 2015 and the Articles of Association of the Company uploaded to
the Stock Exchange’s website on 5 June 2015.

Save as the aforesaid, during the Review Period, there was no significant
change in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Board of Supervisors EEg
Composition of Board of Supervisors EEEHEK

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors composes of HEAFHRHE @ AARESeXNEHRTR @ HP4EHRK
seven members, four of whom are nominated by the shareholders and three are REMT  3ZHEERT - EEWMAHASFE - EmEa
nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of three B o

years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

The members of the Board of Supervisors are Mr. Li Chongging, Mr. Zhang BEEeXE A TEESE  RECRITE C BARLE -
Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni Heping, Ms. Xu Mingkai and BIRTESEE - RAFEE - RPS LT RRELE ©
Mr. Zhang Jun.

The biographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under section AARIBEERERBERIANATFRIES  EEhak
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Save BEE|—EF - BRZEMEEN  BEEeKE2HYT
as disclosed in that section, there is no any other material relationship among EAMEMENBRE -

members of the Board of Supervisors.

Duties of Board of Supervisors EEenlE

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and EESMREANSEE - WHETTE FHI8E
exercise the following powers in accordance with laws:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting o EEHERCRIUMNARTHREETEZILIRS

written opinions regarding the same; EHEZER

e examining the finance affairs of the Company; o MEBENFIE

e monitoring of the performance of duties of Directors and senior o HER . aREBEEABRTARIBGNITA#ETE
management, and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior B HWERERE  TTECER - ARERHEREKX
management who have violated the laws, administrative regulations and ERFENEE SREBAERHERNEE

Articles of Association or resolutions of the general meeting;

e demanding for correction in the event of any damage to the interests of the e EEF  SATEABNITAEEZEQTMNFEE -
Company caused by Directors or senior management; TREE SREBAB FULILE

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening o REFAHBERREAS  EEFSTEIKARE)
and chairing of general meetings in the event of the Board having failed to REMBEMEFRERAEHESEEMEHRE
perform its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to the Reg
Company Law (2 F13);

e proposing motions to general meetings; o MAREAGIREIESR
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Board of Supervisors (Continued)

Duties of Board of Supervisors (Continued)

Exemn

ExefBEw

liaising with Directors on behalf of the Company and instituting legal
proceedings against Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 152 of the Company Law;

in case of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company identified,
to investigate and if necessary, to engage professional institutions such
as accountants or law firms to assist in its work at the expense of the
Company;

reviewing the financial report, operation report and profit distribution plan to
be submitted by the Board to the general meetings; and may, in the name
of the Company, appoint a certified public accountant or a qualified auditor
to re-examine such documents if a suspicious item was identified;

exercising other duties and powers specified in the articles of association of
the Company.

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors held 5 meetings.
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Report of the Board of Directors EEE&H & ZE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, there were no significant changes in the nature of the principal
activities of the Group.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the reporting period, to the knowledge of the Company, the Group
had complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a material
impact on the business of the Group in all material aspects and there were no
circumstances of material breach or non-compliance of applicable laws and
regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavours to achieve long-term sustainable development in the
environment and community where the Group operates. The Group actively
contribute to the community and engage in public welfare activities in addition
to striving for good performance to foster credibility and build a good corporate
image. Besides, the Group will act in an environmentally responsible way
and strive to comply with the relevant environmental laws and regulations. In
addition, the Group also adopts effective measures to achieve efficient utilisation
of resources and reduce wastage and utility savings.

Business Review

Please refer to the section of Management Discussion and Analysis. The section
of Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Report of the Board
of Directors.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the
financial statements on pages 70 to 163 of this annual report.

Relevant resolution has been passed at a meeting of the Board held on 4
March 2016, and the Board proposed the payment of a final dividend (the
“Dividend”) of RMBO.08 per 10 shares for the year ended 31 December 2015,
totalling approximately RMB12,968,976. If the proposal in relation to the profit
distribution is approved by the shareholders at the 2015 annual general meeting
to be held on 13 June 2016 (the “2015 Annual General Meeting”), the Final
Dividend for H Shares of the Company will be distributed on or before 15 August
2016.
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Report of the Board of Directors EE S HEE

Results and Dividends (Continued)

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (Fh & A R £ FNE
EEFTSRE) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the tax
rate of the enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident
enterprise deriving from the PRC is 10%. For this purpose, any H Shares
registered under the name of non-individual enterprise, including the H Shares
registered under the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or
trustees, or other organizations or entities, shall be deemed as shares held
by non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined under the EIT Law). The
Company will distribute the Final Dividend to those non-resident enterprise
shareholders subject to a deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and
paid by the Company on their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the EIT Law) which has been legally
incorporated in the PRC or which was established pursuant to the laws of
foreign countries (regions) but has established effective administrative entities in
the PRC, and whose name appears on the Company’s H Share register should
deliver a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished
by a qualified PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm issuing the
opinion affixed thereon) and relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited in due course, if they do not wish to have the 10%
enterprise income tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of the Circular SAT No.[1993] 045 (787 BRI %3 2£[1993] 04555
X RE LB BEAPTS TS HRER) AN (the “Notice”) issued
by the State Administration of Taxation on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be
distributed by the PRC non-foreign invested enterprise which has issued shares
in Hong Kong to the overseas resident individual shareholders, is subject to the
individual income tax with a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates
for respective overseas resident individual shareholders may vary depending
on the relevant tax agreements between the countries of their residence and
Mainland China. Thus, 10% personal income tax will be withheld from the
Dividend payable to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose names
appear on the H Share register of members of the Company on the Record Date,
unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation regulations, taxation agreements
or the Notice.

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the status of the shareholders or any disputes over
the mechanism of withholding.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any dividends.
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Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading JERBEREEFNESEEH

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and HNE BN ES (BREEMEAN)KE LFES
individuals) investing in the A shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai RGFAANEIANERE(TERE]) - HRBAFEHA
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed ATABTREEFEDEEEARAR LIS AAIRRE
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities BEFBEAERPUARBIRE « KABIZEB10%MT R
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominee RINFTER > WRTEFHSEBEIIENMER - YE
holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes at the RimisEE R BREMERBWER B EA{EB s
rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the tax authorities for F2 AT BT 5E AR TE A BAL R P AS BB T10%H) - B
the withholding. For investors of Northbound Trading who are tax residents of FREARIABITREARIIRFRBA - MARAE
other countries and whose country of domicile is a country which has entered ERSKEREZESHKRREFENRG - TS
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of lower than 10%, A& - RO BB SRR U5 T B R 5T B A FE 4R
those enterprises and individuals may, or may entrust a withholding agent to, TR ZFE T OAREL -

apply to the competent tax authorities for the entitlement of the rate under such

tax treaty. Upon approval by the tax authorities, the paid amount in excess of the

tax payable based on the tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other ERBIREERESRA - R MRk B ERERH
arrangements for the investors of Northbound Trading will be the same as those BN AIAMRARER — 3K -
for the holders of A shares of the Company.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading BREREEINEIEEH

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (including enterprises and HN EBBEHFRSHMEEE (BREGEMEARERS
individuals) investing in the H shares of the Company listed on the Hong Kong BT AN A RIHIRAR = ([BRE ) - A AR EREA
Stock Exchange (the “Southbound Trading’), the Company will in due BEEAFECEEARETAR LSS RARTCERA
course enter into the Agreement on Distribution of Cash Dividends of H shares HIRIREIR A FREHZ)  PRELHECLEEGR
for Southbound Trading (% B&:EHAZ A% =I5 & 41 7R 32177 3%) with the NR EBDAREEBRRHINIREE BEFAB AR
Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation AARNRERIRSAF > WBAHELEERRBIRES
Limited, pursuant to which, the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository AR AEEEBHR I IR E & -

and Clearing Corporation Limited, as the nominee of the holders of H shares for

Southbound Trading, will receive all cash dividends distributed by the Company

and distribute the cash dividends to the relevant investors of H shares of

Southbound Trading through its depositary and clearing system.

The cash dividends for the investors of H shares of Southbound Trading will BRGBHRAR R IR A B IR S A FAARKIRE - BIR
be paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Notice on CEREBIREMS R 5 B0 B H A 208 B SR
the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shanghai-Hong Kong REBAN (B FL[20141815%) YAV ARE « EIAHE AR
Stock Connect (B BEBREMISR 5 E M G BEHHEBEH BERBERBIRE T BN EMHREGA R BAT
W B #38 %0) (Caishui [2014] No. 81), for dividends received by domestic F - HEE A Bl ER20% M0 B RACHE A BTIS R © it
investors from investing in H shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange BAREESRBESBRRERBH AT L HIREERE
through Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the company of such H shares B BATF TS - LERREAREERT - HIRABIE A
shall withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of R EE NI BALRIFTSRR - BN RED
the investors. For dividends received by domestic securities investment funds ¥ BTN -

from investing in H shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through

Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as that

for individual investors. The company of such H shares will not withhold and

pay the income tax of dividends for domestic enterprise investors and those

domestic enterprise investors shall report and pay the relevant tax themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other B
arrangements for the investors of Southbound Trading will be the same as those £
for the holders of H shares of the Company.

PR EEREELA - REATIKE B SREZH
AN A HA AR — 2
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Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offer on the Stock
Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2012 and the net proceeds were HK$2,155.55 million after
deducting the relevant expenses. During the Review Period, save as described
in the announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the
update on the use of proceeds, the use of proceeds was in line with the usage
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 47 to the financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not adopted any share option scheme.

Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 33.60% of the
Group’s total sales while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 12.49% of the Group’s total sales. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 24.56% of the Group’s total
purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 9.44% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates
or substantial shareholders who had more than 5% of the issued share capital
of the Company has any equity interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

The Group maintains steady development relationship with each of the
customers and suppliers. The business of the Group does not rely on any
individual customer or supplier which may cause any material impact on the
Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2015, details of movements in property, plant
and equipment and land use rights during the year are set out in notes 19 and
20 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company

During the Review Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any shares of the Company.

EBRFE R ARBRATSHRENER

AKAGHER —E——F+ A RABEAEBIH LT &
HIBRHEEE R - FTBRIBFREA2,155.558 & 87T
REIEEERE - AR FR201443 A31 B FrfEM TS 30
BR®BZEHNDNERATIN - A RQBFTEFIEMFE B
AHBREBBENFEAS -

it ta

AARRAEEREE—T—AF+_A=+—HIEF
%%ﬁ1@@%%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁé%é@@ﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ
547 ©
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(R B R HE38

BEBERE

ARARRRIERRF B ARG EMRE AR R R MARE
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BT E
AR T R E R R B) -

ITRHEBREF

REZE-ZT-—AF+-A=+—HBILtEE KEERK
B E(REE ARG AN E BB EE8433.60%  AE
BEeAEFPREGEERANEANEBREETEL12.49% o
RBE-Z—HE+-_A=+t—HItEE A&£HH
KA P (R BB 4R R AN S B AR ER BB 5B 4924.56% » T
AEEFAHERERRBHAIGEAEELRERELY
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Equity-Linked Agreement PR S 70

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries REE2015F12A31 B IEFE - ANAF) LM R a &
neither entered into any agreements in relation to equity-linked products nor FEMRELMIERIBE - MES RN E

participated in any arrangement to purchase equity-linked financial products. mRIE L °
Directors and Supervisors EERES

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the REEHEREEARREAHIENEETRESOT
Supervisors are:

Directors: TE
From 1 January 2015 to 9 February 2015: 201551 H1H £2015%2H9A1

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Shao Chunsheng (Executive EREHTEE FFELK) BBEE(HTEE  FF
Director, Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director, General Manager), Fu ER) BRE(HTEF  BAFE)  MER(HTE
Zugang (Executive Director, Deputy General Manager), Wang Xinying (Executive F - BIAEAEFE) - TR (ITEFE - FIBAAHE) - 3,
Director, Deputy General Manager), Li Bin (Independent Non-executive Director), (BUHBTEE)  aBR(BUIFNTESE) - BBREE
Gao Guoan (Independent Non-executive Director), Luo Jiamang (Independent (BIHRTEE)  BNE(BLIFNTESE)
Non-executive Director), Liu Yao (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 10 February 2015 to 15 February 2015: 201528108 £2015F2 8158 :

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director, ERE(HITEER FELK) NEXWHTEE  F5/F
Vice Chairman, General Manager), Wang Xinying (Executive Director, Deputy FR - MBIEHE) TS (NTEF - 5485 HE) 2
General Manager), Guo Haofeng (Executive Director, Deputy General Manager), W (H7TEE - GIBATHE) - B8 (MTEFE) - BI=0FH
Liu Qiang (Executive Director), Liu Yao (Independent Non-executive Director), VIHRTEE)  IE(BUHNTEE)  FREL(EL
Jiang Hua (Independent Non-executive Director), Li Xudong (Independent Non- FHHITEE) RIACBEVIHHTESE)

executive Director), Wu Guangming (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 16 February 2015 to the date of this report: 2015F 216 EARKER ¢

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director, Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director, BREZE(HITEEF EFR) MEARBATEE  FZ
Vice Chairman), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Guo Haofeng (Executive ER) THERHITEF) BREHTEE) - 258
Director), Liu Qiang (Executive Director), Liu Yao (Independent Non-executive ($177H) BE(BUIHTEE)  STEBYIHH
Director), Jiang Hua (Independent Non-executive Director), Li Xudong TEE)  FREZ(BVIHTESE) RNAOFT7IEH
(Independent Non-executive Director), Wu Guangming (Independent Non- 7TEE)

executive Director)

Supervisors: S

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors are: RO ESRREEARE A BHIENESHOT -

From 1 January 2015 to 9 February 2015: 20151 A1 H £2015%289A

Mr. Wang Tiehan, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Ding Hui, Mr. Lv Yu, Mr. Ni Heping, FHPELLE - RERSEA - THEEE - 2L - R
Mr. Jia Jingcheng, Ms. Xu Mingkai Tk BERIBSAAE - BT

From 10 February 2015 to 17 January 2016: 201552 5100 £201651 8178 :

Mr. Li Chongging, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni FEESE  REREE - BREAE - BINEEE R
Heping, Mr. Jia Jingcheng, Ms. Xu Mingkai MESLE ESBEE - RPN
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Directors and Supervisors (Continued)
Supervisors: (Continued)
From 18 January 2016 to 25 February 2016:

Mr. Li Chongging, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni
Heping, Ms. Xu Mingkai

From 26 February 2016 to the date of this report:

Mr. Li Chongging, Mr. Zhang Zhigiang, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr. Liu Fuying, Mr. Ni
Heping, Ms. Xu Mingkai, Mr. Zhang Jun

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered
into or proposed to enter into any service contract with any member of the
Group other than contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended December 31, 2015.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Insurance for Directors
The Company has taken out valid insurance for the Directors.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Contracts

No contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange) in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to the
Company’s business and in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested in any way, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

At no time during the Review Period were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors,
the Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies under the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange as follows:

-~

EESRESBRERONES ZEF

REEEHRE  EREEREEREES GHREARNK
FFafEERSTEAEBREEARR RN REFE
EER - IARR] - BB AR REEFME AR R
RREMB AR ME2E IR BtEEREREITR
EfTEMEEERZ SRR -

EE EENRSTBRAERALQTR
HEBZENREZP 2ERZR KR

BEEMAN R_ZT-AF+_H=1t—H AREHX
B%  BERARASESTRABRARRIEEME
BOEE (EE R EE(ES MGG Hi - BRI
0 KB % A AR IECGE S R B R B FEXVEESET
K E8y #B A G AN A ME Z FreviEm SOk B (B
WRIBCE 7 M B R GIDE A B XM E (ERR A
Rt SORE) - SIRBCGES RS (§(H))5H 35216 A
NGO Pt ) B e M ek s POk B (B IR RIRECGES
KR FEODE A BRIR X MK E (F R (F A e &
KR BRBELETRAANLTRARNERETESFRS
HIREEST RIZB A AR A R R P s ORI

Approximate Approximate

percentage percentage

Director/ of the relevant of the total Long position/

Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of class of number of  Short position/
Name Chief executive Nature of interest shares shares shares % shares % Lending pool

LEEE

BE B BAERN (HROBEN HE %KES
®H BETHRAE B H#uEME ROERN RBOEE #YE50% BROEIL% TEHESNRE
Jiao Chengyao  Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,901,964 0.21 0.18  Long position
j=pEE= % EnEBA AR S
Xiang Jiayu Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,120 0.14 0.12  Long position
ENGH % EnEBA AR S
Wang Xinying Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,040 0.14 0.12  Long position
Fir& % EnEBA AR S
Guo Haofeng Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,226,720 0.16 0.14  Long position
HR1E % EnEBA AR S
Liu Qiang Director Beneficial owner A Share 11,500 0.00 0.00  Long position
258 % EnEBA AR S
Zhang Zhigiang  Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 600 0.00 0.00  Long position
R = EmEEA AR% S
Ni Heping Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 2,217,200 0.16 0.14  Long position
R A1F BE EnEBA AR S
Xu Mingkai Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 16,000 0.00 0.00  Long position
RAEAEL = EnEBA AR S
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations (ontinued)

B EENRETBRAERALTR
HABEENES D 2B RKA @

Approximate Approximate
percentage percentage
Director/ of the relevant of the total Long position/
Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of class of number of  Short position/
Name Chief executive Nature of interest shares shares shares % shares % Lending pool
1hHE
B BEE BRAERN EROEBHEN FE KE
®E BEITHRAE S #utMtE RGOSR ROBE #HAEIH% BAEIE% TEHEHORG
Zhou Rong Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 40,000 0.00 0.00  Long position
BES o EmBAA AR R
Liu Fuying Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 599,060 0.04 0.04  Long position
EilINE EE EmBAA AR R
Fu Zugang Chief Executive  Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.18 0.16  Long position
gL BE=iTHRAE EmEBA AR A
Interest of spouse A Share 239,840 0.02 0.02  Long position
BB A AR 5]
Gao Youjin Chief Executive  Beneficial owner A Share 2,380,000 017 0.15  Long position
[SE=g i BEmiTBRAE ZBREBA AR 5]
Zhang Minglin - Chief Executive ~ Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,040 0.14 0.12  Long position
SRARR BEmiTBRAE ZBREBA AR 5]
Wang Yonggiang Chief Executive  Beneficial owner A Share 54,500 0.00 0.00  Long position
F kg BEmiTBRAE ZBREBA AR 5]
Guo Desheng Chief Executive  Beneficial owner A Share 2,012,500 0.15 0.12  Long position
2hEA BEmiTBRAE BmEBA AR 5]
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the directors, E’%L‘Xﬁﬁ?&%%ﬁ\\ EC_ = £¢+ A=+—8" $
the supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short NAIZESE  BEEIARNTHRITHRAEHENETA
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position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in the SFO of Hong Kong) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are deemed to have); or were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Structure and Number of Shareholders

Details of the shareholders as recorded in the register of shareholders of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

‘Mﬂﬁﬁﬁawﬁl(E%ﬁ%%«ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁfﬂﬂﬂﬁE’Jﬂx
7 - D REF S - EAEAIRECGES KRR
1§IJ>>%XV*B%7&%8"* ARG AN R KB P RO R 2

KA (BRESELSEANERIAR)  IUREGE
%&,ﬁ B AR BI) 26 362 {5k A B A & 551 Pt i) B AL O
HEOKR - HRBB T ETRAAN LW ARESET

B30 5T RN G A F OB Sl
)
BREBRERAR

R-BE-—AF+=R=+—0 - KATRFAMALE
HIBRF BT -

Holders of A Shares AR ER 60,931
Holders of H Shares HAR % 58 101
Total number of shareholders R ER B 20 61,032




-~

Report of the Board of Directors EE S {EE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short TERERTAQTAERG - HER
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the R ERRKE

Company
BEEMA RZZE—RAF+-A=+—8  TIRE

(BE  RE2RBESTRABBRINKAR B NERRS
KRR D T - A RIBCGES KB R BEXVER 2

As at 31 December 2015, so far as the Directors were aware, the following
shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the M3DEAMERNNGIMERIAE + IRB(ESF L
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, ERGI)EIIRBL AR R BHETFR B M m 50%
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register kept by the =

(1) CSI Capital Management Limited directly held 22,402,600 shares in the H Shares
of the Company. CSI Capital Management Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CITIC Securities International Company Limited, which was wholly-owned by CITIC
Securities Company Limited. By virtue of the SFO, CITIC Securities International
Company Limited and CITIC Securities Company Limited were deemed to own
22,402,600 shares in the H Shares of the Company which were in the same block
directly held by CSI Capital Management Limited.

(2) Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. directly held 521,087,800 shares
in the A Shares of the Company. Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government. By virtue of the SFO, State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial
People’s Government is deemed to own 521,087,800 shares in the A Shares of the
Company which were in the same block directly held by Henan Machinery Investment
Group Co., Ltd..
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Company:
Approximate
percentage of  Approximate
the relevant  percentage of Long position/
Capacity/ Class of Number class of the total number Short position/
Name Nature of interest  shares of shares shares % of shares % Lending pool
hE R
BAERN (HROBEN HE %KES
LYt B ERHME ROERN ROBE #MAESL% BMAEILE% THEHORG
State-owned Assets Supervision  Beneficial owner A Share 521,087,800 37.82 32.14  Long position
and Administration Commission Zzs#H A AR% e
of Henan Provincial People’s
Government®
nEAaARBTEEEE
EEEEEEge
Henan Machinery Investment Beneficial owner A Share 521,087,800 37.82 32.14  Long position
Group Co., Ltd.” BEEBEBA AR R
AR ERESEE
BREFEAFR
National Council for Social Beneficial owner H Share 23,709,400 9.75 1.46  Long position
Security Fund EnEAA HA% e
2RMHEREEASEERS
CITIC Securities Company Interest of controlled  H Share 22,402,600 9.21 1.38  Long position
Limited® corporation HA% e
Eget OPE]
B R
CITIC Securities International Interest of controlled  H Share 22,402,600 9.21 1.38  Long position
Company Limited® __corporation HA% HE
SRR EE
B
CSI Capital Management Limited™  Beneficial owner H Share 22,402,600 9.21 1.38  Long position
BEmEA A H% e
Note: BIaE -

(1) CSI Capital Management Limited B #3315 22,402,60008 4%
‘A aJHA% » CSI Capital Management Limited ACITIC Securities
International Company Limited 2 & ff/& /A &)  CITIC Securities
Company Limited %% % /5 CITIC Securities International Company
Limited o 1R 5 7EH K EAE (I - CITIC Securities International
Company Limited &2 CITIC Securities Company Limited# 18 /£
¥ A fCS| Capital Management Limited B #2455 A — #t
22,402,600/ 7 A FIHAR

Q TEEREEREESBERETRANEERSSA
521,087 ,800/% AN A AIARR o MBI ESEAR
ETEARAETEEARBTEEEEEREEZE S

2EMBRA - REBEEZRAEED

A ARR

NEBEEEREEE B SWRERES hn Mg
B EEBBREMTAREEFER 521,087,800

PR A RIARL
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Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
a total contribution of RMB55.7 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income. Further information about the
Group’s pension scheme is set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance Code

During the Review Period, save as the deviation disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report set out in the annual report of last year, the Company had
complied with the applicable Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the financial year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant statutes for
the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the Company or its
associated companies. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for in
the directors and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect
of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against such Directors.

Subsequent Events

Since the end of the reporting period, the updates on the material asset
reorganization (the “Material Asset Reorganization”) are as follows:

Since 18 December 2015, trading in the A shares and H shares of the Company
has been suspended due to the planning of material matters. Trading in the H
shares resumed on 12 January 2016 while trading in the A shares remained
suspended. On 25 December 2015, the Company published the Announcement
on the Material Asset Reorganization and Suspension of Trading in relation to
the commencement of Material Asset Reorganization.

On 24 March 2016, the Company and its counterparties entered into an Equity
Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which the Company would acquire from the
counterparties interests in six Target Companies, at an aggregate consideration
of RMB2,200,000,000, to be settled by way of issue of the Consideration
Shares, and with the cash proceeds from the issue of the Placing Shares. The
identity of the Placees of the Placing Shares and other key terms were yet to be
determined. The Company expects that the Placing Shares will be issued to not
more than 10 qualified targets on a non-public basis. The Placees are expected
to include the Company’s Employee Share Ownership Scheme, in which the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company are expected to
participate.

NBBRE

BEAFRES - BEETISEM I BN RFEER

R « AR RSRRIEH R LR R T
THARIHRE -
RREFETE

AEEEDEZ 2BES Z BT 2ENERHTURK
EEEINRE - ARARKZAEEAZERARE - F
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Subsequent Events (Continued)

The Material Asset Reorganization constitutes a very substantial acquisition
for the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting, announcement and Shareholders’ approval requirements thereunder.
For details, please refer to the announcement dated 28 March 2016 under the
heading “Very Substantial Acquisition and Connected Transaction”.

Closure of the Register of Members

The 2015 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 13 June
2016 (Monday). In order to determine the H Share holders’ entitlement to attend
the Annual General Meeting, the H Share register of members of the Company
will be closed from 14 May 2016 (Saturday) to 13 June 2016 (Monday), both
days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the
H Shareholders who wish to attend the 2015 Annual General Meeting but
not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 13 May 2016 (Friday).

If the resolution of the proposed dividend is approved in the 2015 Annual
General Meeting, the H Share dividends will be paid to H Share holders whose
names appeared on the Company’s H Share register of members after the
close of trading as at 22 June 2016 (Wednesday). The Company’s register
of shareholders will be closed from 17 June 2016 (Friday) to 22 June 2016
(Wednesday), both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be
registered. For the H Share holders who wish to receive the Final Dividend but
not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 June 2016 (Thursday).

Audit Committee

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited annual consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015 with the management team and the
external auditor.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
has been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
4 March 2016
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“Report of the Board of Supervisors E5=& T/ %

During 2015, in accordance with the relevant requirements of the Company
Law, the Articles of Association and the Rules of Meetings of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company, the Company’s Board of Supervisors dutifully and
conscientiously discharged their obligations and exercised their supervisory
duties towards the directors and senior management of the Company in
compliance with the principle of being accountable to all shareholders of
the Company, playing a positive role for standardizing the operation and
development of the Company.

Basic Evaluation on Management Behavior of
the Board of Directors and Manager and the
Performance Achieved in 2015

Through our supervision over the directors and senior management
of the Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board
was able to strictly comply with the requirements of the Company Law,
Articles of Association and the other relevant laws and regulations and
operated in accordance with the laws. All major operation decisions
of the Company were rational and the decision-making process was
lawful and valid. The Company has further established and enhanced
its internal management systems and internal control mechanisms to
further regulate its operation. The directors and senior management
of the Company conscientiously executed their respective duties
in accordance with the national laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association, and the resolutions of the shareholders’ general meetings
and the Board meetings, and they were devoted to their duties, giving
their utmost efforts in exploration and expansion. None of the directors
and senior management of the Company were discovered for violating
any laws, regulations, the Articles of Association when discharging
their duties of the Company and no acts which contravene the interests
of the shareholders or the Company was found.
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The Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors =+ EEST{EER

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors held five WMEHARRKEBRTRAAEEE SRS 14

meetings. Details are set out below: BRIAT -

1. The first meeting of the third session of the Board of 1 2015F2 108 - EEE AME-EE
Supervisors was held on 10 February 2015, considering and EQFE-RLH BB TENE
approving the Proposal on the Election of Chairman of the BEMNEREEREBROBRARE=
third session of the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal [BEEEERENRE) -

Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

2. The second meeting of the third session of the Board of 2+ 2015F3A17TH  EEEAME-REE
Supervisors was held on 17 March 2015, considering and EQFE_RSH BRBATERE
approving the Proposal on the 2014 Work Report of the MBI S B R 9 B PR A RI2014F F
Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery EEG TEREMHR) - CEREM
Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2014 Audited R = B i () B R A 120144 [E 48
Domestic and Overseas Financial Report of Zhengzhou Coal BRFRIRRINT B RE ) ZEE) (4
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on (MR R EE R DB R D AIA
2014 Annual Report on A Shares and Summary thereof of R4 FFEREREBE)ONZEE) -
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, CRAR (BN B AR S B AR (D B IR A F)
the Proposal on 2014 Annual Results Announcement of H HIR2014 FF R FEE N E REERTE
Shares of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company EREFZVRNERAIHR014FFE R
Limited and Authorising the Chairman of the Company to EORRE) - AR CEDNE R R 5 E
Sign and Announce 2014 Annual Report of the Company’s RO BRATAFEREEE 17 M
H Shares, the Proposal on the 2014 Specific Audit Report FRMNFBEEZRE NER)  (ER
on the Deposit and Use of Proceeds of Zhengzhou Coal 014FEAFEHTERSHER)
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal CEAR2014FEANPEHIES MENZ
on the Report on Internal Control Assessment for 2014, the ) - (RAR RN B S B AR 5 B IR
Proposal on the Audit Report on Internal Control for 2014, the NEROAFEFMBEHEAZER) - (ER
Proposal on the 2014 Profit Distribution Plan of Zhengzhou ABREEE SR EEE RTAEBD L IE
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal BT EFGEEESKAFBTREE
on the Cessation of Implementation of Incomplete Portions of BHIER)

Investment Made by Utilizing the Proceeds under A Shares
Offering and the Use of the Surplus Proceeds from A Shares
Offering as Supplemental Working Capital Permanently,

3. The third meeting of the third session of the Board of 3- 2015F4 248  EEE AME-EE
Supervisors was held on 24 April 2015, considering and ECFE-RNeE  BHBBE TENE
approving the 2015 First Quarterly Report and the Summary M B TE A S B R 19 B IR A R12015F
thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company —FERERERE)NZER) -

Limited.

4. The fourth meeting of the third session of the Board of 4 - 2015F8HA21H  EEEAME-—EE
Supervisors was held on 21 August 2015, considering EQEMNATH  EEB T(ENE
and approving the Proposal on 2015 Interim Report on A M BT A SR B AR 10 B PR 2 RIARR 2015
Shares and the Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining FEFEREMEBE>NZEE)  (E
Machinery Group Company Limited, the Proposal on 2015 P BB M T A4 A = (B AR 1 B PR A FIH
Interim Results Announcement of H Shares of Zhengzhou Coal fR201I5FREIEE NS RIEEATE
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited and Authorising the EREZ W QE(ARIHR20155 F iR
Chairman of the Company to Sign and Announce 2015 Interim EOMEER) - (R (EM IR = E
Report of the Company’s H Shares, and the Proposal on the BOHBRAREEESTFHREAERERA
Specific Report on the Deposit and Actual Use of Proceeds of BERMEIERE NHR)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.
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The Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors
(Continued)

5. The fifth meeting of the third session of the Board of
Supervisors was held on 26 October 2015, considering and
approving the Proposal on 2015 Third Quarterly Report on A
Shares and the Summary thereof of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited.

The Board of Supervisors took part in the Company’s major work by
attending the Board meetings and effectively supervised the meeting
agendas, voting procedures and voting results, etc. and offered
opinions and recommendations on operation activities, proposals
and profit distribution plans, etc. The Board of Supervisors also
effectively supervised the guiding principles for decision-making and
the decisions made to ensure their compliance with the laws and
regulations of the state, the Articles of Association and the resolutions
of the shareholders’ general meetings and that they are in the interests
of shareholders.

The Independent Opinion of the Board of
Supervisors on the Company’s Operations in
2015

1. Lawful operation of the Company

The Board has complied with relevant requirements stipulated in
the Company Law, the Articles of Association, and the Rules of
Meetings of the Board of Supervisors of the Company and carried
on regulated operations and the decision-making procedures were
lawful and valid. The Company has established and improved
internal control system; the directors and senior management of
the Company discharged their duties in the Company diligently
and dutifully, with no acts of violation of any laws, regulations and
the Articles of Association or prejudice to the Company’s interests
were discovered.

2. Inspection of financial status of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the financial status of
the Company and considered that the financial report of the
Company reflected the actual state of the Company’s financial
position and operation results and that the audit report was truthful
and reasonable, and was favorable for the shareholders to truly
understand the financial and operational status of the Company.
The 2015 Annual Report prepared by the Board truthfully, lawfully
and completely reflected the Company’s position without any false
record, misleading statement or any material omissions.
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lll. The Independent Opinion of the Board of

EEe TIRE

Supervisors on the Company’s Operations in

2015 (Continued)

—_—N

3. Inspection of the utilization of the raised proceeds

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the utilization of the raised
proceeds, and the Company has established the management
system for the raised proceeds. The proceeds were used in a
regulated manner and were invested in the projects as undertaken.
No breaches in respect of the raised proceeds were found.

. Acquisition and disposal of assets by the

Company

During 2015, no asset acquisitions, disposal, asset swaps or
mortgages were carried out by the Company, and no insider
dealing was discovered. No prejudice to the interests of certain
shareholders or dissipation of the Company’s assets was
discovered.

. Connected transactions

The connected transactions of the Company in 2015 were
conducted in strict compliance with the Articles of Association
and pursuant to the connected transaction agreements and that
the transactions were fair and reasonable; major connected
transactions were conducted on an arm’s length basis and
the statutory approval process was fulfilled, with no act that is
prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

. Internal control self-assessment report

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2015 self-assessment
report on the Company’s internal control prepared by the Board
and the establishment and implementation of the Company’s
internal control system, and considered that the Company has
established a relatively sound internal control system which could
be effectively implemented. The self-assessment report on the
Company’s internal control truly and objectively reflected the
establishment and implementation of such control in the Company.
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Iv.

The Independent Opinion of the Board of
Supervisors on the Company’s Operations in
2015 (Continued)

/.

The Board of Supervisors’ review opinions on the
2015 Annual Report of the Company

The preparation of and procedures for reviewing the 2015
Annual Report of the Company were in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association. The content and the format thereof were in line with
all the requirements of China Securities Regulatory Commission
and Shanghai Stock Exchange, with the information contained
therein giving a true view of the business management and
financial position of the Company in that year. No staff involved in
the preparation and review of the annual report was found to have
violated the confidentiality requirement.

Working Plan of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors will strictly comply with the requirements of
the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the relevant laws,
regulations and policies of the state, truthfully perform its duties, and
further promote regulated operations of the Company.

(1) Comply with the laws and regulations and

discharge duties conscientiously

In 2016, the Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the Articles of
Association and supervise the Board and the senior management
according to the laws with the purpose to further regulate the
decision-making and operation activities to ensure their compliance
with the laws. Firstly, it will urge the Company to further improve
the corporate governance structure and enhance governance
standards according to the requirements of modern corporate
system. Secondly, in accordance with the Rules of Meetings
of the Board of Supervisors of the Company, it will continue to
strengthen the enforcement of its supervisory functions and attend
the Board meetings according to the laws so as to timely grasp the
Company’s major decisions and the lawfulness of the decision-
making procedures, thereby further safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders. Thirdly, it will convene working meetings of the
Board of Supervisors on a regular basis to implement the Rules of
Meetings of the Board of Supervisors of the Company.
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IV.  Working Plan of the Board of Supervisors 1~ EEEEeTER &)
(Continued)
(2) Strengthen supervision and inspection to avoid (Z) MeREEERE - PHEgZE
operational risks Bz
The Board of Supervisors will constantly strengthen the supervision EEeTHIAHEENEMaRERE
over the directors and other senior management on their ABEEITRE  UTRBEMEFER
performance of duties, execution of resolutions and compliance HHEHNEE -
with the laws and regulations.
Firstly, the financial supervision will be maintained as a focus, and F— BEUMBEBAZL  KOFY
the Board of Supervisors will monitor the financial position of the RNANPTHEBERETERRS -
Company in accordance with the laws.
Secondly, the internal control system will be further strengthened EZ - BTBECERRANBIEARE
to prevent corporate risks and the loss of the Company’s ERK - E—MEAIESHE - E
assets. The Board of Supervisors will regularly keep informed AR AR A BB AR 22 1R A B R A& iR
of and understand the operation state of the Company from the S FRIRERCEEMIEEIEE -
holding companies, especially the major operation activities and —BEIRME - LR T ARILERAL
investment projects, and provide prompt suggestions to stop and 1k -
remedy the situation when problems are found.
Thirdly, the Board of Supervisors will maintain communications F= 0 KERRFHENBFEANAGMZE
and liaison with internal audit function and external accountants FEME (B EHMETEBREE -
(auditors) entrusted by the Company, taking full use of internal and FAMARINBEEE - R
external audit information to keep abreast of the updates. ZREHBENR -
Fourthly, the Board of Supervisors will focus on the high risk areas FY - EFEIARERAREL  HA
of the Company, carry out inspections on the critical matters, RIEARKRE  BHEESER  BEBRSH
such as major investments, management of raised proceeds and FEZHTHEHERE -
connected transactions.
(3) Uplift professional capabilities through self- (=) EEFEE  REEBKK
improvement ¥
To better perform the role of the Board of Supervisors, it should EREHEEeER  aAERARES
uplift its professional qualifications first in order to work efficiently. EEZRE - FREBBUMT T - ¥
In this regard, members of the Board of Supervisors will receive I BEEERERETN—FE /AT
more trainings, attend relevant programs in a planned manner and ESHEARNRRENG  BEEE
persist in self-improvement this year in an attempt to broaden their BEEMEEE - Grral2mEBiE
professional knowledge and improve their professional capabilities AIFNER B 8 - TET M EEE AR TR
s0 as to further safeguard the interests of the Company and the BEBKE - BISEKBERERMAF]
shareholders. It will strictly comply with the laws, regulations EE REBTERE Bt REES
and the Articles of Association of the Company, conscientiously SRR -
discharge their duties and better perform the supervisory duties of
the Board of Supervisors.
The Board of Supervisors of BN B IR SR E AR (D B PR A R
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited BEY
4 March 2016 201643 A 4H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B R

Deloitte.
=%

TO THE MEMBERS OF ZHENGZHOU COAL MINING MACHINERY GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 163, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 B AR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
4 March 2016
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Notes
FdaE
Revenue KA 7 4,510,858
Cost of sales FHE R AR (3,653,833)
Gross profit EF 857,025
Other income HAA 9 120,724
Other gains and losses HAv s & E 10 (335,881)
Selling and distribution expenses HE NS HEAY (214,900)
Administrative expenses TERAX (304,242)
Research and development expenses ifEcE R (102,562)
Share of profit of associates FEIREEE DN RREF 13,361
Share of (loss) profit of joint ventures FE(REZ (BB ) A (1,000)
Finance costs &R AR 11 (2,160)
Profit before tax B 75 B A 30,365
Income tax expense Frisfif sz 12 (19,756)
Profit for the year FEREF 13 10,609
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hit2mEKA (BIX) 14
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to  FIGERE 8 EFr 7 4B 218257
profit or loss: EH -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial assets AJ{f & > & ph EE A FEEE (4,804)
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment of "]t &~ & gL & E B
available-for-sale financial assets ENOLERAE 60,071
Share of fair value loss on available-for-sale E(h—REE AR HEE 2
financial assets of an associate LRMEEQNFEEE (5,511)
Share of reclassification adjustment upon JEME—FEE QB AR E
impairment of available-for-sale financial SRAERESENOEEE
assets held by an associate 15,978
65,734
Exchange differences arising on translation HMEEECIER ZE (1,075)
Other comprehensive income (expense) FREMEEBEA (AR
for the year, net of income tax HBRFTEHL 64,659
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2E W ALLE 75,268
Profit for the year attributable to: BT AT EEFERER
Owners of the Company ViN/NETL S 42,198
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M (31,589)
10,609
Total comprehensive income for the year LA A XFEEFERASEWR AL :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NE )3 106,857
Non-controlling interests el (31,589)
75,268
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREF
— Basic and diluted (RMB) —EAREE(ARKET) 18 0.03
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE

2014
—T—JuF
RMB’000
AREFTT

6,124,457
(5,070,466)

1,063,991
106,667

232,584
(39,250)

193,334

(43,316)
(923)

(44,239)
149,095
205,194

(11,860)

193,334

160,955
(11,860)

149,095

0.13
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As at 31 December 2015 W —ZE—HFE+-F=+—H

Notes
BitaE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB RRE 19
Prepaid lease payments AN T EFE 20
Investment properties wEME 21
Intangible assets HREE 22
Investments in associates RS NEZIRE 23
Investments in joint ventures REBDEIRE 24
Available-for-sale investments At EZRE 25
Deferred tax assets R A E 26
Debt investment EREE 27
Finance lease receivables BAMEE R ZIE 28
Long-term receivables REIRE U 0B 29
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepaid lease payments AR A E A 20
Inventories & 30
Loan receivables from an associate EWN—REEANTER 31
Trade and other receivables B 5N H i el 32
Finance lease receivables BLEAMHE R 28
Long-term receivables within one year —EREHY R HApE N IE 29
Other financial assets Hiheph&E 33
Tax recoverable AT Bl B IE
Pledged bank deposits DIIRIRITIER 34
Bank balances and cash RITHESNIRS 34
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M e IR 35
Advances from customers ZERE
Tax liabilities MIEAE
Borrowings e 36
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERAEAES
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1,607,658
381,013
47,187
4,330
420,424
2,383
31,174
171,830
390,027
58,096
131,206

3,245,328

8,681
1,175,829
80,000
4,054,923
25,992
105,059
1,063,000
1,374
278,080
2,011,221

8,804,159
2,193,738

198,888
19,618

2,412,244

6,391,915

9,637,243

2014
—E—E
RMB’000
ARETT

1,727,100
389,836
10,196
5,735
406,796
3,481
42,433
132,595
369,237
11,5618
36,730

3,135,657

8,681
1,449,172
80,000
4,353,751
7,831
31,919
505,000
9,231
246,317
2,368,314

9,060,216
2,044,647
450,402
2,697
97,170
2,594,916

6,465,300

9,600,957
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REBEIR R

As at 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HFE+-F=+—H

2014
TP
Notes RMB’000
(k3 ARMT T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B s
Share capital R& 7 38 1,621,122 1,621,122
Share premium Akl 3,409,354 3,409,354
Reserves I 4,472,096 4,401,842
Equity attributable to owners of the Company VNG Y Uy 3 9,502,572 9,432,318
Non-controlling interests JEIE A 39 119,887 151,476
TOTAL EQUITY RS 9,622,459 9,583,794
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Other non-current liabilities HuIErngsamE 37 14,784 17,163

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 163 were approved and BN EIOE13BEEREMBHRENR_E—"F=A
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 4 March 2016 and are signed MEKEEgHERIRENE YA TIALRES

on its behalf by: =
Jiao Chengyao Xiang Jiayu
RS LES
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF BF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE —ZE—FHF+ - A=+—HILFE

Attributable
Statutory to owners Non-
Share Share  Revaluation surplus ~ Translation Other  Retained ofthe controlling
capifal ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves  eamings  Company interests Total
EERS Y|

& REGEE  Efifk B EXRE HiERE REEN BEAARL  FERER it
RMB'O0  RMB'OOD  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETx

(note a) (note b)
(FfzEa) (FzEb)

Balance at 31 December 2013 WZE-=F+-f
=t-Hzi% 1621122 3409304 (22418 503070 13 2902 3974705 9518848 163336 9,682,184

Proft for the year Epgh - - - - - - G194 2519 (11860 193334
Other comprefiensive expense EREMZERY
for the year - - #3,316) - 923 - - (44,239 - (84,239
Total comprehensive income EnrENNEE
for the year - - (#3,316) - (923 - 205,19 160,995 (11,860) 149,09
Contrbution from the ulimate KRRRBKERA 2
controling party of the Company iy - - - - - 20,000 - 20,000 - 20,000
Transfer i - - - 17,026 - - (17,026) - - -
Divdends (note 17) Re(H) - - - - - - eTA)  (267489) - T
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E-mE+=f
“T-HZER 1621122 3409354 (65,734) 520,0% (810) 5902 38%388 9432318 151476 9583794
Profit for the year R - - - - - - 42198 42,198 (31,589) 10,609
Other comprehensive expense FREMZERY
for the year - - 05,734 - (1,079) - - 64,659 - 64,659
Total comprehensive income FRRENAER
for the year - - 05,734 - (1,079) - 42198 106,857 (31,589) 75,068
Contrbution from utfimate controling AR SERERE 2
party of the Company g - - - - - 25,000 - 25,000 - 25,000
Transfer vy - - - 4976 - - (4,976) - - -
Dividends (note 17) RE () - - - - - - (61,603) (61,603) - (61,603)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZE-1%+-A
=t-Bz&8% 1621122 3409354 - 55,072 (1,889) 77902 3801007 9502572 119887 9622459

Note a: In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the Articles of Association Mizka : REBRBEARERAARREMATRMBARNE

of the Company and all subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Company and B8 KRB RZEMNBRAREE B ETHBRE
these subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the FI2FMBRHERHBE10%E ETERGBRHE B2
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. ETERBBEEDEREA RN ER%ALE - #
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity THEBNBE B ADRRSAET EEA
holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous years’ HEBTRRBHARNIFENEE  ErxRFEEK
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the EARRNTREZEWBRFRFEINETR -

Company and these subsidiaries.

Note b: The other reserves mainly represent the contribution from the State-owned MisEb : HiREEARA NSRRI A NEEBNEEEE

Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s EBREBEZETNHE  UWHRRAAR B RELIER
Government, the ultimate controlling party of the Company, and is recognised as ZHE -

contribution from the ultimate controlling party of the Company.
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F Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE

2014
—ZT P4
RMB’000
ARETIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FCh 9
Profit before tax MR B A A 30,365 232,584
Adjustments for: FEE
Finance costs BB R AN 2,160 2,383
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITIFER - REAEUEIE
receivables and finance lease receivables &S EYGRIE 2 BB A (98,706) (85,818)
Interest income on debt security EEAEZ FBWA (11,300) (8,291)

Dividends income on available-for-sale A ERE 2 BB A
investments (1,256) (1,767)

Share of profit of associates ity NG vl (13,361) (18,130)
Share of loss (profit) of joint ventures BliEAEERBEBCRT) 1,000 91)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BELEETE 172,777 165,720
Depreciation of investments properties REMENE 597 398
Amortisation of intangible assets WA E 2 B 2,454 2,488
Release of prepaid lease payments B L AR E TR IE 8,823 8,817
Allowance provided for doubtful debts RIREME 312,139 348,071
Write-down of inventories FEM 9,343 1,999
Impairment of available-for-sale investments A ERE 7 RE 66,526 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BEREHEZWE (3,988) (286)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREH) 28 (40,938) 1,774
Operating cash flows before movements in BEESEHR BRSNS
working capital 436,635 649,851
Decrease in inventories FERL 264,000 117,773
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N H i e U s IE 18 b (13,143) (59,082)
Increase in long-term receivables and finance = HA B W5k I8 T Bh i FH & FE URGRIBE N
lease receivables (232,355) (87,998)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 NEMmENTIEEINCRL) 148,993 (169,116)
Decrease in advances from customers BRZeRL (251,514) (112,092)
Cash generated from operations IR HTRETEIR 4 352,616 339,336
Income tax paid EATFTSH (34,213) (106,479)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBMEBRSFR 318,403 232,857




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE—Z—AF+=-—A=+—HIFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income on bank deposits, long-term
receivables and finance lease receivables

Interest income on debt security

Dividends income on available-for-sale-investments

Dividends received from associates

Dividends received from joint ventures

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of investment property

Payments for prepaid lease payments

Purchases of other intangible assets

Purchase of other financial assets

Proceeds on other financial assets

Payments for loan receivables from an associate

Repayment of loan receivables from an associate

Investment in an associate

Placement of bank deposits with original maturity
over three months

Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity
over three months

REFS
RITER - REEKIER
BEHERBFAZFBHEA
RSS2 A SWA
AHBEREZIREMA
SR NI o
BMEEDRREE
HEYX - BB RREAEFHUR

BEVE  BEL&E
BEREMX
XATER A E RIS
BEHEMELEE
BEEGSREE

Bt & BEEPTSFR

eI —ZRB & R R E R Z R
eI —ZRE & R R E R Z B
R—FKBERRZIRE

R EEE =8 A LA L IRTTIFR

TREUREIHIE = {8 A LA ERRTTIF

Payment of pledged bank deposits LA HEHRITER

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R HIRRITFR

Purchase of debt investment BEEKRE

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBHFFARSFEE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES BESEE

Contribution from ultimate controlling party RARREIZEH T EE
of the Company

Repayment of borrowings BEEE

Interest paid 2RFLE

Dividends paid BT E

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE AR EE

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEeRRLSZEVMRL FE

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES [E =& g2 /&

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY

R—A—BZBRERBAETEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER, A+—A=+—HZHRERELZEY

represented by bank balances and cash (note 34)

RERBPITAEH IR S (H5E34)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015

98,706
11,132
1,256
10,200
98

8,190
(60,893)
(37,588)

(1,049)
(2,623,418)
2,065,418
(80,000)
80,000

(310,000)

571,657
(519,057)
487,294

(298,054)

25,000
(97,170)

(2,160)
(61,603)

(135,933)

(115,584)
20,148

1,821,657

1,726,221

BHERRREERNERAT 01558 | /5

2014
—ZT—E
RMB’000
ARET T

85,818
5,637
1,767

171

4,743
(120,589)
(1,063)
(2,156)
(1,260,000)
1,410,815
(30,000)

(4,000)
(396,657)
460,000
(462,218)
510,315
(369,237)

(166,754)

20,000
(39,238)
(2,383)
(267,485)
(289,106)
(223,003)
(1,774)

2,046,434

1,821,657
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\Notes to.the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE —E—RE+_-_A=+—HILFE

1.

General information

The Company was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the PRC after a reorganisation of ZCMM, a
state owned enterprise in the PRC. On 28 October 2015, 32.14% of the
Company’s total issued share capital held by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government (“Henan SASAC”) were transferred to Henan Machinery
Investment Group, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Henan SASAC. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, upon completion of the share
transfer, the parent of the Company is Henan Machinery Investment Group
and its ultimate controlling party is Henan SASAC of the PRC Government.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5
December 2012.

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of the annual report. The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are manufacturing of coal mining
machinery and trading of steel and other raw materials.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“‘RMB”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company and its principal
subsidiaries. Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 46.

Application of new and revised international
financial reporting standards (“IFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plan: Employee

Contributions

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

The application of amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

—REH

KARIRF BB A RN EHRE - BIERE
REERZZZEN\E+_A-+\AEHREARHK
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE—Z—AF+=-—A=+—HIFE

2. Application of new and revised international 2. FERFE] RIS E] BFR B i 3R 5 22 Al
financial reporting standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued) (BB B S 2R ) (@)
New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective BB ERER Z #5] RS T BIRR
B 5 55 2
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to AEBIEIZEEAUATEBHRERERZ FET R
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: LASET IR B R e s 22 R -
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ R BT TS IR B2 098 SRIA
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' B DR B A 4R B 25 1555 EPAEHNE
IFRS 16 Leases? BURR B s 5 2 RS 16%% it
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in B BREENENRNES] KERELEER
Joint Operations? SHRE
Amendments to IAST Disclosure Initiative3 e s ER|E 1R REET TEHRE
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of B e ERE10n RER et BEmERBHE
and IAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation? B FIGHE BT AEZHA
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 B T iR o R B 3T —E-—FZ-F-ME
Cycle? AHERM KRS ER
R
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants? B e LR E165 K BE  EEWEYD
and IAS 41 e HER ENFRET
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BUBR B SR R0 % EEE - YNS
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint e ER| EBHMERT RELE/ R EE
Venture? HERZA
Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the BURR B T R o 2 B 105 - REEE  GRAREN
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Consolidation Exception? ERMBREENEI2ER fEme
&R F8EE BT
Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiatives BB e e TR FHEE
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Giles=R Aol CH] BRAREREBEREL
Unrealised Losses® EAE

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—A—Hskz&fia 2 FEEBMER

1 1

2 FEffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 2 RIEBE-NF-A-AszERR 2 FEAREN

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 s RIE-—RF-HA—BdERBFERBER

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined ¢ REARIETE R FIE B Bk 2 & Fis 2 FE AR A

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 5 RIE—EF-A—BsERBZFEHBESR

IFRS 9 Financial instruments RS E R BR e H T A

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification RIZEZNFRM 2 BRI B RS R FE5R S| #E
and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently ERMEEZDERFEZIHET - BRI HEHRE
amended in 2010 to include the requirements for the classification and ERIFREEN T —TFE5] - MAFHSR
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further BEIHEIGTEARKIEERZHAE - UWERZE
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge accounting. —=FE—HER]  MAEHRSF TR - K=
Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to T—OF+ B BRI B RELENFEI S
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited —EAZETRAEEMAEBEEZRERT
amendments to the classification and measurement by introducing a kbhiErRE THEEFTASIAIZAFETAR
“fair value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement 2 E e IFT 2R - BB ERTIELE
category for certain simple debt instruments. [RIZET ©
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—hFE+-A=+—RHIFE

Application of new and revised international
financial reporting standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Specifically, pursuant to IFRS 9, all recognized financial assets that
are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value.
Under IFRS 9, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortized cost
at the end of subsequent according periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods.

Furthermore, IFRS 9 requires certain simple debt instruments to be
measured at FVTOCI when certain requirements are met. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognized in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 adopts an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognized.

The directors of the Company consider that the adoption of IFRS 9 in the
future will affect the classification and measurement of the available-for-
sale investments by the Group and may affect the Group’s financial assets
including the impairment assessment but is unlikely to affect the Group’s
financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the financial effect on the Group’s financial statements until a
detailed review has been completed.

VB FIHTR] R ASAE 5] B PR B 45 4 5 22 R

HEL3:
(TEBRE & 28 ]) )
BRI REERIESRD A T A @)

Hep o RIBER S BREEFE - BREES
SPERE e T ARRIAEHEAZMEE
HERCREERLBRIDEHK AN A FEFTS - 1R
BRSBTS 22 A B 958 - AR RF A K
AHRESRABENZEBIRE  RAEAZAA
SRR ZAREEFEMAGAR VR SR 2 EBK
& Bl —M R E R e 5T BAM 45 R W SE AR AR R
2 o A HMEBIRE RIRARE R E g RS 5
HEREEAENTENE -

O BRP B REERESFREEN A HE T IR
HERT  ETEBTAERAFEFARLMLEE
Wasrt & o toh - RIBERM S REERIFE R -
ERAERTIRE 2 EE  REMEZEEATZ
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SR EREEEE -
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2. Application of new and revised international
financial reporting standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and

the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard

introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:
Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in

the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are

required by IFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 in
the future may have an impact on the amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until

the Group performs a detailed review.
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2.

Application of new and revised international
financial reporting standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede IAS 17 Leases,
introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under IFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee accounting
for leases that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, IAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and
to account for those two types of leases differently.

The directors of the Company will assess the impact of the application
of IFRS 16. For the moment, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of the application of IFRS 16 until the Group performs
a detailed review.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of amendments to IFRSs will have no material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. TESTHHEME

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQ”").

The provisions of the new CO (Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts
have been amended with reference to the new CO and to streamline
with IFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements based on the new requirements. Information
previously required to disclosure under the predecessor GO or Listing Rules
but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in
these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of I1AS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3.

(Continued)

e [evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

e Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FESTHHEBEH
(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) e EEw®)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at
fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or l0ss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE —E—RE+_-_A=+—HILFE

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except
that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with 1AS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire or share-based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace the share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another IFRS.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FESHHEBE®
(Continued)
Business combinations (continued) ¥Battm
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and considered as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being
made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed
one year from the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39,
or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interests
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period
(see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as
of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a
joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of I1AS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when
the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint
venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
or joint venture are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.
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3.

—RFEtZA=t—RLFE

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE —ZE—FHF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FESTHHEBEH
(Continued)
Foreign currencies HNEE

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or l0ss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or 0ss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of
wages and salaries in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the related service.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FTESTHHEREME )
(Continued)
Taxation P8
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and FRiSHiR S AR BIERR IB BLRAE R T8 < 4870 ©

deferred tax.

Current tax BN ERBEIE

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable FEFBNERRL B TR ANF B 2 FENFm FIRTE - AR
profit differs from “profit before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated FEREL AT T IR A G & R FE 4R 3k AT 03 2
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it WHIER I RELARBRS IR ZER
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other NI G A AR A B R E 2 RERT 25
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. ZIBRBALEF I TE - AEETIZREHAREETT
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have NELECETCHETERBHEZAaE -

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax ELEBIE

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying R IARS SV R ERTPTEER BB RAMER
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements FTE BRI PTERA 2 AR M E A2 =
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. RMER o —RELPT B BT TR =R EREERIE
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary BE o MEMTLRFP] 88 2 LA S5 P HUR B I =
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible R BIBLFT BRI R S E R ERRERIBEE ©
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits MR ZB YA ES VS ER —IB B ENN
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can BRRE Rz RICEMEERBE(EBKE
be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary HBINTES  BIEBEERBENTHEDR -

difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences BLEFHIEBENBERMB AR -« BE A s kR
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in THE IR E R RS R =M iR - A AR
joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control the reversal B R RO R R A A AN AT
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference TE R AR ZREEE AIBRAN o BIRZEIRE R EEE 2 7]
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from MREREEMEE CRERIBEEE  E1EIRA 8
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and BN AR EENN 2 R AEMTRF - I TEE]
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there FA R 5 2R Bl 1R

will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the FEMIBEE 2 REESRIREAARERS - W0
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that R FEAR TR W R AT RE B LAUR B & BB ek 2R D B EE A
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 1 e

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are BELEHIEEERBERBHNEEEEXEREE
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset ZHMEAZHEHNE  WIRERSHRIIE RN
is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or FABMEEM 2 HER(RFE)GE -

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below) are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FESHHEBE®
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued) MIE (®)
Deferred tax (Continued) EEBE(E)
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FTESTHHEREME )

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for undetermined future use, which
is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE —E—RE+_-_A=+—HILFE

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset
is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.
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RE I RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE —ZE—FHF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FESTHHEBEH
(Continued)
Intangible assets (continued) BIEE®)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE —E—RE+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

[nventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised
as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE —ZE—FHF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FESTEHEHME
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) THTHEHm@m
Financial assets SRIEE
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: TRMEEZ D ABUTETEER  [BBIERIEUATF
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for- BIRIGBREZAATFENR) ZemEE 7]
sale (“AFS”) financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification HHE J(ATHEEE) @R E E AR B X EYGHR
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is Hl - ZolERTemBEECTERARE - RV
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or SHARET MBEULETREEZEMEER
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date RS AERKARNTER - UERFRNEBEZEHME
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial EEBESLEERRIEEEMSRAISENRTE
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by ZERARNZEMEE -

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method ERRFIE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised ERMEER B ESRmBEECBENAURE

cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant FEREF B WA DB 2 7% - BERFIREGEER

period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts RBEWA(BEMERKNERNEEELY 22

estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form NSBEWER  RSBERREMBENITE)EB

an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other SEREE M B (WE R ) F 5 HAMERRIRE

premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, NSRRI EmMFEZ X -

where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt B ITAE(NDEAFBERUATEIRZCRE

instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of EBRIN) Z WM AR ERRA REEDR - HF Bk AGT

which interest income is included in net gains or losses. AW S ok B 15 RE o

Financial assets at FVTPL BBEm UL FIEIRZ 2 A E

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is EeRMEENFEREENIETASBEENATE

either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. PIRRES - A H i REBERNATAESRZ &/

Afinancial asset is classified as held for trading if: WEESBMEELRTINER  MDBEAFIEE
=

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the BAZETEBNARTASZREE ; &

near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial o RUIPHERNBNASEEEEERE 2 #HE
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual BMTHEMAG o BiAHFEELAENEMN
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or BREVE IR 2B 5 5

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging o BIEELAEMIEAHHATIAZITETA -
instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE —E—RE+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
finance lease receivable, long term receivable, debt investment and
loan receivable from an associate) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be

immaterial.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, debt

investment or loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment loss on financial assets below).

FESTHERE )

=)
SHMEEE)
FBIBRSUAFEIIRZ 2MEE ()

BBBEARNFEIEZ EREEARFENE
BEMRELZEMNRBEANERTER - NEEE
RZBBEFRCETHEEMES 2 AR SR
HRzHE et ATEMEEREEIEET - AF
BRI FE6PTI 2 T A EE °

EAREWHE

ER R ENRIAR AR B E S AT EE MR IFITE
ERMEE  RFEERNGRRTS LW ERE - 1)
FHERE  ERRERFR(BEE S R EMBER
HIA - BEEMRITESR  RITEHRLAS - BEM
SRR - REEWSOR - EFRE kR 2
RAER) THEREBREN R XL HA - B
EHABERRYIR (T XEREmEERES
BREETBR) -

FMBUATIERA BN RHER - RSB
B - RI5E B UGRIRER SN ©

R ETBEE

AHHESREENEERAIRLERFIERE
BEEUATFEIGRZ EREEZITETA &
BIRESLER MBS A

AEEMBAEDBRAIHNESREE - WNVER
MiEEENER MEBEFREREMRNAFE
B o NEBRMERATENNBWRABRE Z AT
EEXNSREEREEZEP LA HHERTKE
ZIRERBEANER - RAHhESREERE
BEEE N EMEEBRANER - WINMTE EME
BET R - MRERHESEEDRE - RIBHE
RIERBEMRRBRINRFTRENEERENRDEE
Ba(R TXFHeREEREBENSFRE)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE I RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE —ZE—FHF+ - A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit terms of the
customers, observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE —E—RE+_-_A=+—HILFE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and

also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Group
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources 4. BEREBTHHERGATFTITRERERZZE

of estimation uncertainty (continued) ERR @)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting & B SR E TIRER B E K H Ef
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving B REETE (R TN TIERABAEEE
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of ERERMNSTBCRBRFREL - BEEN KR
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant KRN S EENREATESE -

effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Revenue recognition W= R

The Group sells hydraulic roof supports and is required to install them on AEBEERBEYLE  WEARBRFARELRZE
the customers’ premises. The directors of the Company were required RE At ARBIEREEEERBELRMNESR
to consider whether it is appropriate to recognise the revenue from EEEERZERFIEENREZEERE  BERE
these transactions when the hydraulic roof supports are delivered to the ERBYEZH LR E S ERREERAEHE -
customers, or whether it is more appropriate to recognise the revenue

upon completion of installation of hydraulic roof supports.

In making their judgment, the directors considered the detailed criteria ET”EEd e - TR T E RBEREFER 18571
for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in IAS 18 Fﬁ%zﬁ%.ﬂd%‘éuﬂz SHEEARER] - BRIR - AKE
Revenue and, in particular, whether the Group had transferred to the EREHEREEENENRKRKERER TE
buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods. As K o HRERER G ARSI - BREREF
the installation is an integral part of the transaction and the installation REWEE - WEFRE - TRIEF T EEEES ke
process is not simple in nature, the directors consider the installation BEZ RSB - ARFNERRAR M EFRENLE
cannot be unbundled from the sales of hydraulic roof supports and the TEREAEETERE - Eitt 0 EEEM BA;z“““
significant risks and rewards of the transaction could only be transferred R HERBT BN RS BEE

to the customers upon the completion of installation. Thus, the directors

are satisfied that recognition of the revenue from sales of hydraulic roof

supports upon the completion of installation is appropriate.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty et TEERZE 2 EENRIR

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end T ARBREBR 2 G THBEEZZ T E R -
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material HABERR MM BEEHEEARBRZER
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next BEEHERAE 2SEKRER -

financial year.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and ME BERRBEURBRENEZ G AERAEH
equipment and investment properties REMEE

The Group estimates the useful lives, residual values and related AEBBREYE  BMERSBEARGENMEEREBE
depreciation charges for its items of property, plant and equipment and SHERFR - FEENMEEITEER - 25
investment properties. This estimate is based on the management’s RIEEEEHRUME NN E - BE KE&E
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of items of IRIEEYFERERERFHRRABENSR
property, plant and equipment and investment properties of similar EBE AR EFEARFEFNTAMEE
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical Reg#t - 2o AFHRFSREE DR ERHET
innovations and actions of its competitors. Management will increase B BREEKEMNERR R_T—RFT+_A
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are less f—T— H ¥ BELEEBENEREAARKE
than previously estimated. The carrying amounts of property, plant and 1,607,658,0007C (== — U4 = AR¥1,727,100,000
equipment as at 31 December 2015 was RMB1,607,658,000 (2014: ) c RZE—RAF+A=+—H  REMEHN
RMB1,727,100,000). The carrying amounts of investment properties as at BREEAARE47187,00000 (ZE—HF : AR
31 December 2015 was RMB47,187,000 (2014: RMB10,196,000). 10,196,0007T) °
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Write-down of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The
Group regularly inspects and reviews its inventories to identify slow-moving
and obsolete inventories. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price lower than their carrying amount or are slow-
moving or obsolete, the Group will write down inventories in the current
year. As at 31 December 2015 the carrying amounts of inventories was
RMB1,175,829,000 (2014: RMB1,449,172,000), net of write down for
inventories of RMB31,152,000 (2014: RMB23,001,000).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2015 the carrying amount of trade receivables was
RMB2,957,003,000 (2014: RMB3,305,365,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB1,032,712,000 (2014: RMB788,058,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and prepaid lease payments for Land

As described in Note 3 above, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and prepaid lease
payments for land to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Determining whether property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and prepaid lease payments for
land are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the assets
and the fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of the assets and from its ultimate disposal and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise.

4,
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (Continueq)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets is measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. The Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company received the High and New Technology Enterprise Certificates
(the “Technology Certificates”) and are entitled to preferential tax rate of
15% for three years before the respective expiration dates (see note 12
for details). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these entities
will be able to receive the renewed Technology Certificates and continue
to enjoy preferential tax treatments after the respective expiration dates,
and pass the required annual assessment to qualify for preferential tax
treatments, therefore the tax rates for measurement of deferred tax
assets of these entities are expected to be 15%. If the applicable tax rates
are higher than the expectation, changes in the deferred tax assets are
recognised in profit or loss as deferred tax income.

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale

When there is an objective evidence of impairment loss, the directors of
the Company were required to determine the amount of any impairment
loss. The directors of the Company consider whether significant changes
with an adverse effect have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates that indicates
the cost of the investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered.
The directors of the Company were also required to consider whether
a ‘significant or prolonged’ decline in fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost has taken place. When an AFS equity
investment is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
from equity to profit or loss. During the current year, cumulative losses of
RMB76,049,000 previously recognised in other comprehensive income
has been reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015
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5.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which includes the
borrowings disclosed in note 36, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, share premium and other reserves.

The management of the Company reviews the capital structure on an
annual basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will balance its overall
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

EXERER

AEEERHEEAR - DARERAEE R T 585 4
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Financial instruments EtWMIA
(@) Categories of financial instruments @ Rt T AN
2015 2014
—B-EH%F —=—meE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Financial assets: CRVEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash B R EW A
equivalents) (BIEREERSZEY) 8,124,290 7,847,243
Available-for-sale investments AHPERE 31,174 42,433
Total &3t 8,155,464 7,889,676
Financial liabilities: CRIBME -
Amortised costs Rk AR 2,097,605 2,111,885
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, equity and debt investments, trade and other payables,
and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk. There has been no change in the
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

(i) Currency risk

The primary economic environment in which the company and
its principal subsidiaries operate is the PRC and their functional
currency is RMB. However, certain transactions of the Company
and its principal subsidiaries including sales and purchases of
goods are denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group currently do not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure by closely monitoring the foreign exchange
risk profile and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

€T R
b £RAEREEBZENBE @)

mHER(E)
() EEERE)
AEBNESHMERARAINEFEEEEE

MEERNERERENT
usD
=TT
Assets Liabilities
&E aE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

As at 31 December 2015 R-Z—RF+-_A=+—H 410,389 800
As at 31 December 2014 R-E—NF+=-A=+—H 457,184 97,923
EUR
BT
Assets Liabilities
BE af&
RMB’000 RMB’000

As at 31 December 2015 R-—ZT—7
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZT—H
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk
between USD/RMB, EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB.

AREET T ARMET T

F+=-—A=+—H 82,184 20,347
F+=-—A=+—H 147,005 35,154
HKD
B IT
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT AREETIT
F+-A=+—H 461,300 -
F+-A=+—H 430,489 -

AEEEFEFREERT ARKERT A
R¥ M, ARERINERE o
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(o) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

U

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the relevant foreign currencies
against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of each
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
for the year and a negative number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax profit for the year where the relevant foreign
currencies change 5% against RMB.

6. ERMTE )
b) =ELEMREIEBZNBR @)
TBEMR(E)
() EEERE)
BRE DT
TRV AEBEAEEE N AREFE

USD impact EnEE
if USD strengthens against RMB WETLEAREHE
if USD weakens against RMB WEITHARKEE
EUR impact Bree
if EUR strengthens against RMB TWBUT A REFAHE
if EUR weakens against RMB BT A RKEZ(E
HKD impact BLTEE
if HKD strengthens against RMB WAL EAREHE
if HKD weakens against RMB B THARBERE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposures do not reflect the exposure.
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2014
—Z—F
RMB’000
AREETIT
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2,628 4,754
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
fixed rate debt investment (see note 27 for details). The Group
currently does not have an interest rate swapping policy but the
management of the Group monitors fair value interest rate risk
exposure by closely monitoring the fair value interest rate risk
profile and will consider hedging significant fair value interest
rate risk exposure should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate pledged bank deposits, variable-rate
bank balances and variable-rate borrowings (see notes 34 and
36 for details). It is the Group’s policy to keep its bank deposits/
balance and borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments (including
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and borrowings) at the
end of each reporting period and the excepted changes in
interest rates taking place at the beginning of the financial year
and being held constant throughout the reporting period in the
case of pledged bank deposits, bank balances and borrowings.

A 10 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates on
variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balance, and
a 100 basis-point increase or decrease in interest rate on
variable-rate borrowings are used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. If the interest rates on variable-rate pledged
bank deposits and bank balances had been 10 basis points
higher and all other variables were held constant, the post-tax
profit for the year would have increased by:

Increase in post-tax profit for the year FR

BRI 12 5 114 A
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RMB’000 RMB’000
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on
variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balances had
been 10 basis points lower and all other variables were held
constant.

If the interest rates on variable-rate borrowings had been 100

basis points higher and all other variables were held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by:

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year

6. EMTHE %)
b) ©ELEMSEIEBZMBCR®

misEE(E)

(i)

F AR R R

FIFER (&)
BURE AT (&)

fid)% B EBRRITER R RITAERAN T X
TR0MEER - MATAEMEHRTE - 8
FARBIRENIZ DRAR SR

)% BEERE L TH00E LR - MATAE
HSHE - QKR LA B EARN
FARRRBIL S A

2015 2014
—2-Tf -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
826

The post-tax profit for year the would have increased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on
variable-rate borrowings had been 100 basis points lower and
all other variables were held constant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments operating in
coal industry sector quoted in the Stock Exchange. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.
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6. TR TR
b £RAEREEBZENBE @)

6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) mEEK(E)

(i) Other price risk (Continued) (i) EAEREm G ()
Sensitivity analysis BREDHT

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date. For
sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate is 25% in current
year as a result of the volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 25%
higher/lower: post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would increase/decrease by RMB8,016,000 as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments which
have been impaired.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to the financial
guarantees issued by the Group and bills receivable endorsed
by the Group with full recourse as disclosed in note 44.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Company
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
management of the Company reviews the recoverability of each trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the management of the Company considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default
in payment of the endorsed bills receivable is low because all
endorsed bills receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable
PRC banks.

T SURRE AT IR B E B HAE R A
AERERETE - MBRELTME @ A
RERTIZKE  AFENERELER
25% ©

fi & B A T A 2 EARIE 0,5 2 25% :
EREREZARHERERFERM

28 BE_FT-HAF+-A=t—H
\E5F B 2 BR B AR E R AR
8,016,0007T ©
FERR
R_T-AFR_F-MNF+_A=+—A8"
ARENSEAEERRKERRZHFEOM
BHRAEERIHBHRKR - DA TEERE
A

o BEMBANKAIMEBCHEATREE
MRREE - &

o NMEEM4PEREREAREELHHERE
BANRARBERAEBAEEEMEREL
EEERNEBEESHE -

REEEERR  ARAREEEZZIK—EE
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks. However, the credit risk on bank
balances is limited because the majority of the counterparties are
state-owned banks with good reputation or banks with good credit
rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies and with good
reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 11.42% (2014:
13.72%) and 28.75% (2014: 29.74%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets except for
finance lease receivables. Credit risks associated with the finance
lease receivables are mitigated because the finance lease receivables
are secured over the leased storage equipment. The carrying
amounts of the finance lease receivables as at 31 December 2015
amounted to RMB84,088,000 (2014: RMB19,349,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the leased assets
are estimated to be approximately RMB112,926,000 (2014
RMB23,093,000).

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilization of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

6. EMI A

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) SReERE IR B IFERBEEE)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRAR(E)
Weighted
effective On demand Total
average or less than 3months  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to1year cash flows amount
EER REXFHD 38R AFBRHEE
FgHI= R3fEA 15 mERE REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT ARETT ARETTT
The Group KEE
As at 31 December 2015 RZE—AF
T-A=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 R IE FUE - 1,745,855 351,750 2,097,605 2,097,605
1,745,855 351,750 2,097,605 2,097,605
As at 31 December 2014 RZE—MF
+-A=1-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFE - 1,774,580 240,135 2,014,715 2,014,715
Borrowings EE 2.8 632 98,643 99,275 97,170
1,775,212 338,778 2,113,990 2,111,885

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

In addition to the above, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
in the next six months from each reporting date in relation to the
maximum loss and cash outflows that may result from the Group’s
endorsed bills receivable with full recourse should the issuing banks
of these bills fail to honour their obligations, please refer to note 44
for details.

IFBTIE R AR T
BT A EIBFIE LA
%ﬂ%@@o

B EXCPratsh - AREE B SIRE B HRARS
BATAZRBEZRR  AAEEAEEZH
BRENEBSERERE  WRERBEREZ
RITRBEEITHEML  AIRELNRABER
BRemt - F15H20KH 44 -
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6. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at

Financial assets 31 December 2015
R-E—FRE

SREE +=ZRA=+—HAZA¥E

Listed AFS investments
AR ERE

REBR A E S
—HRITE
A EE #29 293,000 7T
(ZF—m%F:
A R #534,098,000 7T )

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong
— Coal industry RMB29,293,000
(2014: RMB34,098,000)

6. ®MIAm)
O SBTAZAFENE

M EREARENAEESHEREERS
MAEBERATEZER -

RECEMHEERAVENEZARESRME
EREMABEZATVE

AEEHIEREENSRBBENSREHR
BATERE - TRIABERSAZSERE
ENEMBAEATFEZEETAN(LERMA
ZEEDERBARE) -

Fair value Valuation technique

hierarchy and key input
fRERER

REEZER BEERAE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices

£ TS in an active market

RIERTIZ TR B8 (E

BRI EE1 4R B E5 24 7 R A e o
WHBBEEMEERANPETEZEAEETS
BREERSRMEEZATE

FFRB - REA M HRR AR HR AR
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7. Revenue

Sales of hydraulic roof supports

Revenue from steel and other materials trading
Sales of spare parts

Sales of other coal mining equipment

Other revenue

Rtz SHE

HAA

BREXIRZHEE
SN M REE B 2 WA

HARRREZHE

8. Segment information

118

The Group identifies an operating segment which is a component of the
Group (a) that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses; and (b) whose operating results are reviewed
regularly by the executive directors, being the chief operating decision
maker, to make decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment.

The Group has only one operating segment which is the manufacture of
coal mining machinery and the Group’s operating results before tax are
reviewed regularly by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. As no
other discretionary financial information is provided to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker, no segment information is presentation other
than the entity-wide information.

Geographical information

The analysis of revenue by geographical location of customers is as
follows:

The PRC A
Other countries HEMmER

N

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
2,815,835 3,701,446
920,820 1,679,707
601,895 540,204
120,789 89,367
51,519 113,733
4,510,858 6,124,457

DEER
AEBE THFA AEKER 2 &EDE : @fE
A REURAREERY 22T RO)ZSEE

XETHHATER(T2L %/J%ﬁﬁ/\)ﬁﬁ%f?
B TRD B K RIDFF A VEHUR R

REERA—ELEDEL - BAEERKRME - Hif
BTG E KA TENHARENERRERRANE
%o AL BERD B RFRFEERIRR - BN &
IS B REERRA R EAMBBEREREH
MBER  WRERBRBERESIHN  WEEIDIE

B o
o

3o 1% A
WASREF B AITIT -

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFT
4,430,628 5,895,933
80,230 228,524
4,510,858 6,124,457

No geographical segment information for assets is presented as the
Group’s non-current assets are mostly located in the PRC, which is
considered to be one geographical location with similar risks and returns.

MR AEE IR EERZANTE - M B
RAERBBIE R AR - BT B2 EE
E’Ji‘ﬂﬂz"jﬁﬁ*ﬂr o
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8. Segment information (Continued)
Information about major customers

The following illustrates the revenue from customers which contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group:

Customer A ZFA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C BFC

1. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group.

9. Other income

Government grants (note) AT B (P 3E)
Interest income on bank deposits,

long-term receivables and finance lease receivables
Interest income on debt security

Dividends income on available-for-sale investments

RITEH - REBKFAMBEE
HERYEIREZ R BHA

EREFHBHA

AHHEZRE ZBRBBA

DEIE B )
EETERFPZ2ER

ATIIRRAEF BAEA S EAAKARE10%HK
A

2014
—ZE—OF
RMB’000
ARETTT
563,529 840,632
551,961 660,349
N/A' R 35 1 646,325
1 AERAEEAEBEBEATEI0%
Hug A
2014
—EF-mEF
RMB’000
ARET T
9,462 10,791
98,706 85,818
11,300 8,291
1,256 1,767
120,724 106,667

Note: Government grants mainly represent unconditional government grants
received from the local government for compensation of research and
development expenses incurred, and in respect of construction of the Group’s
new plant, which are transferred from deferred income to profit or loss over
the useful lives of the relevant assets.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015

M IR EREREEMEEREER RRAS
B B0 FT RS 1 B 3t 77 BURT I HR B B (R 1 U
By AREERREEERBREECKEE R

SO KRR AR SR B AR 1D A PR A &) 20155 3]

119



-~

S

4 Notes to thg Consolidated Financial Statements
e mRME
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE
10. Other gains and losses 10. Hfbl 2 R 518
2014
—E=—E
RMB’000
AREFT
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment BEEYE BB MR ERE 3,988 286
Net foreign exchange gains P W 5 iz 40,938 1,774
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE (312,139) (348,071)
Write-down of inventories FEMH (9,343) (1,999)
Impairment loss on available-for sale BRAFTErHEEZREZ
investments measured at cost BEEE (6,454) -
Cumulative loss reclassified from equity to profit or AT EFEAHEE Z/E
loss on impairment of available-for-sale investments WEROERER ERER
measured at fair value (note) z 2B () (60,071) -
Others Hib 7,200 5,576
(335,881) (342,434)
Note: During the year an equity investment classified as available-for-sale was ek : AFEEAN - AR —EIEATHEE ZBRARE
impaired as there was a significant decline in the fair value of that investment ZAFERBREEARANE  WZERELS
below its cost. As a result, the cumulative loss amounted to RMB60,071,000, A o Bt - REHEE R ARE0,071,0007T - B
was reclassified from other reserve to profit or loss. HiREENHERER -
11. Finance costs 1. BERAK
2014
—Z=—F
RMB’000
ARETIT

Interests on bank borrowings RITERZFE 2,383
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12. Income tax expense 12. FTSHRiRE 2
2014
—T—F
RMB’000
ARETIT
Income tax expenses comprise: SRR B IE
Current tax; — PRC enterprise income tax BEARRIE © — RS 60,339 85,109
— Over provision in prior years — BRI B (1,348) (2,181)
58,991 82,928
Deferred tax — current year RIEFTE - AFE (39,235) (43,678)
19,756 39,250
The tax rates of the major group entities for the year ended 31 December HZE2015F 12831 H K2014F12 A31HILFEEE
2015 and 2014 are as follows: SEEBHERNT :
2014
—ZE—OF
The Company (Note 1) AR (KT 15%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery MR AR LB B R A A
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. ([ BRI ERIE |) (P EE2)
(“ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment”) (Note 2) 15%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical BN E R REIEE R AR
Control Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Hydraulic Control”) (Note 3) (TEppepe RS ]) (M 5E3) 15%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Material Trading 5/ k5% e ik 2 (B 1 & (1 4%
Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Material Trading”) BRATE (BB E 1) 25%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd. B B & B i 5 1R A 7)
(“ZMJ Longwall Machinery”) (T BRI R BEHEAR ) 25%
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Lu An Xinjiang SR ik &= B3R 2257 s2 A
Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Lu An Xinjiang”) (Note 4) BRAFN([ B
HEE]) (HEE4) 15%
Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Shun Li ¥ I BB M 52 <7 1647, 45 PR A )
Machinery”) (Note 5) (T EREE i 52 S HA |) (BT 7ES5) 15%
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE

12. Income tax expense (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

The Company received the High and New Technology Enterprises
Certificate (“Technology Certificate”) on 31 July 2014, which entitles to a
preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.
The Company previously was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from
1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013 under a separate certificate.

ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment received the “Technology Certificate”
on 26 June 2013 and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1
January 2013 to 31 December 2015. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the renewed certificate can be obtained without incurring
significant cost.

ZMJ Hydraulic Control received the “Technology Certificate” on 26 June
2013 and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2013
to 31 December 2015. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
renewed certificate can be obtained without incurring significant cost.

ZMJ Lu An Xinjiang received the “Technology Certificate” on 9 June 2014
and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.

ZMJ Shun Li Machinery received the “Technology Certificate” on 16 July
2013 and is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2013
to 31 December 2015. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
renewed certificate can be obtained without incurring significant cost.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

12. Fi8HMAZ (@)

BFET -

s -

FIEES -

PiEE4

f3E5 -

ARRR2014F7 AN B RSB H BT b2 FE
([HArsEE ) - A2014F1 A1HZ=2016512 A31
HEEZEEEREI% - RIES—NHEE - K
AFZBIHA201141 B1HE2013912 A31 B A&
ZHEEREI5% °

BRI M AT A 20134F 6 A 26 B EVS [ HilT B & | -
20131 A1HZE2015F 12 A3 B EEZFER
FEI5% o NAREERA - AIETHBBAEK
AEEN TETHE -

B8 R [BR EE 122 72 201345 6 A 26 H ERAF [ 217 7%
2| Ho1B3E1 A1 E20155E12 A3 ARE
BEEBERISY - ARFEERA - JETER
RERANIIE R TERTEE -

B A £ (8] )R 22 T9B 1A 20144F 6 5 9 B S [ i
FE | h2014F1 1B E2016F12 A3 B A
ZHEEREI5% o

R e 7 M 2 201345 7 A 16 B EVAS [ B 1T 7%
£ H2013FE1 A1 E2015F12A31BEEE
BEEHEI% - AAREERE  JETHEK
RERAMIER B BE -

FABIAE MRS B REAM 2 RS R PR
TAD@ ME BRI T -

Profit before tax

BR A B4 7

Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate of 15%

Tax effect of share of profit of associates and
joint ventures

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for
tax purpose

Over provision in prior years

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilization of tax losses not recognised

Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries

Additional deduction for qualified research and
development expenses

Feoh B 2 1S B 15%
2 BUR

FEIGEE RNRIMAERERN

HBE T E
TRIBEE 2 B
ve

BIEFEERERSG

RERBEBERZ RETE

MR AR FER IR R 1R

MBARTRAREZZE

BIMIRATARERN
MEER

2015 2014
—E-FHf —T—meE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
30,365 232,584
4,555 34,888
(1,854) (2,733)
14,369 1,986
(1,348) (2,181)
9,897 8,679
2,717) (1,026)
1,354 3,387
(4,500) (3,750)
19,756 39,250

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 26.

REFIRTERIR Z BB EE26
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13. Profit for the year

13. FA=EF

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

FRENZMERGEAATEIASE

Depreciation for property, plant and equipment Y% - BEREEITE 172,777
Depreciation for investment properties BEMETE 597
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEH 2,454
Release of prepaid lease payments TEfT TR EFIEE D 8,823
Total depreciation and amortisation EREHAE 184,651
Employee benefits expenses (including directors): EERNBAY(BIEES) :
— Salary and other benefits —TERHEMEF 352,853
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —RIKEFFTEIH R 55,746
408,599
Auditors’ remuneration AN & 2,980
Impairment losses on financial assets TREERERS
— trade and other receivables — B 5 MEMERRIE 312,139
— available-for-sale equity investments — Al E 2 RARE 66,526
378,665
Write-down of inventories HoRFE 9,343
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense REAZ ZFEKAR 3,653,833
Gross rental income from investment properties WEYERS WAL (5,344)
Less: direct operating expenses from investment B EERSWAZIREMES
properties that generated rental income HELERAST 1,143
(4,201)
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented premises HMABEZEEHERS 5,224

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015

2014
—ZE—EF
RMB’000
AR¥ETT

165,720
398
2,488
8,817

177,423

353,297
58,759

412,056

2,980

348,071

348,071
1,999
5,070,466
(4,660)
1,435
(3,225)

5,224
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE

14. Other comprehensive income (expense) 14. Hh 2 EWA (%)

2014
—Z—mF
RMB’000
ARETT
Other comprehensive expense includes: Hiv2MEA BIE
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to AJRERE A EF D AEZ 18 o
profit or loss: EH -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial assets HEHEEZSREEATE
EE (4,804) (32,849)
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment of T E 7 eMEERBER 2
available for sale financial assets B DEAE 60,071 -
Share of fair value loss on available-for-sale financial E(h—REE AR A HHE
assets of an associate SRMEEQNTEERE (5,511) (10,467)
Share of reclassification adjustment upon impairment FE(ERE SN RIIFE 2
of available-for-sale financial assets held by HEEZSREERER 2
an associate B DEAE 15,978 -
65,734 (43,316)
Exchange differences arising on translation BEEA 7B RIS (1,075) (923)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FREMEEFAS - RS
net of income tax 64,659 (44,239)
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15. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 15. 5 B TRAEREEZME

remuneration

BEERY FHREIRAREHIRE s  EENESE
BT

Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follow:

Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr Jiao Chengyao FRERE
Mr Shao Chunsheng MEELE

(resigned in February 2015) (RZT—RFZAEH)
Mr Xiang Jiayu BEG %S
Mr Fu Zugang (note) FHER 4 (FT7E)

(resigned in February 2015) (RZT—RFZ AEH)
Mr Wang Xinying THEEsE
Mr Liu Qiang BV

(appointed in February 2015) (RZT—RF_ARZEMR)
Mr Guo Haofeng PRELE

(appointed in February 2015)

(R-Z-0%_ AEZE)

Sub-total

Pt

HRBITEFHEE R BREH AR R RAEES

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were mainly for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

Bz B MR 2 R% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE

15. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 15. EX - B THRAEBREEMS »)
remuneration (Continued)

Independent non-executive directors: B AE7TEE

Mr Li Bin FEE
(resigned in February 2015) (RZZ-REZA&T)
Mr Gao Guoan SETRE
(resigned in February 2015) (RZZ—RFZAEMA)
Mr Luo Jiamang BREAE
(resigned in February 2015) (RZZ-REZA&T)
Ms Liu Yao =+
Mr Jiang Hua TERAE
(appointed in February 2015) (RZZ-RFE_REZM)
Mr Li Xudong FBAKAE
(appointed in February 2015) (RZZ-RFE_REZM)
Wu Guangming RARARAE
(appointed in February 2015) (RZZ-RFE_REZM)
Sub-total et
The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were BT IERTEEWE T B FEERIARFZ
mainly for their services as directors of the Company. BEMREZRS -
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mEMBEHmRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z—RAF+-A=+—HIFE

15. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 15. EE - B THRAEBREEMS»)
remuneration (Continued)

Supervisors: £
Mr Wang Tiehan THERE
(resigned in February 2015) (RZE—RFZAET)
Mr Ding Hui TEEE
(resigned in February 2015) (RZE—RFZAET)
Mr Ni Heping EATLE
Mr Jia Jingcheng et
(resigned in January 2016) (RZE—RF—AET)
Ms Xu Mingkai ALt
Mr Zhang Zhigiang RERILE
Mr Li Chongging TEERAE
(appointed in February 2015) (RZE—RF_AEZRT)
Mr Liu Fuying ARELE
(appointed in February 2015) (RZE—RF_AEZRT)
Mr Zhou Rong A%RE
(appointed in February 2015) (RZE—RF_AEZRT)
Sub-total iy
Total wst 563
The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were mainly for their services FHEEMEFERBEERRTRAEREL 2
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the EIB MR 2 RS -
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE —E—RE+_-_A=+—HILFE

15. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 15. 5 - BeTRAEBREEZME &)
remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_Z-—NE+-_A=+—BLEE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments contributions fee Total
e IE  HERBEN RNAER
REAMEF] opea STEIHR EEikn agy

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTET ARETET ARETT ARETR

Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr Jiao Chengyao EEELE 578 23 99 - 700
Mr Shao Chunsheng BEA KT 578 23 99 - 700
Mr Xiang Jiayu (note) EEGT A D) 645 180 143 - 968
Mr Fu Zugang RPER 5 & 476 261 132 - 869
Mr Wang Xinying B i 504 205 91 - 800
Sub-total N 2,781 692 564 - 4,037
The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were mainly for their Ll TEEHe T ERBEFHARAARIRAEEE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company B ER MRt 2 IR
and the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 Z-NFE+-A=1t—RItFE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
benefits payments contributions fee Total
e I8 ERTHY RIRREA
R EfER oksn AR ik B

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTE AREMTE ARKTE ARETT ARETR

Independent non-executive directors: B I 7TE % -

Mr Lin Zhijun HEBLE
(resigned in April 2014) (RZZ—NEMNAFHT) - - - - -
Mr Li Bin T E - - - 80 80
Mr Gao Guoan SRR LA - - - 80 80
Mr Luo Jiamang BRRERAE - - - 80 80
Ms Liu Yao By
(appointed in June 2014) (RZZE—ESAEZE) - - - 146 146
Sub-total N - - - 386 386
The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were B ERITESMES T ER RS TR
mainly for their services as directors of the Company. EEMRHZRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE —ZE—FHF+ - A=+—HILFE

15. Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’
remuneration (Continued)

15. E%  RETHRAEBRESEME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_T-NE+-A=1t—HItFE

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’
henefits payments  contributions fee Total
He I8  ERLEH RAER
KE AR P AR EE20kn e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETE AR%®TR
Supervisors: 2=
Mr Wang Tiehan THEERE 376 157 62 - 595
Mr Ding Hui THkAE 82 361 106 - 549
Mr Ni Heping RS A 72 509 91 - 672
Mr Jia Jingcheng ERiEkAE 158 124 53 - 335
Ms Xu Mingkai TR Z LT 141 159 46 - 346
Mr Zhang Zhigiang KRR
(appointed in June 2014) (RZZ—MFRNAEZE) 124 119 39 - 282
Sub-total et 953 1,429 397 - 2,779
Total Bt 3,734 2,121 961 386 7,202

The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were mainly for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

Note: Mr Fu Zugang is the general manager of the Company since February 2015.
Mr Xiang Jiayu was the general manager of the Company from December
2008 to February 2015. Their emoluments for the role as general manager
are also included above.

The performance incentive payment is mainly determined on the basis
of the Group’s and individual performance for years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014, respectively.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or supervisors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office in the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. None of the
directors or supervisors has waived any remuneration in the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

PREEME FBRBEFHRARRAKREERKL
EEMRHZ R -

ik (PBRSEER —F—TF = AEAR ABEE -
ARMEE-SENF+ - AZ-F—HE—A
ARRTRISE - 7S REREEOFHFE 5
ALISER -

ERIBAENAN RS T BRAEEMERNAERES
TE-RAFRCENFF A= —HIEFEZ
KIREFE -

HE-_Z—RAFR-_T—NF+_A=+—HIEF
B AEEVEAESREEINEAME - (EA
HnBsi B Ak B Ao BiBmE - #5E
TE-RAFRZT-NFF+A=+—HLFE "
WEESNEERETHHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE
16. Employees’ remuneration 16. EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group, AEEREZRSFALZH  —H(ZE—NF :
one (2014 four) were directors or supervisors of the Company whose ME)RARREFHES  BRENHESFBER L
remuneration are included in the disclosures in note 15 above. The XHIFE15H%EE c TR (ZZS—EF : —R)AT
remuneration of the remaining four individuals (2014: one) was as follows: ol NN
2014
—T—mF
RMB’000
ARETIT
Salaries and other benefits TEREMER 74
Performance related incentive payments Eﬁiﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ’@ﬂ’ﬂﬁfﬁ 259
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRREFFTEIHR 26
1,019
The number of highest paid employees who are not the directors of the BeN T T EECBRARTEFUINZ &ZRFTA
Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: TERMT
2014
—F-mE
No. of employees
EE#E
HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T.21,500,000/4 7T 1
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e mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE—Z—AF+=-—A=+—HIFE
17. Dividends 17. B2
2014
—ZE—EF
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year FAERDTRATIRE -
— 2014 Final (RMB0.038 per share) — —E—[UFRH
(B AK®0.0387T) -
— 2013 Final (RMB0.165 per share) ——E—ZFKRH
(R AER®0.1657T) 267,485
267,485
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect WEHRE  ARREFEEEZRBE=_Z—H
of the year ended 31 December 2015 of RMB0.008 per share (2014: final F+-A=Z+—BHIFERNREKEERAR
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of RMB0.038 B£0.008 (= —F : gt ZE T —NFE+=
per share) has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is A=+—HBLEFERNAARSFRARE038
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general 7o) BfEREREERFBESE KA - FaE
meeting. g o
18. Earnings per share 18. BIREF|
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to AATIREM B FRRER KB SR TR A T8
owners of the Company is based on the following data: ATE
2014
—T-F
RMB’000
Earning for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings TERER N EEE T
per share (profit for the year attributable to owners mE 2 ZF (A AR ER
of the Company) FEAEFREF]) 42,198 205,194
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of MEREARZI TS 2
basic earnings per share LRI B 1,621,122,000 1,621,122,000
The diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share RIZZE—RFRZT—NF - SREERFEER
in 2015 and 2014 as the Company did not have any dilutive potential EFMER  REARAARRZZE—AFRE =2

ordinary shares in issue in 2015 and 2014.

FUBREFADBFTLECEEER LB -
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e g maRMiEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE T —AF+-_A=+—HILtFE
19. Property, plant and equipment 19. % - BERZE
Plant and Motor Other Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BF HRERKEE BHE @ HtRE EEIR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT AREBTT ARETI ARETT AR%TR
CosT D%
At 1 January 2014 RZE—-NFE—A—H 886,607 915,633 48,474 90,048 205,961 2,146,723
Additions NE 40,239 111,959 2,398 3,942 55,334 213,872
Transfer i 143,408 693 - - (144,101) =
Disposals BE - (7,076) (3,092) (2,234) - (12,402)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-N&E+-A=+—H 1,070,254 1,021,209 47,780 91,756 117,194 2,348,193
Additions NE 783 8,439 1,661 1,969 44,685 57,537
Transfer R 65,020 14,412 - - (79,432 -
Disposals BE (2,304) (31,080) (11,360) (6,626) - (51,370)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-FF+=-F=1+—8 1,133,753 1,012,980 38,081 87,099 82,447 2,354,360
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z5HiE
At1 January 2014 R-Z—MFE—HF—H 98,403 292,428 28,291 44196 - 463,318
Provided for the year FERNEE 33,162 110,970 6,635 14,953 - 165,720
Elimination on disposals e R - (3,558) (2,458) (1,929) - (7,945)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NE+=A=+—H 131,565 399,840 32,468 57,220 - 621,093
Provided for the year FREE 37,860 114,822 5,382 14,7113 - 172,777
Elimination on disposals BB R (1,287) (29,606) (9,860) (6,415) - (47,168)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RFE+-_A=1+—H 168,138 485,056 27,990 65,518 - 746,702
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-mF+=-F=+—H 938,689 621,369 15,312 34,536 117,194 1,727,100
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RE+-A=1+—H 965,615 527,924 10,091 21,581 82,447 1,607,658
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RE I RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE—Z—AF+=-—A=+—HIFE

19. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

19. % - BMERFE®)

i,

All the buildings are located in the PRC. The Group was in process of
obtaining the relevant property ownership certificates for buildings with
a net book value of RMB116,115,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB129,439,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
relevant property ownership certificates can be obtained in due time
without incurring significant costs.

The above items of property, plant and equipment except for construction
in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis, taking into account
their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2.71%=317%
Plant and machinery 9.50%
Motor vehicles 19.00%
Other equipment 19.00%

20. Prepaid lease payments

FBEEFYEEETRBRA - KEEDFEIRR
—E-RE+_A=+-HEBFEAARE
116,115,000 ( = Z — U4 : AR#129,439,0007T )
WEFHEMEMEESE - ARAREERA - AI#E
BEVSHREYEMEEE  MTIEEEZAMA

BriEi TSN - EIMER - B MARMTR B 5T &
HRSBEERABRENE - RANFERNT

BF 2.71%Z3.17%
R Kt 2s 9.50%
B 19.00%
HAth ks 19.00%

20. AT LR EKIE

2015 2014
= ik
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARMET T

Analysed for the reporting purpose as: MEMBHLITAOT ¢
Current portion BN 8,681
Non-current portion IERBE D 389,836
398,517

The Group has obtained all relevant land use right certificates for the
leasehold land as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

RZZ-—RFR-Z-NF+-_A=1+—H A&
H 2 BUSATAE & T i AER T iR RS -
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e S R R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE T —AF+-_A=+—HILtFE
21. Investment properties 21. REY
Buildings
BF
RMB’000
ARETIT
COST RRAS
At 1 January, 2014 and 31 December 2014 R-ZE—F—A—BE-_FT—WNF+-_A=+—H 12,591
Additions NE 37,588
At 31 December 2015 R_E—RAF+=-A=+—H 50,179
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January, 2014 RZE—NF—H—H 1,997
Provided for the year FREE 398
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+=—A=+—H 2,395
Provided for the year FREE 597
At 31 December 2015 R-TE—RF+-A=+—H 2,992
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NF+=-A=+—H 10,196
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=A=+—H 47,187

134

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was RMB53,413,000 (2014: RMB15,683,000). The fair value
has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by the management
of the Company. The valuation was determined by the depreciated
replacement cost method, which the directors of the Company are of
the view that it is the best estimate of the fair value of these investment
properties. Depreciated replacement cost method is based on an estimate
of the fair value for the existing use of the land, plus the current cost of
replacing the improvements, less deduction for physical deterioration and
all relevant forms of obsolescence and optimization. There has been no
change from the valuation technique used in the prior year. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Investment properties located in Zhengzhou, the PRC

[vRiSet= RS- E/ES

MN-EB—RFE+-A=1+—H KEEREYED
NEAANREESS 413,000 (Z2—M4F : ARKE
15,683,0007T) ° AFERBREARFERENGE
B - ZAHENERSRATEEERAE AR
RIEER AL AT EELREMENTFENS
0% » EBBRAVE AR LIRS AR
SAFE MERETRMNBENEENE  BRE
BERIERER—YIREERORE BB - HE
FREBAFEANLEES) NMEEMEZA
FER c ERERRABERs MERERR -

RIZB-—RF+-A=+—H TEENKREDX
NEBRATESHEOFBENOT

Fair value as at
31 December

Level 3 2015
R-E—RE

+=A=+—8H

3R HAFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z - T —FHF+ - A=+—HILtFE

21. Investment property (Continued)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2.71%-3.17%

All the buildings are located in the PRC. The Group had not obtained
the relevant property certificates for buildings with a net book value of
RMB42,602,000 as at December 31 2015 (2014: RMB5,418,000). In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the relevant property ownership
certificates can be obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

21.

BREWME #)
4 [ R B 88 1 34 o

B HIRA R R R A F S BB RN
& RAMERMT -

BgF 2.71%%E3.17%

FTBEEFHMRPEEN - NEE W AERRN
—AE+ A=+ HREFEAARE
42,602,0007C( == —U4F : AR#¥5,418,0007T) &Y
EFREMEMBER - AREEFERE - 1JEF
EEAEBEEMEREM T REEREM -

22. Intangible assets 2 B EE

Software
B
RMB’000
ARETTT

CoST A
At 1 January 2014 RN_E—HFE—H—H 13,932
Additions NE 2,156
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H 16,088
Additions NE 1,049
At 31 December 2015 N—_E—RF+-_A=+—H 17,137

AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—FE—F—H 7,865
Provided for the year FREE 2,488
At 31 December 2014 RZE—FE+-_A=+—H 10,353
Provided for the year Elﬂﬁéﬁ 2,454
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF+_A=+—H 12,807

CARRYING VALUES BREE

At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—NE+—_A=+—H 5,735
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+=-A=+—H 4,330

Software has a definite useful life and is amortised on a straight-line basis
over three to five years.

UHEEENEAFR R=ERFANEREE
B
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23. Investments in associates

Cost of investments in unlisted associates
Share of post-acquisition profits and other

comprehensive income, net of dividends received

e Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE

23. REFE QR 2 IRE

RIFETHE R B2 IRE KA
DRI SR M E At
2EEA - RS KRBE

394,392

26,032

420,424

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had interests in the
following associates:

Name of entity
ERAH

BMRERFERRERNERAR
Zhengzhou Suda Coal Machinery Service Co., Ltd.

EH( LB REREESERAA
Hua Xuan (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd.

BMBEROIR) SEREERAR
ZMJ (Jiangxi) Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd.

AARBREE#ERERIERERLA
Datong Coal Mining Group Zhonghei Electromechanical
Equipment Machinery Co., Ltd.

ERR DA EAERRHERAF
Xinjiang Kerui ZMJ Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd.

BETIHERBERNERLR
Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd.

BMERSRRERREERAF
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Special Forging Pressing and
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

SRR IRRITERAR
Shanghai Zhengan Mine Engineering Technology Co., Ltd

2014
—ZT—F
RMB’000
ARETT
394,392
12,404

406,796

BE-T-RFR-F-MFT-A=t—AL-

REBRATE 2 A BHE R

Proportion of
Place of nominal value
registration of registered capital
it R MEREELH
2014
—ZT-mF
%
The PRC 34%
HE
The PRC 49.18% 49.18%
HE
The PRC 38%
HE
The PRC 31%
HE
The PRC 35%
HE
The PRC 47.5%
HE
The PRC 49%
HE
The PRC 40%
HE

Proportion of
voting power held
ERERRELH
2014
—Z-mF
%
34%

49.18% 49.18%

38%

31%

35%

47.5%

49%

40%

Principal activities
TEEB

Aftermarket services

ERRH

Equity investment and
financial management

BARERGHER

Manufacture of parts
EEEH

Manufacture of machinery
HEH,
Manufacture of machinery

EEBM

Manufacture of machinery

EERR
Manufacture of parts

HETMH

Manufacture of parts
EEEH
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e mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE—Z—AF+=-—A=+—HIFE
23. Investments in associates (Continued) 23. REEE DRI 2 RE )
Aggregate information of associates that are not ER| MW AERZEERRGREE
individually material B
2014
—T-NF
RMB’000
AREETTT
The Group’s share of profit AEEDhEF 13,361 18,130
The Group’s share of other comprehensive income REESREMEEBA
(expense) () 10,467 (10,467)
The Group’s share of total comprehensive income AEESHEEMALLEE 23,828 7,663
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in -~ RNEBRZSH A AREEZ
these associates ESREEERE 420,424 406,796
24. Investment in joint ventures 2. AEERECZRE
2014
—Z—OF
RMB’000
ARKETTT
Cost of investment in unlisted joint ventures: RIEETEEBEZIZRERA 4,321 4,321
Share of post-acquisition losses and other DGR B % 18 R E A
comprehensive expense, net of dividends received ZEWA - BB WS (1,938) (840)
2,383 3,481
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had interests in the HE-T—RAFR-_FT—WNF+-_A=+—HIF"
following joint ventures: AEERATELOERAERER
Proportion of
Place of nominal value Proportion of
Name of entity registration of registered capital voting power held Principal activities
ERsR it fhEMEREELA ERERRELH TEER
2014 2014
—F-mE —F-mE
% %
ERWEESERARAT The PRC 40% 40% 33% 33%  Manufacture of machinery
Huainan Allen West Electromechanical Equipment Co., Ltd HEEHR,
ERFE RS BREERAR The PRC 40% 40% 33% 33%  Manufacture of machinery
Huainan Shun Li Coal Mining Machinery Maintenance f HERR,
Co., Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE
24. Investment in joint ventures (Continued) 24 REEDTEZRE )
Aggregate information of joint venture that are not ERIMEWLTEREEDELEE
individually material £
2014
—E—F
RMB’000
The Group’s share of (loss) profit and total REED L (BB &
comprehensive (expense) income 2E(FX) WAL (1,000) 91
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRZESELERBZ
interests in these joint ventures REIRMAEA 2,383 3,481
25. Available-for-sale investments 25 AtHEZRE
2014
—FTMF
RMB’000
ARKETT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LT ZBRAEFH
at fair value (RAFE) 34,098
Unlisted equity securities (Note) JEEMRRAE S (M) 8,335
42,433
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEMBOATAT
Non-current assets ERBEE 42,433
Note: The above unlisted equity investments represent investments in unlisted MisE : BildE EMRAZERIENTERBEZEMAIZR
equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in the PRC. They are ERRIFMBITHELTRAZTSF2KRE - ZERE
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period because RIERRIZERANBRENE  REARAFE
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors NAEBGHTHEBEARAKN  MARREZRAH
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured N ETEEA SR E ©
reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 EHZE —ZE—FHF+ - A=+—HILFE
26. Deferred tax assets 26. ELEBIIREE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial BEBREmME - BEECHEBESRZOWHT ¢

reporting purposes:

2015 2014
—Z—hfF —Z—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETTT

Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE - E Iiiiil 132,595

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and movements RAFERR, T ZEEFIEEE LSBT ¢
thereon during the year:

Bad debt Write-down Other Unrealized
Provision of inventory  provision Accruals profit Total
RERME GFEME HttRfE  EHEX RBRAE &5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTI AR®TT ARETT ARE®TE

The Group KER
At 1 January 2014 RZE—NF—AF—H 69,593 3,150 730 11,727 3,717 88,917
Credit (charge) to profitor loss M E#aF A (%) 50,522 300 550 (8,300) 606 43678
At 31 December 2014 R-E—F
+=—R=+—H 120,115 3,450 1,280 3,427 4,323 132,595
Credit (charge) to profitor loss P E#EFA (%) 37,295 1,223 1,021 - (304) 39,235
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—HF
+=—A=+—H 157,410 4,673 2,301 3,427 4,019 171,830
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following REMEIR - AEEE T IIARER 2 ABANIEA
unrecognised unused tax losses: 18
2015 2014
—g-5F -—T-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR¥ET T

Unused tax losses REARIEEIE 180,582 140,878

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above tax Rt Lt R A R R IR R IR E Ty N R TR
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. HRICHEFRA ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE

26.

27.

Deferred taxation (Continued) 26.

The expiry dates of the above unrecognised tax losses are as follow:

ELERIE ()
R ERBIEEE Y E BT

2014
—T—mF
RMB’000
AREFT
31 December 2015 —_E-RF+_-_A=+—H - 10,616
31 December 2016 —ET—RF+=-A=+—H 6,583 6,583
31 December 2017 —T—+F+=-_A=+—H 8,961 11,195
31 December 2018 - )N\F+-A=+—H 62,419 71,040
31 December 2019 —E-NF+-A=+—8H 36,639 41,444
31 December 2020 —E-TF+-/F=+—H 65,980 -
180,582 140,878
Debt investment 27. BHRE

2014
—E=—UFE
RMB’000
Debt securities BEES 390,027 369,237

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEMBOITAT
Non-current assets IERBEE 390,027 369,237

On 26 March 2014, the Company entered into the subscription agreement
with Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited and Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited,
pursuant to which, the Company agreed to subscribe for the notes in the
principal amount of USD60,000,000, with a coupon rate of 3.0% per
annum, semi-annually payable in arrears. The notes will expire on 28
December 2017.

RZZE—MHF=A=+7<8 + 27 HSun Hung Kai
& Co. (BVI) Limited %2Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited&] 37 534

ek - B - AR AR E SR HE 2R 4 58 /560,000,000
ETMEE FRBEAI0%  FEFUEMSAR
S BEBSNR_E—tF+_A=F+N\BER
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28. Finance lease receivable

Current finance lease receivables
Non-current finance lease receivables

mBEE S IR
FERB R E T B WRIA

28. BEHEREWE

2014
—ZE—EF
RMB’000
AR¥ETT

7,831
11,5618

19,349

Certain of the Group’s equipment are leased out under finance leases. All
leases are denominated in RMB. The term of finance leases entered into

ranged from 3 to 5 years.

Amounts receivable under finance leases

Within 1 year 15K
Over 1 year but less than 2 years HiB1FEDR2F
Over 2 year but less than 5 years FRIB2F 1B DR

Less: unearned finance income B R EERE W

Present value of minimum lease =IEFEE R E
payments receivable HRE

AEEETREREMEBVEDLHE - MEHEENRA
R¥EHE - REHEFH/=20%F -

REHEE TR FIE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

BREBEENK BEEENRRE
31/12/2014 31/12/2014
—T-mEF —F-ImEF
+=A +=A
=+—H =—E
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTFT
26,830 8,689 25,992 7,831
16,445 6,952 15,424 6,446
45,803 5213 42,672 5,072
N/A N/A
(4,990) (1,505) TEHA TEA

19,349 84,088

84,088

The interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date for
the entire lease terms. The average effective interest rate is approximately
6.01% (2014: 5.54%) per annum.

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the leased storage
equipment. The Group is not permitted to sell or pledge the collateral in
the absence of default by the lessee.

The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting period are neither
past due nor impaired.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015
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29. Long-term receivables

Long term receivable due from customers (Note 1)
Long term receivable due form an associate

(Note 2)
Less: Long-term receivable due within 1 year

29. RHAFEWRFRIE

JE Y P = HA R YOsRoR (M 1)

U R 4 N B R HR R Uk B
(Mf7%2)

W —F ARz RERIGRIR

Long-term receivable due after 1 year

—FREH z KA IR

The amount is expected to be received as follows:

Within 1 year

Over 1 year but less than 2 years
Over 2 year but less than 5 years
Over 5 years

Less: unearned finance income

FRIRTE AT LA T iy ] SO

1R

BiEIF R DR
HRiEF B D RS
HBIASTF

B RERE G

2014

—ZT—F

RMB’000

ARETT

64,121 68,649
172,144 -
(105,059) (31,919)
131,206 36,730
111,297 32,694
142,578 27108
15,523 13,551
18,973 -
(52,106) (4,704)
236,265 68,649

Note 1: The balance represents long term receivables from third-party customers

FsET -

arising from sales of goods. The amounts is interest free, unsecured and
repayable in 2 to 8 years. Interest income of RMB738,000 calculated based
on effective interest method was recognised during the current year (2014:

Nil).

Note 2: In December 2015, the Company has entered into an agreement with an

e -

associate, pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to extend the credit
period of trade receivable from this associate of RMB215,180,000 and the
associate has agree to repay the amount by installments at the end of each
quarter from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017. The balance as at 31
December 2015 are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

30. Inventories

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods

30. &

JR# R HRE
FRm
EEPX R

ZEREREREEMERE=FFF 2R
JEMRIE - ZFIBARE - BB RER-Z
NFEREE - REBFEEZTEZFBKRA
ARKET738,0007C I AFEANER(ZE—M
Fm) e

RZZ—HF+=A  ARARIEHE—EEERQ
RIEI g - B - AR RIEREEREWRZ
BN a2 AR%215,180,000 08 S IB 2=
B MZBEARBEREN=E—~F—A
—HE-ZE—+F+-_A=+-HHEEZEZ
K DHEEBRFIE RZTE—RF+=A
=+ — B2 ESRTIER BRI AR A
PR ©

2014

— TP

RMB’000

ARET T

258,650 334,624
117,615 235,258
799,564 879,290
1,175,829 1,449,172
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z—RAF+-A=+—HIFE

31. Loan receivables from an associate 3. ER—
2014
—ZE—EF
RMB’000
ARETTT
Analysed for the reporting purpose as: TEFREOSTOT ¢
Current portion — variable-rate loan receivables (Note) TRENES D — BT RN E
(H$3E) 80,000 80,000
Note:  The balance as at 31 December 2015 represented loan receivables from an et RZZ—AF+ZA=1+—8 ' &&EHREERH
associate Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd., which ERRBRIISERERRERARZER  Z
were denominated in RMB, unsecured and will be repaid within twelve BRAAREE  @EF - UER+TZEAR
months. The balance carried interest rate at the People’s Bank of China B8 - ZEFIRPBARBITEER KL E o
Benchmark Rate.
32. Trade and other receivables 32. E5 R HAEWRRIE
2014
—ZE—EF
RMB’'000
ARETTT
Bills receivable EREE 1,004,413 868,628
Trade receivables Z 5 EWGRIA 3,989,715 4,093,423
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (1,032,712) (788,058)
3,961,416 4,173,993
Prepayments to suppliers At FERg B SR IE 52,329 155,547
Deposits HkS 6,919 6,720
Other tax recoverable E b Al Y o1 R T8 20,985 7,827
Staff advances ==k 4,896 5,915
Dividend receivable FEURAR B, 950 950
Others Hih 16,213 7,917
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RIREE (8,789) (5,118)
93,507 179,758
Total trade and other receivables B o REMEWRIESET 4,054,923 4,353,751
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE

32. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group generally allows a credit period of 180 days to its customers.
The credit period provided to a customer can vary significantly based on a
number of factors, including the Group’s relationship with the customer,
the customer’s credit profile and payment history, total contract value and
market conditions. The following is an aged analysis of bills receivable and
trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on

the invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

32. EZ R HMEWRIE )

AEE—RETEPZEERRZR/IBOR BT
BEFZEEHNERZEEZMERRER &
BAKEREP ZHEFE TP 2 ERRRENKE
B ARRERTR - ATRASHREMRZEEA
27| 2 RURIE N E 5 REGRIBHR R R R ER
ZIRER DT -

2015 2014
—ET-HF —Z—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Within 180 days N 2,078,089 2,056,574
Over 180 days but within 1 year HBiB180KE1FR 1,083,649 901,361
Over 1 year but within 2 years BRI FE2FR 509,190 938,720
Over 2 years within 3 years BiIm2FEIF A 290,488 277,338

3,961,416 4,173,993

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers
any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date
credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The Group closely
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables and considers trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality. The Group has provided impairment allowance individually or

collectively for all past due receivables

Aging of trade receivables which are past due

FEHETE B 5 BUGHIR 2 AT LR - AREEEE
SHEWMFRERAEENZIELEEERERER
HIHIR] 2 (ML - AEEEIERE SRR
MEEEEE  URA/EHEEFRRE MR
B FEEERY - ARECHAAERREKTR
(BB SHRFHRBRERER -

B8 B 5 RN IRKER

2015 2014
—E-REF —E—UFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARMET T

Over 180 days but within 1 year HBiB180K(E1FER 694,315 667,296

Over 1 year but within 2 years BRI FE2ER
Over 2 years within 3 years tBIR2EFEIEN

475,827 661,018
290,488 277,338

1,460,620 1,605,652

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over 3 years because
historical experience is such that receivables are past due beyond 3 years

are generally not recoverable.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEECHIF U LRBFBEREERE B
IR S A B i BB 183 6 2 JR MK ARIB — R AR
@ o

SR L % SRS A TR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #E =T —HF+—A=+—HIEFE
32. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 32. EZ R HAEWFIE )
Movement of allowance for doubtful debts on trade and B 5 N E M EEIE 2 RERE &

other receivables

2014
—T-NF
RMB’000
AREETTT
Opening balance FHHER 793,176 446,214
Provided for the year F N I PAKD 348,071
Write off b6 (63,818) (1,109
Closing balance FREEE 1,041,497 793,176
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts of the Group are individually R-ZZE—RF+-A=+—8 st ALKEERE
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB529,496,000 BEsFEARENEREE SHEWGIE - S44@
as at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB404,372,000), which have been in B ANRM52949,000t (Z T —MF : AR
significant financial difficulties. The Group holds no collateral over these 404,372,0007T ) + 5% 5 R IE T A e 25 K B 15 R £
balances as at 31 December 2015 and 2014. BAR RIZE—RAFER_ZT—NF+-A=1+—
B ASEBEWESEZSESCERR -
33. Other financial assets 3. HibEmMEE
2014
—Z—F
RMB’000
ARKETIT
Structured deposit EEETER - ,063,000 505,000
Other financial assets as at 31 December 2015 represented the structured RZZE—RF+-_A=1+—8 HtemEEAS
deposits with certain banks in the PRC carrying variable expected interest FhEASRITHEB T TR R EFENF
rate ranging from 3.20% to 3.65% per annum and maturity period of three 3.20%%3.65%  HARR A= Ak /<EA -

or six months.
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34. Bank balances and cash/pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise cash and short-term bank
deposits. The bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.39% to 3.15% per annum as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 0.35%

to 3.25% per annum).

Cash
Bank deposits with original maturity within three months
or less

34.

— PO : FFIF0.35%ZE3.25%) °

Be 120

JREH A A3ME A AT 2 8RTT

Tk 1,726,101

Cash and cash equivalents

Re MR EEY 1,726,221

Bank deposits with original maturity over three months

[REIHIH R3ME A LA L2 8R1717 5K 285,000

Bank balances and cash

2,011,221

RITHESBEIRE

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure bank
acceptance bills and letters of guarantee and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at market rates
which range from 0.39% to 3.15% per annum as at 31 December 2015

(2014: 0.35% to 3.25% per annum).

Z=3.25%) °

RITHEBRRAS CEARTER

NEBRITEBIIRE BIER S LR HRITER
RITERENENERAE  RN=ZE—AF+=A
=t+—8  FFEDHNF039%=E3.15% (=

=

=

2014
—T—mF
RMB’000
ARETT

493
1,821,164
1,821,657

546,657

2,368,314

BB RARITALEZRREZRES
A D fEARBEE - ERBRITFERIEMIEH
B R-E—RF+-_A=1+—8  FFEN
T0.39%23.15% 2 BE (—Z—PU4F : FF%F0.35%
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35. Trade and other payables

2014

—T—F

RMB’000

ARETTT

Bills payable (Note i) FERTERIR (B 55D 698,336 418,224

Trade payable (Note i) B 5 TR IE (5D 1,188,824 1,310,389

1,887,160 1,728,613

Salary and bonus payables JENTEEES 68,304 68,403
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of S —K B AR — % IFER

a subsidiary (Note ii) EEeEl D) 107,711 112,600
Deposits (Note iii) =14 (B i) 28,294 27,724
Deferred income to be recognised within one year —F AR B (HT7Eiv)

(Note iv) 9,528 10,678
Other taxes payable EAth R HIE 18,301 19,255
Accruals and other payables (Note v) TR I HoAb FE FRIE (M aEy) 74,440 77,374

2,193,738 2,044,647
Notes: MI3E
i) Trade payables and bills payable comprise amounts outstanding for trade ) ESEMNPENENZEEAEEBESIREZER
purchase. Payment terms with suppliers are mainly on credit within 90 days BREE - MEERNRCHRER B HERI
from the time when the goods are received from suppliers. The following is an B EWHEET0 R AR « LT ARSREIRIZE
aged analysis of bills payable and trade payables presented based on invoice B2 ENEERE S EMNRIERER O

date at the end of each reporting period:
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35. Trade and other payables (Continued)

Within 90 days PN
Over 90 days but within 1 year HRIBIKEIFR
Over 1 year BiEIF

35. EZRHEMENSRE

2014

—ZT—F

RMB’000

ARETT

878,996 626,664
724,600 770,613
283,564 331,336
1,887,160 1,728,613

i)

The balance represents the amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of ZMJ Shun Li Machinery. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Deposits represent the deposits received from suppliers for transportation and
other services.

Deferred income to be recognised within one year represents the government
subsidies received by the Group towards certain research projects. The
amount has been treated as deferred income and will be transferred to
income for the relevant projects.

Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payables for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment, rental payables and payables for other
services.

i

ARG I B 5E LM — B IR IR AR R 2 3R
1 o AR AEE - 28 BARENREE -

FIEREHERTK I ER R EMRE TS o

R —ERNER ZIRERAEAKERE TH A
B ATRER TR B © AR FIRE WA B e
BEMEREEE ZWA -

EREEMENRIBELIZEANBEYE  KE
R RN IR - BN S REMRTS 2 15K
I8 o
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36. Borrowings 36. 68
2014
—ZE—EF
RMB’000
ARET T
Bank loans — secured IRITER—HIEM 97,170

Variable-rate borrowings FENREE

97,170

!

The balance as at 31 December 2014 represented the bank loan of
USD15,880,000 borrowed from Bank of China Paris Branch carrying
effective interest rate at 2.3% plus London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)
per annum, pledged by cash deposit of RMB20,000,000. The Group has
fully repaid USD 15,880,000 during the year.

Carrying amount repayable: JEEEIREE -
Within one year —FN

RZZ—NF+= A=+ BERIETRRERT
22324517 2.15,880,000 3 TR TTE X » B FF
E23% N BERITRIZENE ([LBOR]) « MAREE
20,000,0007T 2 REFHIEEAR - AEEERER
EEN(E1215,880,000% 7T °

2014
—E—F
RMB’000
AREETIT

97,170

F

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

Effective interest rate BRI
Variable-rate borrowings SFEHE A

AREFEEEEME(ZFRNVITOMNE) Z & E N
™

2014
—ZE—OF
RMB’000
ARETT

& 2.6%
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE —E—RE+_-_A=+—HILFE
37. Other non-current liabilities 37. HibEREBAE
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Deferred income over one year BiR—F ZEEWA 14,784 17,163

In 2009, the Company received a government subsidy of RMB19,970,000 RZZZNF - RAREET R E R EI BT
in respect of construction of its new plant. In March 2012, ZMJ Shun Li & AR¥19,970,000T - RZT—Z=F = - ZK
Machinery received a government subsidy of RMB10,506,000 in respect Hre T MR ETRE R BF#HB e AR
of construction of its new plant. The amounts are recognised as deferred 10,506,0007T ° ZF & REEER SELTEWA R
income and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the relevant EHEEC N FRFHNERSES -
assets.
38. Share capital 38. B4
Listed A Shares Listed H Shares Total
L AR LR ast
Number of Number of Number of
share Amount share Amount share Amount
RAEE ¢8  RAEA ¢8  RRAEA £ ]
'000 RMB'000 '000 RMB'000 '000 RMB'000
Th ARETR T ARETR T ARETRT
At January 2014, RZT—NF—F—H -
31December 2014 and 2015~ —E-MER-T—FF
+-A=+—H 1,377,888 1,377,888 243,234 243,234 1,621,122 1,621,122
Except for the currency in which dividends are paid, H Shares and A MATRI B Z S8 HIR AR ES HEYZEA
Shares rank pari passu in all respects with each other. BE3: v
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39. Non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Place of
establishment
and principal
Name of subsidiary place of business
R
HEAR AR TEEEME
ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment PRC
S sk HE

Individual immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

EIERERENTERZ
=N

39. RS
TRINEEA TR E S 2 AR TPEE2ENE R
2 B
Proportion of
equity interest held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
Year end December 31 Year ended December 31 Year ended December 31
FERERFEZ PREFERELEZ
RAERA D Al (58) R FERER
HE+T-A=T+-HLFE BET-A=t-HLFE BET-A=+-BLFE
2014 2014 2014
S ife3 kSl kS
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETT
31.11% 31.11% (12,915) 65,749
(22,280) 63,447 85,727

(31,589) IGRE:GVY 119,887 151,476

ZMJ Comprehensive Equipment
BRI AR

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

2014

—F-IEF

RMB’000

ARETTT

RENVEE 338,977 389,021
IERBEE 158,532 164,306
mEaE 316,085 341,977
AN AR ER PG RS 124,984 145,601
FEIERR A A 56,440 65,749

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015
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39. Non-controlling interests (continued)

39. FEIERRER ()

Revenue WA

Expenses X

Loss and total comprehensive expense EiE ke mAS A%

Loss and total comprehensive expense attributable AR EIRE R EAG BT 1E &
to owners of the Company ENElE L

Loss and total comprehensive expense attributable FEIER R T PR R IR
to the non-controlling interests ENElE L

Loss and total comprehensive expense EiE R 2 AL 8%

Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities

e zRe(RE)RAFR

Net cash outflow from investing activities

REESH RS RHIFE

Net cash outflow from financing activities

RERS RS R FE

Net cash outflow

R mhiFaE

40. Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of land
use right authorized but not contracted for

40. B AR EH

EROERELREMBHRE
BB ARBEDE K5
Kz EARX

EREERBENZABRE L
EREBARRX

344,365

(374,291)

(29,926)

(20,617)
(9,309)
(29,926)
(1,787)

(94)

(1,881)

2014
—Z—mF
RMB’000
AREFT

479,249
(620,766)

(41,517)

(28,602)
(12,915)
(41,517
20,882

(869)
(20,620)

(607)

2014
—Z=—F
RMB’000
ARETTT

56,085

25,911

81,996



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M EHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE—Z—AF+=-—A=+—HIFE

41, Operating leases M. KERE

The Group as lessee

FARBEEEERNZ
RIERERRK
— i

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases
during the year:
—Land

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

—FR
FEEFERF(BEEREMF)
FELAE

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
Over five years

AEEESAEA

2014
—E—FE
RMB'000
AREETTT

5,224

REREHR - NEBERER THIHBE 2 AT #
R ETHEM A RRRKERE [N FALE :

2014
—F-ImEF
RMB’000
ARBTT

5,224
20,894
47,011

73,129

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for AT ENTIEANEFEGEGBE TR EN 2T

certain parcels of land that it occupies. The leases are negotiated for terms
of 20 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=—Z— A&+ -A=+—HIFE

41, Operating leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Property rental incomes earned was RMB11,509,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: RMB8,469,000). The leases are negotiated for
terms of 1 year to 15 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum:

M. KEHE @)

AEBEROEA

HE-_ZT—AF+_A=+—HILFE PR
EHS WA A ARE11,509,000T( —ZE—MMNF : A
[R#£8,469,0007T) ° FAHTFE FHAI1FER155F -

MEREHR - NEED BB IO 2 A RKEAE
WAL

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—UFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Within one year —FE R 4,638
In the second to fifth years inclusive FIEFAF(RIEEEMT) 8,666
Over 5 years AELAE 17,584
30,888

42. Retirement benefit plans

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a government-
operated defined contribution pension scheme, and are entitled to a
monthly pension from their retirement dates. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to these retired employees. The Group
is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at
certain percentages of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an
expense when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions and the contributions are due.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group to the scheme
in the PRC and charged to the profit or loss:

R

AEETEEREEFARFEEZ EBHIUR
KEFtBZRE  ERARKZAEEAZTHERI
T - PRBRMNAEERZSRAERERITEAEE
- AEBARREEBEAH S ZE T ADLLAEK
H%Wﬁifﬁ* BRESEERRERMEER

BEZEHRZ RS L HRE AT AR -

RAFE - AEECRPBERABMBELAT
R - MEZELEERERIN

2015 2014
—m-n% s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARBTT

Amounts contributed and charged to the profit or loss EER T RIBR Y B HexE 58,759
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43. Related party transactions

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate controlling
party of the Company is Henan SASAC of the PRC government and that
the Group is subject to the control of the PRC government. In accordance
with IAS 24, entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (“PRC government related entities”)
are regarded as related parties of the Group. Due to the complex
ownership structure, the PRC government may hold indirect interests in
many companies. Some of these interests may, in themselves or when
combined with other indirect interests, be controlling interests which may
not be known to the Group. Nevertheless, the Group represented that the
following captures the material related parties taking into account the

exemption under 1AS 24,
(1) The Group and Henan SASAC

The Group has transactions with entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by Henan SASAC (“Henan SASAC related

entities”) and the transactions details are as follow:

Sales of finished goods SHEER

3. BB ERS

ARBEERR  NATZREIERT AP EBA
ARERER - MAKEXPBEBAES - RIER
BREETERIZE245 - SR BBATES - KFEHEHIX
EAPEZER((TEBAHRER DRE/ASE
B2 REM T - ENERCERRERE - TEBUFA
RERRBSERERELD - E TR SERETHE

BB - AT - ARERM - 5 RERES
ERF24F 2 H R - TXHIERERBE T -

(1) NEE A EEEES

AEEEZTREEERZES - HRAENHE
FEER(THEEREZERERDER
HEE  ZERHZFHBWOT

2015 2014
—E—EfF —E—E
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

712,593

Purchase of raw materials Ea:s g S

645,486

For the years ended 31 December 2015, revenue from Henan SASAC
related entities accounted for 2.4% of total revenue (2014: 11.6%),
and purchases from Henan SASAC related entities accounted for 7.2%

of total cost of sales (2014: 12.7%).

The details of outstanding balances with Henan SASAC and Henan

SASAC related entities are set as follow:

EBZE-_Z—AFE+-_RA=+—RHILFE -
RENEAEEZEBER 2 WabB ks
2.4%( —Z—PU4F : 116%) * MR ERNEER
AL BB RBAGBEERAT2% (=
T—PU4E  12.7%) °

PRAGEEEERAHARAZINERY
REEEHIFS U -

2015 2014
—2-Tf s
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARMETIT

Amount due from Henan SASAC related entities UG EERELHEERE Y
Frers) 61,600
Amount due to Henan SASAC T mEREL 2 I8 2,459

Except for the amount due to Henan SASAC which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand, all the amounts due from
Henan SASAC related entities are from trade sales or purchases. The
outstanding balances with Henan SASAC related entities and Henan

SASAC have been included in note 32 and note 35, respectively.

BREMIEEREZ ZREAERE 28R
BIRERERIN  BTEEREZBEER
ZETEFIEY KRB E S E K o SEE
HEZHEEE R TEERER 2 KEERLH
2 BRI 5E32 K i 5E35 Rt ©
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43. Related party transactions (Continued)

@)

The Group and other PRC government related
entities

Apart from the significant transactions with Henan SASAC related
entities set out above, during the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government
related entities are collectively significant as a large portion of its
sales of goods, purchases of materials, most of bank deposits,
borrowings, other general banking facilities and the relevant interest
income earned and expenses incurred during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 are transacted with entities owned/
controlled by the PRC government.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions with
PRC government related entities are activities in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business and entered into under normal commercial
terms and conditions, and that the dealings of the Group have not
been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and
those entities are government related. The Group has also established
its approval process for sales of goods and purchases of materials
and its financing policy for borrowings, such approval process and
financing policy do not depend on whether the counterparties are
government related entities or not.

The Group and its associates and joint ventures

The Group had the following significant transactions with its associates
and joint ventures:

43. BB AR 5 ()

()

AEBEA A EBTREERE

B EXETHENEERE R AR ERE T E
ARG REBRBE_T—AFR=-F
—ME+=- A=+ A IFEEEOPBRBT
HEEBETZRSEHBEKX - AENE
E-_ZT-AFER-_FT—NF+-_A=+—Hlt
FEIZABHEREE - VEHRE - KBHIR
I1FH - BE - B —ARERTTRVE AR B BREL
R BUA R D EAEF W & B BT
FiiEs,EHIRITHITZ R S °

ARAREERS  REFHETEHFAEERE
TZRHDHAEE  AEEFES - WIE—K
RO G RIGMRTL - MASEETZERS
WEAAEERZSERBRAABKEN
XEEARTERE - ARENRERBEER
IRRBR IR T - U EERERER
R REFWRLEF KR EBERY TEURN R 5
HFREBBUTHREER -

2015 2014
—EB-RF —E—UF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETIT

Trade sales: ES5HE -
Associates Gl l/NE] 106,926 78,716
Joint ventures BETE 5,270 9,941
112,196 88,657

Trade purchases: 550
Associates i /N 154,475 110,041
Joint ventures BEDE 4,915 9,265
159,391 119,306
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43. Related party transactions (continued)

43. BB AR S (#)

(3) The Group and its associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The Group had the following outstanding balances with its associates

and joint ventures at the end of each reporting period:

Amounts due from:
Associates
Joint ventures

JEWCTF1)%5 77 50

E NG

BEMX

@ AEEEARHEA

(&)

ARkaERE

RERERR  AEBEABERFRREED

FEUTREEGR

284,995
1,310

286,305

Amounts due to:
Associates
Joint ventures

PR T HIR T 30R

NG

BEhE

Except for the amount due from an associate of RMB80,000,000 as
disclosed in note 31 which is non-trade in nature, all amounts due
from or due to associates and joint ventures are from trade sales and
purchase, and the outstanding balances have been included in note

29, note 32 and note 35, respectively.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015

pa)

2014
—E—FE
RMB'000
AREETTT

241,455
1,285

242,740

2014
—E—OF
RMB’000
ARETT

31,044
243

31,287

B AR EBIFESIEEZARE

80,000,0007T & LB & R R FRIE SN + BT PRI

HEMNBERANEEEEZFTROKEES

HE MRS - RERGEHRD BINHIEE9 - M

32 % B FE35E It -

SO KRR AR SR B AR 1D A PR A &) 20155 3]
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43.

44, Contingent liabilities

Related party transactions (Continued)
(4) Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management were as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

SE kR
RIREF

43.

AR Z e
4) FEEBAEMS
EERHMTIEERABSHEMT :

2015 2014
—E-RE —E—UFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥FTT
11,495

1,129

12,624

Key management represents the directors and other senior
management personnel disclosed in the annual report. The
remuneration of key management personnel is determined with
reference of the performance to individuals and market trends.

The abovementioned related party transactions do not constitute connected
transactions as defined under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain bills
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in
payment of the endorsed bills receivable is low because all endorsed
hills receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The
maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the default of these
endorsed and derecognised bills receivable at the end of each reporting
period is as follows:

Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse
JEW &

44,

TEERABREFRTRECEERAMS
MEBAE - TREBAB ZBETIREMEA
RREMGBEILEE

A ERREBEB D X HA T EK ETRAE4AE
FERHIRER S

HAREE

RAEE » AEENEERR RS TRERE
ZHAGEEALEEREZES RAMBENTIR
ARAREFRR  HRBEEEZRERRIHE
BRI PERITEHERIREER - SRNBEEZ
EMEBZ RBAK - REREMR - AEEA8E
ARNZEEERRIER 2 BREIEMAREZ
RABERRAT

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFT

HEREZHAREECESE
765,364

These endorsed and derecognised bills receivable have a maximum
maturity of 6 months, and the total undiscounted cash flows of these
endorsed and derecognised bills receivable, representing the Group’s
maximum loss if the issuing banks fail to honour their bills and guarantees,
amounted to RMB461,205,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB765,364,000).

ZEEERKUEBMAZ ENEENEREMRA
NEA RZE-RAEF-A=+—0 ZE8E
MR LR BN EIE RBIRIR S R AAEE AT
TRITRERBABRSECEZBERERSBAEEA
R#461,205000c s m BB (ZE—HF - AR
765,364,0007T) °
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45, Other matter

45,

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 18 December 2015
and 25 December 2015, the Company is in the process of negotiating
with Bain Capital Investors, a third party for an acquisition of a company
in the auto-parts industry. Up to the date of the report, the Company has
not entered into any binding agreement with the counterparty. Please refer
to the Company’s related announcements on 18 December 2015 and 25

December 2015 for details.

46. Subsidiaries

General information of subsidiaries

46.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 and 2014

are as follows.

Name of subsidiary

L) EIEL

Directly held:
EBERE

MR EEEER AR (M)
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. (note a)

MBI R B ER AR (M)
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. (note a)

HINEBE S E A iy
BRAR (M)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Material Trading Co., Ltd. (note a)

BB RER AR 2R (M)
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face
Machinery Co., Ltd. (note a)

A E BRLMBILN,
AR AR (M)

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. (note a)

Principal activity

TREHR

Manufacture of hydraulic
products
HERBER

Manufacture of mining
machinery
HEREH

Trading of raw materials
and products
RHRERES

Manufacture of mining
machinery
HERBH

Manufacture of mining
machinery
HERBH

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
MR

R EE

The PRC
HE

The PRC
hE

The PRC
hE

The PRC
hE

The PRC
hE

Hth=E

AR ABHA—_E—RAF+-_A+\BE=ZF
—RFTZAZTRBZRAEMHEE - ARFRIE
EA 55 = J7Bain Capital Investors B E A FUEE — R E

MEEHTRZA

Al - HEARHRERH - AAFL

REHFEILERBELNRA 2 HE - BRFER
RZE-—RAF+_A+NBRZZE—RF+_A
“THRAZEBAL -

MDA

HERAZ—
RZE—RFR=

AR

T-MEF-A=+—H AR

AIMB AR ZFBMT o

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
BRETRBERE,
HAMEAHEE

RMB15,000,000
AR #15,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000
AE#100,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
A #50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
A #50,000,0007T

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
rEEEEREER
RAEEDL
2014
—FnF
%

100.00

68.89

100.00

53.21

54.00

SO KRR AR SR B AR 1D A PR A &) 20155 3]
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46. Subsidiaries (Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEBAREE

SRR TR AR AT (MiTa)
Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd.
(note a)

BEETRANDARE TR (M5T0)
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Siberia Co.,
Ltd. (note b)

DERERES (BF) BRAF
ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.

ZMJ Germany Gmbh ( Fff5%c) (note c)

BEREMBR AR (M)
ZMJ America, Inc. (note f)

R ORAN ) BB AR (M)
ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd (note g)

Principal activity

TEEH

Manufacture of mining
machinery
RS

Aftermarket service of
mining machinery

R SRR

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE MR IRE
2l

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery/
research and
development of
mining products

THE MR IRE
e
HREEM

Sale and purchase of
mining machinery

THE MR RE
2l

Sale and purchse of
mining machinery

THE LR IRE
2l

46. B AR (&)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation
AR
FRL B i B

The PRC
HE

Russia
RS

Hong Kong
EE

German
=

(Canada
mex

Australia
BAFITE

BB AR 2 —E R &)

Nominal value

of issued and

fully paid up

share capital/
registered capital
BRETREERER,
EMEREE

RMB78,600,000

AR #78,600,0007C

USD100,000
100,000% 7T

USD7,500,000
7,500,000 7C

EUR1,000,000
1,000,0008% 7T

CAD100
100907C

USD200,000
20,0005 7T

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
FEERERER
FREBDL

2014
—ZEE
%

57.97

100.00

100.00

100.00

N/A
i

N/A
i
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46. I B 2Rl (&)
B ARz —MRER @)

46. Subsidiaries (Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Nominal value

Place of of issued and
incorporation/  fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/ share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
HEMRL BRTRBERE rEEREEER
MEAREE FTEEK RUEEHE SMEASEE FAEBDL
2015 2014
—Z-nfF —Z-mF
% %
Indirectly held:
EERA -
YNBSS R R (Fiitakd) Sale of molding and metal  The PRC RMB30,000,000 55.26
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd. material H AR 130,000,0007T
(notes a and d) BARSBMEHEE
B MR R ERAE] Sale of molding and metal  The PRC RMB50,000,000 55.26
([ EBErE ML) (HEEake) material H AR #50,000,0007T
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Gelin BARSBEMHEE
Material Technology Co., Ltd.
(“ZMJ Gelin Material”) (notes a and )
Notes: BSE -
(@  All these subsidiaries are enterprises established in the PRC as companies @ BEWBRAREAERBERIZARAR -&ZEA

AR ERAEREE NHREARNPXEHE
EHERE - AR EQRMEIMEXEE -

with limited liability. The English names of these companies represent
management’s best efforts to translate the Chinese names of these
companies as no English names have been registered.

©

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Siberia Co., Ltd. was established by the
Company on 2 June 2011 in Russia. The English name of this company
represents management’s best effort to translate the Russian name of this
company as no English name has been registered.

ZMJ Germany Gmbh was established by the Company on 20 August 2013 in
Germany. The English name of this company represents management’s best
effort to translate the German name of this company as no English name has
been registered.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd. was established by the Company
(38.60%) and the Company’s subsidiaries including ZMJ Comprehensive
Equipment (13.33%), ZMJ Shun Li Machinery (3.33%) and other non-
controlling interests in 2011 in the PRC.

ZMJ Gelin Material was established by Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co.,
Ltd., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, on 28 January 2013.
ZMJ America, Inc. was established by the Company on 3 February 2015 in

Canada.

ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd was established by the Company on 10 September
2015 in Australia.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

b HEEABNESAEREEARAR/ARANR T ——
FRAZBERERKYL - ZRRNEXEEAE
BERNEZARMRERAWELNEZE B
AN SEESE=T

© ZMJ Germany GmbhBAARIR=ZZ—=FN\A=1+H
FERBKY - ZARIMRNEBAETRER D%
NAMEEZEELNEZE  BZARTEIRE
NETE -

M EPNEEERIRA R A R AR F)(38.60%)EE AR A 7] Ff
BAE (BIEER AT (13.33%) » EPAE A 5% 2 HE A
Q33%))&ﬁ(@ik%@ﬁ%ﬁ%é%:%——iEQJ B A,

N
®) EPEHRAIEBARD T —RIERE M B A TN
BHEBRARARN - E—=F—A-+/\AKT -
O EEECEMNBRABALAABNRZE—HAF=A
=HEMERKL °

© HEEORANGD)BRATDN/RRAN_Z—HEF
NA+HEBRARFERL

RAFER - BEMNBARZTEMERES

year.

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015 BN mEEBRHARAR 2015558 | 1 (0]
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47. Information about the statement of financial

position of the company

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E e 1,174,720
Prepaid lease payments A LA ERIE 227,654
Investment properties WEWE 47,187
Intangible assets B EE 3,766
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZIRE 210,698
Investments in associates REFERTZIE 400,169
Available-for-sale investments AIMEHEZRE 1,881
Deferred tax assets EEFTEEE 154,601
Debt investment BEEEE 390,027
Finance lease receivables BEME R A 58,096
Long term receivables RHFEUIE 131,206
Loan receivables from a subsidiary EURHIE A BB 71,430
2,871,435
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid lease payments A L ERIR 5,236
Inventories FE 978,615
Trade and other receivables E 5 R E M EYGRIE 3,728,664
Finance lease receivables REHEEW A 25,992
Long term receivables RHEEUGROE 105,059
Loan receivables from an associate FEUW—KEFE A RIER 80,000
Other financial assets Hib S mEE 1,063,000
Tax recoverable AUk @RS TE =
Pledged bank deposits BEHIFIRITIFR 264,305
Bank balances and cash SRITHEHBRIES 1,932,544
8,183,415
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables 8 5 R EMFER IR 1,865,189
Advances from customers EFEE® 139,726
Tax liabilities HBAaE 18,126
2,023,041
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 6,160,374
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BWEERABER 9,031,809
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B #
Share capital R A 1,621,122
Share premium &= E 3,409,354
Reserves (Note) G ES) 3,998,005
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARREEERER 9,028,481
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Other non-current liabilities Hib3EREBE 3,328

3,328

47. ERAR R A BRR KR ZER

2014
—FMF
RMB’000
ARETT

1,303,898
232,889
10,196
4,645
235,756
386,282
8,335
113,133
369,237
11,518
36,730

2,712,619

5,236
1,184,836
3,976,502

7,831

31,919
80,000
505,000
7,234
210,117
2,274,196

8,282,871

1,616,413

367,564
1,983,977
6,298,894
9,011,513
1,621,122

3,409,354
3,974,380

9,004,856

6,657

6,657
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47. Information about the statement of financial 47. EBAAR LRI BER R KR 2 ER &)
position of the company (Continued)

Note: Pz -
Reserves #E
Statutory
surplus Other Retained
reserve reserves earnings Total
EEBBRRE HtifE s REBR At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T ARMETIT ARETT

Balance at 1 January 2014 RIZE—MF—-A—H2&#% 503,070 32,902 3,526,097 4,062,069
Profit and total comprehensive income FRHEMREEBALE

for the year - - 170,263 170,263
Other comprehensive expense FREMEEAS

for the year - (10,467) - (10,467)
Contribution from the parent of AARFAREE

the Company - 20,000 - 20,000
Transfer P 17,026 - (17,026) -
Dividends (note 17) B& 8 (FfaE17) - - (267,485) (267,485)
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZZE—mF+=—A=+—H

= 520,096 42,435 3,411,849 3,974,380

Profit and total comprehensive income FREFREEBALE

for the year - - 49,761 49,761
Other comprehensive expense FREMEEMAX

for the year - 10,467 - 10,467
Contribution from the parent RARIFARNEE

of the Company - 25,000 - 25,000
Transfer B 4,976 - (4,976) -
Dividends (note 17) f&% 8 (MizE17) - - (61,603) (61,603)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+ZA=+—H

2 EER 525,072 77,902 3,395,031 3,998,005

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2015 BB M A& A 5 B % 1) B BR A &) 20154 3 1 63
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B EERE

Revenue and profit:

W AR
Revenue g A 4,510.86
Profit before tax BRI 30.37
Income tax expense FTeti & A (19.76)
Profit for the year ANEEFEFE 10.61
Profit for the year attributable to: AEZFHES -
Owners of the Company AARHERA 4220
Non-controlling interests SRR (31.59)
Eamings per share (RMB) FRBF(ARKT) 0.03
Assets and liabilities: BEHRAE
Non-current assets IERBEE 3,245.32
Current assets RENEE 8,804.16
Current liabilities REAE 2,4012.24
Net current assets REVEEFE 6,391.92
Total assets less current liabilities &R RENEE 9,637.24
Non-current liabilities EREERE 14.78
Net assets FEE 9,622.46
Total equity attributable to RRAIRERFENS
owners of the Company T fBEE 9,502.57
Non-controlling interests Eliliys Ty 119.89

2014 2013 2012 2011
—T-mE —2-=F T —2——F
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions

AREBBEET ARBEERT ARKEFEERT AREBERL
6,124.46 8,055.31 10,212.85 8,060.08
232.58 1,003.67 1,910.93 1,421.03
(39.25) (166.69) (297.39) (207.78)
193.33 836.98 1,613.54 1,213.25
205.19 866.71 1,589.15 1,194.06
(11.86) (29.73) 24.39 19.19
0.13 0.53 112 0.85
3,135.66 2,661.52 2,554.58 1,926.76
9,060.22 9,989.92 10,452.06 8,508.73
2,594.92 2,948.77 3,579.97 4,202.90
6,465.30 7,041.16 6,872.09 4,305.83
9,600.96 9,702.68 9,426.67 6,232.59
17.16 20.49 72.82 83.97
9,583.80 9,682.18 9,353.85 6,148.62
9,432.32 9,518.85 9,160.78 5,874.08
151.48 163.33 193.07 274.54
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